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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board”), |
hereby present the annual results of CIL Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

During the year, the Group continued to focus on
the distribution of server storage, multi-media and
communication products, which market has always been
volatile and price competition is intense. As a result,
the thin gross profit margin from the sales orders did
not provide significant positive contribution to our net
profits. In light of the uncertainty in this segment, we have
formulated a long term development plan by procuring
suitable acquisition and investment opportunities or
participating in projects in different businesses that may
offer high growth potential and returns.

In November 2013, we signed an agreement with E&R
HERFEZRAGIR A ("Guangdong Hotor”) to obtain the right
of exclusive sales agency in marketing the products
manufactured by them such as rice cookers and
household electrical appliances in the Southeast Asia,
the Middle East, Africa and South America. We believe
that the market potential and development prospect of
selling small household electrical applionces in these
regions is promising. Initially, we have established a
regional branch in Singapore to monitor the operation in
the Southeast Asia. A sale office and showroom is now
opened in Jakarta to support the marketing initiatives in
Indonesia where some 40 kinds of products are being
sold currently. If the performance in this country is doing
well, we will expand the coverage gradually to other
Southeast Asian countries on a steady pace.

Close to the end of the year, the Group commenced
its money lending business subsequent fo acquiring a
company which held a money lender licence in Hong
Kong. As we are new to this market, it is paramount that
we must monitor this operation closely on an ongoing
basis so as fo reduce our exposure to credit risk to the
minimum.

FAEBRXREZES(ESS ) REERERE
RAB (AR REAKMBLR (AEE]DH
EE-NOFEARAZTHEFEZRFHXE -

FRAEBEEE IR HEARERHET  Z
BEREMER EFETSEERDMER
BB - FLt  HETEMENERNERL R
AEBATNREHMBEENEESRH - ERLDE
HEWTHABEE  AEECHT—ERER
BEtE Bt SEKEESENRBRRE
e RBETETHEZEE MBEBKSH
HESTRRESEREI DR -

REZZE-=F1+-A SEEEREHERA
RAB((EREEDRI LGS BEERER
Hp(MERERFXESH) WM SEELERE
DoPRCFNREEMNBREEREHE -
EEMEGE TLRABEHEENERESHEND
BEANBRRASAHP -ALSME  KECHE
FIERY —EiED % - MEEREDZE
BEF BRETCERMEFR —EHERS
ERRIZUXFHNET S 2T SEEES
TEESHBENIOBER - BENEXEHR
RER SESUBENSTREXBELER
EHMREDER -

RUB-BEEEBEREBEABRRZARE &
SEERMNFARMARENERE -ARER
REUTEZHNE  HLAAFEBLEIERL
EECRRE  BREDH2EERBEERE -



CIL Holdings Limited #:Z#2REMRAE ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4§

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHEE

We believe it is in the interests of the Group and our
shareholders as a whole to raise equity capital to
strengthen our financial position and enlarge our capital
base. During the year, we had conducted several
equity fund raising exercises by means of placing of
the Company’s new shares for cash. The total net
proceeds of approximately HK$137.7 million from the
share placements were applied primarily to support our
development of new lines of business and to improve
our working capital. To make better utilisation of the new
cash resources, we had also set aside an uncommitted
portion of which by investing in securities.

In the years ahead, we will keep on putting efforts on
identifying new sources of income fo further increase the
profitability of the Group. Finally, | would like fo close by
thanking the Board, management and every member of
our dedicated staff for their support and hard work, and
our shareholders for their continued confidence.

Ke Jun Xiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The total revenue of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2014 increased by 21.2% to approximately
HK$464,057,000 (2013: HK$382,834,000). Apart from
the principal activity in distribution of server storage,
multi-media and communication products which
accounted for 99.7% of the total revenue generated,
the Group has diversified its activities by operating
three new business segments, being money lending,
investments in securities and distribution of rice cooker
and household electrical appliances during the year.
As these new business segments were just new startups,
their conftribution to the overall revenue was insignificant.

Nevertheless, the overall gross profit margin was down
to 3.5% (2013: 4.6%) due to sustained high cost of sales
arising from keen market competition in distribution
of server storage, multi-media and communication
products, thus producing gross profit of approximately
HKS$16,411,000 (2013: HK$17,718,000) which was not
adequate to cover hefty administrative expenses
incurred during the year.

Although no share-based payment expense was
recorded during the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013:
HK$7,925,000) and there was confribution from
other income of approximately HK$2,230,000 (2013:
HKS$1,211,000) and gains arising from written back of
loan and other payables of approximately HK$1,322,000
(2013: nil), the Group had incurred net fair value losses
on investments at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$2,976,000 (2013: nil) and there was a
sharp increase in the fotal other administrative expenses
of approximately of HK$69,169,000 (2013: HK$31,162,000),
in which a significant portion of approximately
HK$19,500,000 was represented by loss arising from
payment of debt assignment (2013: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEzwmR 2

As the Group had sought much legal advice in a
number of litigations in respect of disputed claims
against the Company and one of its subsidiaries
during the year, additional legal, professional and
consultancy expenses was recorded at approximately
HK$11,296,000 (2013: HK$4,586,000). The total finance
costs of approximately HK$2,045,000 (2013: HK$882,000)
and income tax expense of approximately HK$2,652,000
(2013: HK$1,418,000) had also increased in line with the

business expansion.

As a result, loss for the year aftributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 widened
by 146.2% to approximately HK$57,078,000 (2013:
HK$23,182,000) and basic loss per share for the year was
HK3.35 cents (2013: HK2.15 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Distribution of server storage, multi-media and
communication products

During the year ended 30 June 2014, distribution of server
storage, multi-media and communication products by
running two principal operating divisions, namely server
solution division and integrated circuit solution division,
was still the major business segment of the Group.

Despite of keen market competition experienced, the
Group will continue to focus and devote our efforts on
improving the performance in this sector according
to our established business plan in (i) adopting more
effective cost control measures; (ii) developing new
product types; (iii) strengthening customer base and (iv)
upgrading the specifications of its product by means of
on-going research and development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Distribution of rice cooker and household electrical
appliances

Starting from the year under review, the Group began to
implement the plan to diversify its business. In November
2013, the Company entered info an agency agreement
with Guangdong Hotor for securing an exclusive sales
agent of Guangdong Hofor in the regions including
Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Africa and South
America in selling and distributing of rice cooker and
household electrical appliances. To this end, the Group
has set up a subsidiary in Singapore to oversee the
sales and distribution operation. Initially, Indonesia is our
first target market and we have invested in a regional
marketing centre in Jakarta selling some 40 kinds of
products. Subject to the performance in the Indonesian
market, the Group will consider to expand the operation
to cover other countries in the Southeast Asia by stage.

Money lending

In May 2014, the Company acquired a subsidiary which
held a money lender licence. The Group has involved in
money lending business immediately affer the acquisition
and expected that this sector could contribute net
cash inflows to the Group. The Group’s loans receivable
balances of approximately HK$17,122,000 as at 30 June
2014 (2013: nil) represented receivables arising from the
money lending business of the Group and carried fixed
rate interests at contfractual rates ranging from 12% to
24% per annum. The granting of these loans has been
approved and monitored by the Company’s executive
directors in charge of the Group’s money lending
operations. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment in securities

To make better use of the cash resources available from
the capital raising exercises carried out during the year,
the Group had utilised a portion of the uncommitted fund
by making investments in a portfolio which comprises
listed and unlisted securities. In the year ended 30 June
2014, a loss of approximately HKS$3,115,000 (2013: nil)
was recorded in this business segment. As at 30 June
2014, the Group held approximately of HK$40,308,000
(2013: nil) in listed securities. The board of the Company
has actively involved in the management of the portfolio
under a prudent policy by not contemplating investments
that carry a high degree of market price volatility and
that may impose financial obligations upon the Group
that it could not reasonably expect to meet.

Looking forward, our management will continue to
seek opportunities in line with itfs approved investing
policy to procure suitable acquisition and investment
opportunities in quoted and unquoted businesses and
will monitor the investments by ensuring that each
investment will offer high growth potential and returns to
create long-term shareholder value.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company
had issued new shares of 260,000,000, 313,820,000 and
627,660,000 respectively in three separate placements
for cash. The total net proceeds of approximately
HK$137,709,000, after deducting placing commission and
other related expenses, was applied towards general

working capital and for financing new investment

opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[EsTawmRk o

In June 2013, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party fo acquire 25,000,000 ordinary shares of British
Pound Sterling ("GBP”) 0.01
approximately 10.13%,

each, representing
in the share capital of MNC
Strategic Investments Plc (formerly known as LZYE
Group Plc) at the consideration of approximately GBP
1,437,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,600,000).
The transaction completed on 3 July 2013 and the
consideration was satisfied by the allotment and
issuance of 210,000,000 new ordinary shares of the

Company issued at HK$0.0836 per new ordinary share.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had net current assets
of HK$80,284,000 (2013: HK$11,985,000) and net assets
of HK$114,205,000 (2013: HK$15,835,000) comprising
total assets of approximately HK$266,483,000 (2013:
HK$134,511,000) and tfotal liabilities of approximately
HK$152,278,000 (2013: HKS$118,676,000) comprising
current liabilities of approximately HK$149,863,000
(2013: HK$118,518,000) and non-current liabilities of
approximately of HK$2,415,000 (2013: HK$158,000).
The Group’s total assets included non-current assets
represented by property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$8,345,000 (2013: HK$4,008,000),
intangible asset of approximately HK$2,000,000 (2013:
nil), deposits of approximately HK$23,607,000 (2013:
nil) and available-for-sale investment of approximately
HK$2,384,000 (2013: nil) as well as current assets of
approximately HK$230,147,000 (2013: HK$130,503,000).
The current ratio, representing by current assets divided
by current liabilities, was 1.54 (2013: 1.10).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEzwmR 2

Total bank deposits and cash as af 30 June 2014 was
approximately HK$42,035,000 (2013: HK$49,328,000)
and were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars ("HKD"),
Chinese Renminbi (*RMB”) and United States Dollars
("USD"). The Group had total short-term borrowings
comprising bank borrowings and other loans of
approximately HK$65,160,000 as at 30 June 2014 (2013:
HK$44,993,000). These borrowings were denominated
in HKD and were subject to inferest at prevailing
commercial lending rates. The gearing ratio, measuring
as the total borrowings over total equity, was 0.57 (2013:
2.84).

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are
of the opinion that, after taking into account of the
present available financial resources and the current
banking and other facilities, the Group has sufficient
fund to finance its operations and to meet the financial
obligations of its business when they fall due.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2014, the banking facilities of the Group
were secured by the fixed deposit of the Company
amounting to approximately HK$20,591,000 (2013:
HK$20,359,000), fixed charge over trade receivables
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$49,225,000 (2013: HK$24,632,000). As at 30 June 2013,
the banking facilities of the Group were also secured by
a personal guarantee executed by a former director of
the Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group does not have any bills
receivables. At 30 June 2013, the Group transferred
bills receivable balances amounting to HK$557,000 to a
financial institution in exchange for cash. The transaction
had been accounted for as collateralised bank
advances.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Company executed a
corporate guarantee to secure banking facilities of the

Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[EsTawmRk o

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are
principally denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. The
management considers that the Group’s exposure fo
USD does not give rise to significant currency risk on the
ground that HKD is pegged to USD. The Group exposes to
currency risk that are denominated in RMB and currently
does not have any hedging policy against RMB. However,
the management monitors the Group’s currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange risk exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have material capital commitment as
at 30 June 2014. (2013: HK$17,556,000).

On 3 June 2014, the Company and Finsoft Corporation
("Finsoft”, together with ifs subsidiaries, the “Finsoft
Group”), a company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
enfered into a cooperation framework agreement (the
"Cooperation Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company and the Finsoft Group propose to
cooperate and explore opportunities in Southeast Asia
Region for several proposed businesses (the "Proposed
Businesses”), and each of the Group and the Finsoft
Group intends to invest not more than HK$10 million to
develop the Proposed Businesses. Details are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2014. The
Cooperation Framework Agreement has been terminated
on 1 September 2014.

The Group has entered intfo a loan agreement with a
borrower (the "PN Borrower”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to subscribe three series of promissory
notes with aggregate face values of approximately
HK$2,730,000. As at 30 June 2014, the Group has
advanced approximately HK$2,400,000 to the PN
Borrower and therefore the Group has committed to
advance approximately HK$330,000 to the PN Borrower.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 12 May 2014, the Company and an independent
third party entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which the Company agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of United Eagle
Finance Limited ("United Eagle”) for a consideration of
HK$2,000,000. The acquisition was completed on the
same day. Af the completion date, United Eagle had
not commenced its business and had only held the
money lender licence. Accordingly, this acquisition was
accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities as
acquisifion of the share capital of United Eagle did not
constitute a business.

Other than the above mentioned acquisition, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
aoffiliated companies carried out by the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2014.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 49 employees as at 30 June 2014 (2013:
39). They were remunerated according to the prevailing
manpower conditions and individual performance. There
was no change on the staff policy during the year.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had a number of pending
litigations and had recognized a provision amounting
to approximately HK$43,892,000 (2013: HK$43,892,000)
in respect of the disputed claims against the Company.
Details are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events affer the end of the reporting
period of the Group are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 45 to 48.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2014.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
by operating segment is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 196. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipments
of the Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
49 and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. As at 30 June 2014, the Company had no
reserve available for cash distribution.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-laws”) or the laws
of Bermuda in relation fto issues of new shares by the
Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the
Group is set up by the Executive Directors on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
based on recommendations from the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the
responsibilities of the Directors, the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of turnover and purchases attributable
fo the Group’s major customers and suppliers for the
year are as follows:

Turnover
- The largest customer 37.8%
- Five largest customers combined 88.7%
Purchases
- The largest supplier 60.4%
- Five largest suppliers combined 99.0%

Included in the top five largest suppliers and customers
of the Group is a deemed connected person, namely
AVT International Limited ("AVT International”). AVT
International is indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Lee Bing
Kwong, whose spouse, Ms. Lo Yuen Lai was a former
Director in the last 12 months.

Apart from AVT International, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in any
of the above customers or suppliers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the *Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 27 June 2011,
pursuant to which the Board may grant options to any
employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers, customers
of the Group and any other person or company who
has contributed or may contribute to the development
and growth of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company at any price which is at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
for the 5 tfrading days immediately preceding the date of
the grant of the options; and (i) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme
and outstanding as at 30 June 2014 are set out in note
43(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ke Jun Xiang
(retired and re-elected at the annual general meeting
held on 30 December 2013)

Mr. Wilson Wong
(appointed on 12 August 2014)

Ms. Lo Yuen Chung

Mr. Fu Daoding

Mr. Rao Guimin
(appointed on 3 January 2014 and resigned on
1 June 2014)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Yeung Tuen, Richard
(retired and re-elected at the annual general meeting
held on 30 December 2013)

Mr. Li Chung Kai, Philip

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung
(retired and re-elected at the annual general meeting
held on 30 December 2013)

Mr. Chan Siu Kay

Mr. Choi Chin Yu

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ms. Lo Yuen
Chung. Mr. Li Chung Kai, Philip and Mr. Choi Chin Yu
shall retire by rotation in accordance with the Bye-law
99(1), while Mr. Wilson Wong shall retire in accordance
the Bye-law 102(B). All of them, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior

management of the Company are set out on pages 38 o
47.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered, or proposed to enter
info a service confract with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which any of
the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As at 30 June 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive officer (*Chief Executive
Officer”) of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)(the "SFO")) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

REATRGREARRBZEFR

Number of ordinary shares held as at 30 June 2014
RZB-MEXA=TRAEZEERYA

Number of
underlying Personal/
shares of beneficial ~ Corporate

Name of Director Nofe The Company interest interest
NG| BA/

2R i3 RERHEA BiER EEER
Mr. Ke Jun Xiang 1 12,000,000 - 132,400,000
mgEAxE
Ms. Lo Yuen Chung 2 7,000,000 = =
ERGZL
Mr. Chow Yeung

Tuen, Richard 2 7,000,000 200,000 =
EARE
Mr. Li Chung

Kai, Philip 2 5,000,000 S S
TEEE
Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung 2 9,000,000 1 s
PEHLE
Mr. Chan Siu Kay 2 9,000,000 S =
REEEE
Nofes:

1. Mr. Ke Jun Xiang held 12,000,000 underlying ordinary shares
of the Company pursuant tfo share options granted by the
Company. Mr. Ke also wholly owned Trade Honour Limited,
Global Work Management Limited and Ample Key Limited,
which held 50,900,000, 1,500,000 and 80,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively. His spouse, Ms. Wang
Jian Ping, wholly owned State Thrive Limited and Shine Fill
Limited, which held 62,920,000 and 62,920,000 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Ke
was deemed to have fotal interests in 270,240,000 ordinary
shares of the Company.

Mr. Ke has charged 80,000,000 ordinary shares which are
held by Ample Key Limited to Universe Asia Finance Limited,
an authorised institution as defined in the Money Lender
Ordinance, as security for a loan facility fo Mr. Ke.

2. Each of these directors respectively held underlying ordinary
shares of the Company pursuant to share options granted
by the Company.

Approximate

percenfage

Family Other of issued
interest interest Total share capital
HERTRA

R At axt ZHHBEAL
125,840,000 - 270,240,000 10.76%
- - 7,000,000 0.27%

- - 7,200,000 0.28%

= = 5,000,000 0.19%

- - 9,000,001 0.35%

- - 9,000,000 0.35%

minf
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12,000,000 &< A Rl A0 B & B ° A7 £ £ T8
2 & HABTrade Honour Limited * Global
Work Management Limited&kAmple Key
Limited » It = @2 &% Bl #5850,900,0008% -
1,500,0008% % 80,000,000/ 7~ 2 =) & B A o 47
REZRBEEFZ LT 2EEBState Thrive
Limited & Shine Fill Limited » tb ™ &2 85 Bl
#7%662,920,000/ K 62,920,0008 4 2 8 & B
BR o Bt - 175 £ WARE S & $£270,240,000
BAEARATEBR 2 EH -
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 30 June 2014, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions in which they were deemed or taken
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, fo be
entered in the register referred to therein or pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed under the section ‘Interests of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer” above, at no
fime during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party fo any arrangements to enable the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
fo acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. None of the Directors or Chief Executive
Officer of the Company or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 30 June 2014, substantial shareholders of the
Company and other persons (other than the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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REATRGREARRBZEFR

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares held as at 30 June 2014
RIB-OEXAZtRAEZEERYE

Ms. Wang Jian Ping wholly owned State Thrive Limited and
Shine Fill Limited, which held 62,920,000 and 62,920,000
ordinary shares of the Company respectively. Her spouse,
Mr. Ke Jun Xiang held 12,000,000 underlying ordinary shares
of the Company pursuant to share options granted by the
Company and wholly owned Trade Honour Limited, Global
Work Management Limited and Ample Key Limited, which
held 50,900,000, 1,500,000 and 80,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company respectively. Accordingly, Ms. Wang was
deemed fo have total interests in 270,240,000 ordinary
shares of the Company.

Mr. Ke has charged 80,000,000 ordinary shares which are
held by Ample Key Limited to Universe Asia Finance Limited
an authorised institution as defined in the Money Leader
Ordinance, as security for a loan facility fo Mr. Ke.

Number of Approximate

underlying Personal/ percentage

shares of beneficial Corporate Family Other of issued

Name of Shareholder ~ Nofe the Company interest interest interest interests Total share capital

KRF BA/ HERTRE

RE#E/ 28 Mt HERGEA Bigh EE R FHER Hipgs it ZHHEAKL

Ms. Wang Jian Ping 1 12,000,000 - 125,840,000 132,400,000 - 270,240,000 10.76%
Igfat

State Thrive Limited ] - 62,920,000 - - - 62,920,000 2.50%

Shine Fill Limifed 1 - 62,920,000 - - - 62,920,000 2.50%

Mr. Yan Xiaobei 2 - - 125,840,000 - - 125,840,000 5.01%
U\ 3

Ever Asset Limited 2 - - - - 125,840,000 125,840,000 5.01%

Notes: o2

T@EFE L+ 2 & EAHState Thrive Limited
EShine Fill Limited kBB QA2 BlEHE
62,920,0008% }.62,920,0008% 4~ A 7] & B Ig °
ITZET2BRBALAEEREARAREZ
B8 IR #E 45781 2,000,000/ 7~ A B HHEA & R AR -
JR& & FEHTrade Honour Limited + Global
Work Management Limited&kAmple Key
Limited » It = @2 &% Bll#%5 850,900,000 -
1,500,0008% % 80,000,000 &~ A A1 i@ - B
b &z REERESE & 270,240,000 48 2
RAIEBRZELS -

&£ B HAMple Key LimitedidF 2
80,000,000 ZBRIKAFEFDMABEER
AR (BE ARG FTE R ZRAHE) UERM
FEEBR-—EERREZEKER -

Mr. Yan Xiabei wholly owned Ever Asset Limited, which held 2. BNt 4 2B #EBEver Asset Limited (B

an effective interest in 125,840,000 ordinary shares of the i# i@ ] BState Thrive Limited&Shine Fill

Company by way of security under share pledges from Limitedz & 1 ## 52 = 3K # 7£125,840,0008% A<

State Thrive Limited and Shine Fill Limited. Accordingly he ATEBERTEESEER) - Atk BBEEW

was deemed to have interest in 125,840,000 ordinary shares ) RIEHEE 125,840,000 A AT EBR 2EE
e

of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, the
Company was not notified by any persons (other
than the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 or Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required fo be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Except for share options granted as disclosed in the
section “Share Option Scheme”, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
other similar rights as at 30 June 2014 and there had
been no exercise of convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

A former director of the Company, Ms. Lo Yuen Lai ("Ms.
Lo"). is a sister of Ms. Lo Yuen Chung and her spouse
is a director and beneficial owner of AVT International
which is engaged in distribution of electronic products.
Ms. Lo is considered to have interests in business which
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.
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In light of the current composition of the Board, Ms.
Lo Yuen Chung does not have domination over the
Board’s decisions relating to the transactions with AVT
International. As all the Directors are fully aware of
and have been discharging their fiduciary duty to the
Company, the Group was capable of carrying on ifs
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
said competing business during the year ended 30 June
2014.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associates was inferested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, which competes or was
likely to compete, whether directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group as at 30 June 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of material fransactions with related parties and
connected persons conducted during the year are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The transactions regarding purchases and sales between
AVTE Company Limited ("AVTE"), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and AVT International
as disclosed in note 44(b)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements constituted confinued connected
tfransactions (the "CCT") under predecessor Chapter
14A (the "Predecessor Chapter 14A") of the Listing Rules
(which has been superceded by a new Chapter T4A,
effective for connected transactions entered into after 1
July 2014).

On 25 November 2010, AVTE and AVT International
entered into a master agreement in respect of the
purchases and sales transactions and it was approved
at the special general meeting held on 12 January 2011
(the “Master Agreement”). On 10 April 2012, the parties
entered into the 1st supplemental master agreement,
which was approved at the special general meeting
held on 10 May 2012, to revise the annual caps for the
purchase transactions for the two financial years ended
30 June 2012 and 2013.
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On 26 April 2013, AVTE and AVT Infernational entered
info another supplemental master agreement (the *2nd
Supplemental Master Agreement”), inter alia, to extend
the term of the Master Agreement, which would have
expired on 30 June 2013, for a further period of two
financial years ending 30 June 2014 and 2015 subject to
new annual caps for purchases and sales transactions of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$35,000,000 respectively in both
years. The 2nd Supplemental Master Agreement was
approved at the special general meeting held on 11 July
2013.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Predecessor Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the CCT during the year ended
30 June 2014 and confirmed that they had been entered
into:

1. in the ordinary course and usual course of business
of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the Master Agreement and the
2nd Supplemental Master Agreement on ferms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements in accordance
with the Predecessor Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the amounts in
respect of the CCT mentioned above had not exceeded
the annual caps for the transactions as the aggregate
annual values of purchases and sales transactions
were approximately HK$92,925,000 and HK$34,961,000
respectively while the maximum aggregate annual
values for purchases and sales fransactions in
accordance with the 2nd Supplemental Master
Agreement were HK$100,000,000 and HK$35,000,000
respectively.
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The Company has also received a comfort leftter from
the auditor of the Company in respect of the CCT which
states that:

1. the above transactions have been approved by the
Directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, the transactions have been
carried out in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

3. the above transactions have been entered into
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

4. the aggregate annual amounts of the transactions
have not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual values disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 14 June 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2014 were audited by Messrs. Graham
H.Y. Chan & Co. A resolution will be submit to the
forthcoming annual general meeting fo re-appoint
Messrs. Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ke Jun Xiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board is committed to maintaining good standard
of corporate governance practices at all times and
acknowledges that good corporate governance helps
the Company safeguard the interests of its shareholders
(the “Shareholders”) and enhance the performance of
the Group.

The Company has applied the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") sefting out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code on
corporate governance practices and has consistently
made efforts to comply fully with all code provisions of
the CG Code during the year ended 30 June 2014 except
for the deviations specified with considered reasons as
explained in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all of the Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June
2014.

The Model Code also applies to senior management of
the Group.

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company
had made certain amendments as house-keeping
improvement to the Bye-laws. The change did not affect
the substance of the Bye-laws in any material way.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors
(the "EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (the "NEDs”) and

three Independent Non-executive Directors (the "INEDs").

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly fo
ensure fthat it has a good balance of expertise, skills
and experience which can meet the requirements of the
Group’s business.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on
pages 38 to 40.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2014, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are separate and not performed by the same individual
in accordance with CG Code provision A.2.1.

The Chairman provides leadership to the Board and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
corporate development, whereas the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the day-to-day management,
policy making and corporate management functions as

well as formulating strategies for the Group.

On 12 August 2014, the incumbent Chief Executive Officer
resigned from the position and was reassigned as the
General Manager of the Company. The Board is in the
course of identifying a suitable candidate as the new
Chief Executive Officer. In the meantime, the Chairman
is doubling up as Chief Executive Officer on a temporary

basis.
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Non-executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors

The NEDs and the INEDs of the Company provide a wide
range of expertise and experience as well as checks
and balances to safeguard the inferests of the Group
and the Shareholders. Their participation in the Board
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of inferest and
management process to ensure that the interests of the
Shareholders have been duly considered.

Under the Listing Rules, Rule 3.10(1) requires the Board
must include at least three INEDs and rule 3.10A
stipulates at least one-third of the Board must be
represented by the INEDs. These requirements were fully
complied with throughout the year ended 30 June 2014.
Currently, three out of total nine Directors on the Board
are the INEDs. The Board has received from each of the
INEDs an annual confirmation of their independence and
considers that all of them are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In addition, Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung has been appointed as
an INED since on September 2004 and has served on the
Board for more than 9 years. A resolution was passed by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2013 to
re-elect Mr. Kwok as an INED of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment
of the Directors. After having considered the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee, the
Chairman will take charge in identifying appropriate
candidate to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
fo the Board. The Chairman will propose the qualified
candidate to the Board for consideration which will
approve the appointment based on the suitability and
qualification of the candidate.

The NEDs and the INEDs of the Company are appoinfed
for specific terms in accordance with the CG Code
provision A.4.1.
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Under CG Code provision A.4.2, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
refirement by rotafion at least once every three years. Bye-
law 99(1) of the Company stipulates that the Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-law 102(B) of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development fo develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their conftribution info the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors are
committed fo complying with code provision A.6.5 of the
CG Code which came on Directors’ training. In general,
the types of training includes: (A) aftending seminar(s)
or training session(s) and (B) reading newspapers,
journals and updates relating to the Company’s business
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements efc.

All Directors, except Mr. Rao Guimin (who did not report
due fo his short period as a director of the Company),
have provided a record of fraining of continuous
professional development they received for the financial
year ended 30 June 2014 and a summary of which is set

out below:
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Directors Type of training #E% EFIE R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Ke jun Xiang B FI&ALEE

Ms. Lo Yuen Chung B Exnkxzzt

Mr. Fu Daoding B [ET%X&E

Non-Executive Directors HHITESE

Mr. Chow Yeung Tuen, Richard B @#IEHEE

Mr. Li Chung Kai, Philip B EFMEEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIHTESE

Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung B EPREM AL B
Mr. Chan Siu Kay A BRBEEE

Mr. Choi Chin Yu B ERFEE B
RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND EEREEEZERE
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of ZEEZSEAEHRRBECEEM BREREZ2Z
leadership, development of sound business strategies, %%kl - EBZRESREEER » BERWM
availability of adequate capital and managerial ZXBEE BN ABEZRRZ2=HEME
resources to implement the business strategies adopted, BEBEEFTEBEREERER -2HEEC
adequacy of systems of financial and internal controls HEZEEXFELEHETEREBEE  EZ=EK
and conduct of business in conformity with applicable EURERZ BEFFETE -

laws and regulations. All Directors have made full and

active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the

Board has always acted in the best inferests of the Group.

The EDs and the senior management are delegated #HITEERSRATEBREZE2QATRKE I
with respective levels of authorities with regard to FERANNEEL  REBZRERIEZET -
key corporate strategy and policy and contractual HHEEEESAEEAEEE MEMAE
commitments whilst the middle management is EE&ETEHHEEK -

responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group

with department heads responsible for different aspects

of the business.
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BOARD MEETINGS

For all Board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full fo all
Directors in advance. For regular Board meetings, notice
of at least 14 days is given to all Directors pursuant to CG
code provision A.1.3. For other Board meetings, notice
of at least 3 days is given before the intended date of
meeting.

Each Director has separate and independent access to
the Group’s management to acquire more information
and fo make further enquires if necessary. The Directors
can aftend meetings in person or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. Minutes are prepared to keep
record of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees. The table
below sets out the membership information of these
commifttees on which each Board member serves:

Director
=

MEALE
gLt
RAEEE
BRFAL

Mr. Ke Jun Xiang
Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung
Mr. Chan Siu Kay
Mr. Choi Chin Yu

Notes:

C: Chairman
M: Member
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee in
March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the CG Code and its major
roles and functions are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations fo the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of the INEDs; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee
in December 2010 with writften ferms of reference in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the CG Code
and its major roles and functions are:

1. fo make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and fransparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
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Pursuant to CG code provision B.1.5, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (comprising the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer) by band for the
year ended 30 June 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

— O O OO O v

Further particulars relating to Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer's emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required fo be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set outf in notes
18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was formed in
March 2000. A set of written terms of reference was
adopted by the Board and the contents of which are in
compliance with the relevant provisions of the CG Code.
Each member of the committee has unrestricted access
to the Group’s auditor and the management of the
Company.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
auditor, to approve their remuneration and terms of
engagement, and any questions of regarding their
resignation or dismissal;

2. to discuss with the auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit;

3. to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board;

4. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim results and final audit, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss;
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5. to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices; and

6. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system.

During the year, the Audit Committee only held one
meeting with the Company’s external auditor. This
constitutes a deviation from CG code provision C.3.3(e)
(i). The Company has put effort to arrange another
meeting during the year. However, owing to conflicting
business schedule, another meeting between the Audit
Committee and the Company’s external auditor could
not be held until July 2014.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT THE MEETINGS
OF THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The number of meetings of the Board and Board
committees and general meetings held during the year
ended 30 June 2014 and attendance by the Directors are
set out in the table below:

Note
Wit

No. of meetings held during BE-Z-MERA=TALEE

the year ended 30 June 2014 RETZEERY

Executive Directors HiEZ

Mr. ke Jun Xiang AkAEE

Ms. Lo Yuen Chung Enkat

Mr. Fu Daoding NETRA

Mr. Rao Guimin BERLE 1

Non-execufive Directors FHTEE

Mr. Chow Yeung Tuen, Richard PERxE 2

Mr. Li Chung Kai, Philip EYNSid

Independent Non-executive Directors BU#87EZ

Mr. Kwok Yam Sheung Bliob:3

Mr. Chan Siu Kay REELE

Mr. Choi Chin Yu BRFRE

Nofes:

1. Six board meetings and one general meeting were held

during his tenure from 3 January 2014 to 1 June 2014.

2. Mr. Chow Yueng Tuen, Richard was not able to attend any of
the general meetings held during the year due to conflicting
business schedule. This constitutes a deviation from CG
code provision A.6.7.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
integrity of the Group’s financial informatfion and the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of infernal controls
and risk management processes. In this context, the
Board has established a clear organisational structure
with appropriate delegation of responsibility to satisfy
changing business needs while managing risks that are
critical to the achievement of business objectives.

The Board has adopted a set of written manuals for the
disclosure of information, internal control procedures and
the delineation of responsibilities of the Board and Board
committees since May 2008. Management is responsible
to conduct these control procedures and monitors risk
and effectiveness of the corresponding internal controls.

The Company has commissioned ongoing review on
the Group’s internal control system and operational
procedures through the Audit Committee. During the year
ended 30 June 2014, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and is satisfied that the internal
control system within the Group is effective.

Where issues are idenfified in the course of review, the
Company has sought to, and will confinue to seek fo,
implement remedial measures so as to ensure that
systems are, or will promptly be put, in place to enable
the Company fo have better internal controls, and hence
ability to ensure compliance of its financial reporting and
other obligations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board considers
that in preparing the financial statements, the Group has
applied the appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and made judgements or estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with
the applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The Board, having made appropriate enquiries, is of the
view that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to
adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the

financial statements.

AUDITOR’S REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES
AND REMUNERATION

The responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 42 to 44.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the fees paid to them
in respect of services rendered to the Group amounted to
approximately HK$862,000, of which a sum of HK$806,000
was paid for auditing services and of HK$56,000
for non-auditing services. The non-auditing services
comprised primarily of review of CCT, tax compliance and
other related services.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board is committed to providing the Shareholders
with a clear and complete picture of the financial
information of the Group by way of publication of interim
and annual reports. Apart from receiving circulars, nofices
and financial reports, the Shareholders may also choose
to log on our website (www.cil479.com.hk) to access
more corporate information and the constitutional
documents of the Company.

The Company encourages partficipation of the
Shareholders at every general meeting to stay informed
of the Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman himself
takes the chair in general meetings to ensure that the
Shareholders’ views are communicated fo the Board. The
general meetings provide a useful forum to exchange
views with the Board.
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Pursuant fo CG code provision E.1.2, the chairmen of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting
and should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly
appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should
be available o answer questions at the annual general
meeting.

At the AGM of the Company held on 30 December 2013,
Mr. Kwok Yam Shueng, who was the chairman of the
Remuneration Commifttee and Mr. Chan Siu Kay, who
was the chairman of the Audit Committee, were unable
fo aftend due to conflicting business schedule. However,
Mr. Ke Jun Xiang, the chairman of the Company and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, took the chair
of that meeting. Being a member of the Remuneration
Committee, he was also available to answer any question
in this respect. Apart from the absence of Mr. Chan Siu
Kay, no other member of the Audit Committee was able to
attend the meeting due to their other engagements.

The Company keeps the Shareholders informed of
the procedures for voting by poll in all circulars to the
Shareholders which are from time fo time despatched
fo them together with notfices of general meetings of
the Company. The Company has taken steps to ensure
compliance with the requirements about voting by poll
contfained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional
documents of the Company. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the
website of the Company shortly after the meetings.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KE Jun Xiang, aged 51, joined the Company in August
1999 and has been the Chairman of the Company since
July 2003. Mr. Ke graduated from Zhongshan University
majoring in business management. He had joined China
Huitong Group of Companies as the person-in-charge of
the Guangzhou Office and was appointed as the legal
representative and general manager of the Guandong
Company of China Huitong Group of Companies in 1992,

Mr. Wilson WONG, aged 22, joined the Company
on 12 August 2014 and has been appointed as the
Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr. Wong received
a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
from Monash University, Australia in 2013 and is a
young entrepreneur running businesses of property
development, beverage and catering and financial
investment in Australia and Hong Kong. In 2012, he
established CoreNex Property Group Pty Ltd. and 5 Solars
Restaurant in Australia. Mr. Wong is currently an executive
director of Everland Group Holding Ltd. He is a son of Mr.
Ke Jun Xiang.

Ms. LO Yuen Chung, aged 55, joined the Company in
January 2012. She has over 6 years of experience in
frading business in Hong Kong and in the Mainland
China, including business related to electronics products
and is the sister of Ms. Lo Yuen Lai, a former director and
former deputy chairman of the Company.

Mr. FU Daoding, aged 41, joined the Company in
February 2013. Mr. Fu has over 19 years of experience in
the banking sector in the Mainland China. He graduated
from the Hunan Institute of Finance and Economics
majoring in finance and is also a postgraduate of the
Guangdong Academy of Social Sciences majoring in

economics.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOW Yeung Tuen, Richard, aged 57, joined the
Company in April 2010. Mr. Chow is a Certified Public
Accountant with over 25 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and taxation. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of
East Asia, Macau. Mr. Chow is also a Barrister of England
and Wales.

Mr. LI Chung Kai Philip, aged 58, joined the Company
in March 2012. Mr. Li has over 33 years of experience
in apparel and garment industry in Hong Kong and
in the Mainland China. He obtained a diploma in
Programming Technology from the Conftrol Data Institute,
Toronto, Ontario, Canada and a diploma in Business
Administration from the Seneca College of Applied Arts
and Technology, Toronto, Ontario, Canada.
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Mr. KWOK Yam Sheung, aged 67, joined the Company
in September 2004. Mr. Kwok is a professional corporate
secretary and a corporate management consultant. He is
a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. He has extensive experience in
corporate management.

Mr. CHAN Siu Kay, aged 55, joined the Company in
April 2010. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Strathclyde in the
United Kingdom and a Master Degree in Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Cerfified Public Accountant of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Chan has
gained over 26 years of experience in audit, accounting,
taxation, corporate finance and IPO from working in
an infernational audit firm and a number of listed

companies.

Mr. CHOI Chin Yu, aged 36, joined the Company in August
2012. He has over 14 years of experience in the computer
software sector in Hong Kong.
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GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LEE Tin Yau, Eugene, aged 42, joined the Company in
April 2013 as Chief Executive Officer and has reassigned
as the General Manager since 12 August 2014. Mr.
Lee has over 19 years of experience in corporate
finance, capital markets and principal investments in
Hong Kong. the Mainland China, Japan and South-
east Asia countries. He has been specializing in assets
management, corporate financing, mergers, acquisitions
and takeovers. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Science in
electrical engineering from the University of Pennsylvania.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHIU King Hoi, Anthony, aged 54, joined the Company
in October 1997. He is also the financial controller of
the Company. Mr. Chiu holds a Bachelor Degree of
Commerce in Accounting and a Master Degree of
Business in Electronic Commerce. He is a fellow member
of CPA Australia and a Certified Public Accountant of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chiu has over 20 years of work experience in auditing
and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, he had

held senior financial positions in various listed companies

in Hong Kong.
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HONG KONG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CIL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
CIL Holdings Limited (the *Company”) and its subsidiaries
(tfogether, the "Group”) set out on pages 45 to 195,
which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparafion of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

GRAHAM H.Y. CHAN & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
tfo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order fo design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accountfing
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2014 and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 30 September 2014
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Gains arising from written back of
loan and other payables

Fair value losses on investments at
fair value through profit or loss, net

Share-based payment expenses
Other administrative expenses
Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss
for the year:
lfem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of an
available-for-sale Investment

Total comprehensive loss for
the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for
the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

Loss per share for loss attributable

to owners of the Company:
- Basic

- Diluted

Details of dividend payable to owners of the Company

are set out in note 17.

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HE=—ZF—WFENF=+HIFE

Note
M 5E

2
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EEERAE
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—FERER

AATREBAEEER
ZERESR:
—EK
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10

11

13

12

13

14

23

15

16

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FET
464,057 382,834
(447,646) (365,116)
16,411 17,718
2,230 1.211
1.322 -
(2.976) =
E (7.925)
(69.169) (31,162)
(2,045) (882)
(54.227) (21,040)
(2.652) (1.418)
(56.879) (22,458)
a6) -
(56.895) (22,458)
(57.078) (23.182)
199 724
(56,879) (22,458)
(57.094) (23,182)
199 724
(56,895) (22,458)

(3.35) cents fli (2.15) cents 1l
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At 30 June 2014 R=-ZFE—WFXA=+H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Deposits

Available-for-sale investment

Current assets

Inventories

Loans receivable

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged fixed deposit

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals, deposits received
and other payables
Tax payable
Interest-bearing borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Note
B =

20
21
27
23

24

25

26

27

28

29
30

31

32

33

SERBRR R

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FTExT
8,345 4,008
2,000 =
23,607 =
2,384 =
36,336 4,008
23,633 24,199
40,709 =
69,256 46,997
14,206 9,979
40,308 =
20,591 20,359
21,444 28,969
230,147 130,503
16,574 13,932
66,818 58,858
1,311 735
65,160 44,993
149,863 118,518
80,284 11,985
116,620 15,993
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  #R& M #A R &

At 30 June 2014 R=-ZF—WFXA=1H

2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E-=F
Note HK$’ 000 HK$* 000
B = FHEx FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFBEAE 34 2,415 158
Net assets EERE 114,205 15,835
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Issued capital 2ETRAK 35 25,106 10,992
Reserves e 85,713 1,656
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAELESR
of the Company 110,819 12,648
Non-controlling interests IR ER 3,386 3,187
Total equity AR 114,205 15,835

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 452 195B 2R M BHRRELESTEN =
195 were approved and authorised for issue by the board Z—MFAA=+HHERKENE AT
of directors on 30 September 2014 and are signed on its S EBRKEE .

behalf by:

Ke Jun Xiang Fu Daoding
Lok HET
Director Director

= EZ
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 30 June 2014 R=-ZFE—WFXA=+H

BRI R

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y HEBEREE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBARZRE
Deposits "

Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FE UMt B A B 7R IE
Loans receivable BWER
Prepayments, deposits and EARE B2k

other receivables H i fE IR R 1B
Pledged fixed deposit 2 E TR
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFERRSE

Current liabilities RBEE

Accruals, deposits received EETEA BERiEs
and other payables R H Ath FE A4 5% 18
Interest-bearing borrowings FEBE

Due to a subsidiary

FEAS — R 2 RFK0R

Net current assets REEEFE
Net assets EERE
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Issued capital 2ETRAK
Reserves/(deficiency) & (B4
Total equity EREE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 September 2014 and are signed on its

behalf by:

2014 2013
—E-WE —E—=F

Note HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
Fft & FHT FTExT
20 24 _
22 5,360 3,360
27 23,607 =
28,991 3,360

22 72,616 23,393
25 23,587 =
27 8,679 7.780
29 20,591 20,359
30 14,286 27.546
139,759 79.078

32 62,264 56,617
33 17.688 18,068
22 8 10
79,960 74,695

59,799 4,383

88,790 7.743

35 25,106 10,992
36 63,684 (3,249)
88,790 7.743

EREEEN-E—NFAAZTHMLERE

BT AETIHESARESE:

Ke Jun Xiang
&
Director

EE

Fu Daoding
BT
Director

EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SZERm2BR

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

Attributable fo owners of the Company

KARREARE
Available-
Share- forsale
based  investment Non-
Issued Share Capifal ~ payment  revaluation Accumulated controling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Tofol inferests Total
HRB  ThEE
BE®Z R&
BRARE  ROEE  EARE  AERE  EfRE  BEEE gt FERER fi
Note HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Hi TEL TR TE7 TE7 TE7 TEn TEn Tén TEL
AT July 2012 W-5-2EtE-H 10492 119,339 (100) 5,759 - (121.28) 8,206 2,463 10669
(lossproftforheyeor  Er0(E8) /%A - . AL AN ) o (s
Totol comprehensive ERRE(BR) /hasEE
(loss)/income
for the year - - - - - (23182) (23182) 14 (2458)
Tramsactions with Owners ~ #EEA 2R3
Issue of shares Rff 35(1) 500 19,500 20,000 20,000
Less: share issue expenses i © RARARR - (30 - - (301) (301)
Shore-oosed payment HRHAEEZARER
expenses 43(b) - - 1925 - - 1925 1925
Forfeitue of share opfions R AIER & (1730) - 1730 - - -
At 30 June 2013 and HZZ-ZERAZTRR
1July 2013 “R-ZELE-H 10992 138,538 (100) 11954 - (148736) 12,648 3187 15,835
(lossfpoftforhe yeor  Er0(E8) /%A - - - : - M) ) 9 (E6M)
Other comprehensive loss ~ FMEH2ERE:
for the year:
Chonges infoirvalue o~ THEEREZATESD
an avalableforsole
invesfment PA] - - - (18) (16) (19)
Total comprehensive Fh2E(BE) MasE
(loss)/income
for the year - - - - (e (61018 (57.09%) 19 (56.8%)
Transactions with Owners ~ £EEA 2% 8
Issue of shares Y
- for cash -NERES 35(i) 12014 130,288 - 142,302 142,302
- for acquision of -HHBLEEERE
held-orfrading
invesfments 3(i) 2100 15,456 - - - - 17,506 - 17,556
less:share issue expenses - REBARER (4.593) - - (4593) - (4593)
Forfeiure of share options R K& - (1.486) 1,486 - - -
At 30 June 2014 H-E-BERA=TA 25,100 219,689 (100) 10468 (16)  (04328) 110819 3,386 114,205
.‘“ y *
o . A o
~ — o 4 J
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HRERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014 HE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

2014 2013
—E-MNF —E—=F
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5E FEx FERT
Cash flows from operating activities R&EFBH 2 RESRE
Loss before taxation BRBE Al & 1B (54,227) (21,040)
Adjustments for: BT YR BEIE LA
Interest income FIE WA 10 (320) (289)
Finance costs & B A 12 2,045 882
Depreciation e 1,901 787
Gains arising from written back BEERREMES
of loan and other payables REEEZKE 11 (1.322) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  #ER
plant and equipment BBz W& (23) =
Fair value losses on investments at  RAFEF ABHZ
fair value through profit REZ2 ATV EEBEFHE
or loss, net 13 2,976 -
Share-based payment expenses DRHpHER
PASEN: b3 43(b) - 7.925
Operating loss before working EEESEEA
capital changes ZREEBE (48,970) (11,735)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and ERESERREE
bills receivables (g m) H (22.259) 5,699
Increase in loans receivable FE W & SR N (40,709) -
Increase in investments at fair RAFETAER
value through profit or loss ZIREZM (25.728) -
Increase in prepayments, deposits ~ FETFIE » &R HAitb
and other receivables FE W R TE 4E BN (23,694) (2.602)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R 4 /7 (&) 566 (5.430)
Increase/(decrease) in trade ENEZERR  EBTEA -
payables, accruals, other HihEARER
payables and deposits received BliReE M ) 10,944 (2,555)
Decrease in due to a related party — FE{FBIHE S FIBR D - (1,706)
Cash used in operations REMARSE (149.850) (18,329)
Interest paid BHAE (1,576) (742)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund/(paid) ¥3REE (B 1) BEBFEH 181 81
Net cash used in operating REEBA

activities 2HEBE (151,245) (19,252)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #REHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZE=F—[ENF=1HIFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$” 000
Bt = FTHET FHExT
Cash flows from investing activities BREZEBZBREHRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE HEREZE
equipment (6.415) (3.898)
Deposits paid for proposed ENEZEREEZRS
acquisitions 27 (4,609) (7.000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZ - HER R1E
plant and equipment Z B RIE 200 -
Cash flows arising from acquisition WE—EHBATEE
of a subsidiary ZHRERE 37(a) (2.000) -
Purchase of an available-for-sale BEUHEERE
investment (1.620) =
Increase in pledged fixed deposit  BIRHEEREFRIEM (232) (151)
Interest received 2 A 320 289
Net cash used in investing activities REZFEBFIAZRESFHE (14,356) (10,760)
Cash flows from financing activities MEZFEBH2RERE
Net increase in factoring loan EEEREMFEE 15,808 3,368
Net increase in other bank HiRTEEEMFE
borrowings 4,739 606
New other loans raised FEEMER 7,000 =
Repayment of other loans BEAMER (7,000) -
Proceed from placement of new AWRREMES
shares for cash R0 2 S FRIE 35 142,302 20,000
Share issue expenses RMBEITHEX (4,593) (301)
Net cash from financing activities ®EFBMEZRELFHE 158,256 23,673
Net decrease in cash and cash ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B
equivalents D (7.345) (6.339)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNzRERERS
beginning of year £E1ER 28,789 35,128
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRZESRRS
end of year Z£EEE 21,444 28,789
Represented by: Bp -
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRE 21,444 28,969
Bank overdraft (note 33) RITEX (B7L33) - (180)

21,444 28,789
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %3 R Miat

For the year ended 30 June 2014 B ZE=—F—ENA=+HILEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (*HKD"), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
otherwise indicated.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22(d).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretation ("“new and revised HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") which are effective for
annual periods beginning from 1 July 2013.

ATEH

AAARERERTMRT BB ERE
EAT ERAREBBARSFHERD
ATHRFL) £ - KA ZEMPER
REBEEWG 2 DREHIAT
ER ] —EHE -

REVBRBRLBT (BT 25 mE
ATRBARRZNEEY - REEERE
I MERECHEERBANTAE -

KRB ZETEXBHREER - XD T E
ZEMBEL R 2 ETBEZHCHNMFE22(d) °

FE R #a] R AEIEE] 2 B HEME
wmEEL

RAFE  ZAEEERATIIREEE
MAg ((BASFHMAE]) BEALR =2
—ZFtA-RARBzFERBERZH
I RABIERT 2 R~ BRI R 2B (HAT R
RETEBUBMEED D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 #& 3 &R Mzt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB KRELER (BFTA)

HKFRS T (Amendments)

BB RELENER (BT
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB BRE SB75% BETA)
HKFRS 10

BB BRELEREI05R

HKFRS 11
EEBREENER

HKFRS 12

BBMBHELEREI25
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

ERBMBREERE105 -
ERBMBHREENEIIRR
ERMBREEIE125 (BT )

HKFRS 13

BB BRELERNE135R

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

EEERE19N (ZF— —F&EBF)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
BB ERE2R (22— —F KB

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
BBETERE28 (=T — —FEB)
HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

B8 (AR EREREZES)
—REE205

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

FE R #T ] RGBT 2 B HEM
BEEA (&)

Annual Improvemenfs to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
ERMBREEN-ZZNFE-ZT——F
B2 FEBE

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Government Loans

BHRRMEBUBEREEL -BFER

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

KE-BHELHEEHESHNEE

Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRE

Joint Arrangements

BERH

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

REMERER ZIRE

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition Guidance

FENHEREK R THERRAMERES
ZiEE  BEES

Fair Value Measurement

AFEFTE

Employee Benefits

EEEA

Separate Financial Statements

B MR E

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

RERBERNRAIREE L

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine

BRBSREER R ZHBRBAE

Except as described below, the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

BRT CAraiE b - RAFERE AR k&
B 2EBNBRELENEAEBBEAR
BAEFEZHBERRERMRRR, SSRGS
MBEBRARRELREELE -



54 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %3 R Miat

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BERHIIREBITZEEMSE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 "Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require an entity
tfo disclose information about rights to set-
off and related arrangements (e.g. collateral
agreements). The disclosures provide users with
information that is useful in evaluating the effect
of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial
position. The new disclosures are required for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”. The disclosures also apply to
recognised financial instruments that are subject
tfo an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar arrangement, irrespective of whether they
are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The Group
and the Company have provided cash collateral
to a bank. The bank has the right to invoke the
collateral if certain requirements imposed by the
bank could not be met. Details of the arrangement
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amendments have been applied
refrospectively. Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of amendments to HKFRS 7 has not
had any impact on the results and financial position
of the Group and the Company in the current and
any preceding financial years.

BEEA (&)

EEMBREENE7TRZIETRHE -
HHEcRMEERSMAMRE]

EBMBBMELRETR BT AERER
WEAFEEEEAR R (FInER
W) MER - FEKEQEAERME
BT FRAE T E R KRR
ENEN - MERBEBSHEREI2N
[ERTA: 2 | EHENCEIEHTA
HREETHRE - BBRRETERARER
BEPTEFREERFREMURERR
RWCHIALMIE  TwZEERMIA
EREREBETTEREI2NETHES
REERALBEH -FHRITEARESE
Hme BREEINZRITZETHRE &
RTEEEREBERR AR
BERGS P BRMRMTI0 - ZEETE
EBWER - BRTEIMIEN  EATEY
BREEMETR BT A REBRAK
RARBAREMUEITRFE 2 EER
B ISR R I AT o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 #& 3 &R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 "Consolidation -
Special Purpose Entities”. It intfroduces a single
confrol model to determine whether an investee
should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and the ability to use its power to affect the amount
of those returns. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS
10, the Group has changed its accounting policy
with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any
of the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of ifs involvement with other entities at 1 July
2013.

HKFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 specifies the disclosure requirements
for interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
Details of the additional disclosures for subsidiaries
are included in note 22 fo the consolidated financial

statements.

2.

FE R #T ] RGBT 2 B HEM
BEEA (&)

EEMBREENE10R FEMBRR]

ERMBERELNFIORMAEFEBS S
ERE2/RFERBLMBHRRIEGEA
FHESHBRRZBEARER (B
REZEEE)-REFI2N[HFS —HHE
MER|ZHRE - WIRERISI AE—ZH
B LEERERRRETFEANR
ETTIERTERRGUHRRENHERE
FE - RESEWRES SRR RN
Bk UREESEREENAZEZER
BREHE - DERATBUBRELRE0
0o AKECEREHEERTHRRE
FHEEERHEZETEE - RAUELF
EREAEER-_ZE-=FtA—HFEH
SEHAMEREBITEN 2 B AEHES

o

%

EEVBREENBEI2RINE b EEE
WmZWE

ERUBREENFI2RTARME
A RERH BELARTHEEARSE
BEBCESNHERE -EENEAR
ZENMRBEFHBERERGRS BBRRM
722 o
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements, and replaces those requirements

previously included in various HKFRSs.

The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad, and applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment fransactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value-in-use for impairment assessment

purposes).

HKFRS 13 contains a new definition for “fair value”
and defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly tfransaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under
HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes

extensive disclosure requirements.

2.

FE R #Ta] R AEIEST 2 B M
BEEA (&)

FEEVBREENE1350R AFETE]

AEERAEEERERS B BREE
BIZE135% - BB BMEERE 1398/
NP EFERERKE2E 155 TWK
BEEBUBRELENRZAREZRTE -

BBUBRBELENF ISR 2HERZ I
BERAREMEBIBRELENRESR A
RFPEFERREAFEFEEN ZEH
TEEARFESRMTAERAE - EEBYE
HEANE2RURDHEE A RIE
BrAZURODBERZARRE  BBE
SPEAESEHE SR EERS
UREXNTFEEERZBELFLFEZ
FEGINAHEFERN 2R FE
HABEEE N2 ERER) RS-

EBNBHRELENEIRAFI2FE]
ZHBE  BLOTERKERERTH AR
FE(RREN) TERFEEHEEFR
SHHESEMPNREBEERXTZ
B - RIBEBUBRELEULEIIN - A
FEAVRE THZEXKEETTEES
EREHEAEMEERM G RE  1t
o BERMBHRELERBISREEREZHN
WEBERE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the comparative
period. Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2014

2.

FE R #T ] RGBT 2 B HEM
BEEA (&)

EEMBREENEIMIAFHETE]
(%)

R BMEERE RN EAEARE
AEERERM - RESBUBREELFE3
SRR IEAR S AR A L B B 4
HAEFE B BRELERE1RARE 2
MIMEEE - FRIFHEMREN - BRSE
BB REENEIBRHERSHBRERA
BRAZSRVTEFTAEETE -

FEBYEREEAUTCHEMABHEBE
“E-EFERNA=TRLEFEERERZ
M RBETEBYBRELEL

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRMBEHREER (EFTA)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRMBERE LR (EFTA)

HKFRS 9 (2014)
BBMBRELAEIR (ZF—HF)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)
BRMBERMELAEI0NR -
BBMBMELEREI2RR
BHBETTERE275 (BT X)
HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

ERBMBREEIEIR (BT F)
HKFRS 14

BB BRELEE1455

HKFRS 15

BB BRELERE155R

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle 3
ERMBREEN _Z-ZFE-Z-—F
Bz FEUES
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle 2
ERMBREEN - —FE-Z-=F
B 2 F EE?
Financial Instruments 7
TRIA
Investment Entities !

REER

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint
Operations®

WEEERHRE 2B EES

Regulatory Deferral Accounts 4

EERERA
Revenue from Contracts with Customers ¢
=l Ai‘ 3—‘() .-\-_
%E = m’] Llﬂﬁﬁ \: ‘
: “.',"! 1
b
g 4 ' u g
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFIREEIIZEEBUE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING IEER(F)
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 32
(Amendments)
BRETEREIRR
BB EFTERIZE325E (BFTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)
BBETEMFEICRR
BB EREAR (BITX)
HKAS 19 (Amendments)
BB G AR5 (BFTAX)
HKAS 27 (Amendments)
BB ERE275 (IBFTA)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)
BB ST ER 325 (BFTA)
HKAS 36 (Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation ®
BEUES2HERBHES R

Agriculture: Bearer Plants ®

RE EEMEED

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 2

EEENTE  Eade

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements °

B 3L B Rk 2 R ES

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities !

HECHEEREHARE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets !

FEeRMEETREESEIKRE

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting '

TETECEERYIEHEE LR

BB EHEAIB36H (BT )
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

BB ST ER 305 (BFTA)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies !
58 (BRHBERERBEES) HE
—RBE215R

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
July 2014.
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1

July 2014, with limited exceptions.
g Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2016.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2017.

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2018.

REZB-—NE-A-HAZERBBZFE
HEEX -
REZB-—NFLA-HRAZERBBZFE
HEEX -
REZB-—NFLA-HAZRBBZFE
HEEXR - DEERBIN o
REZB-—AFE-A-HIAZEBBZED
BREBUBBEEAR 2 FEHBEXR

£ e
REZB-—A"E-A-HIAZERBBZFE
HEEX -
REZB—tHF-A-HAZRRBZFE
HEEX -

REZB-NF-A-HIAZERBBZFE
HEEX -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2014 completes all phases
of HKFRS 9 and introduces a logical model for
classification and measurement, a single, forward-
looking “expected loss” impairment model and
a substantially-reformed approach to hedge
accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

0 All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit

or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFIREEIIZEEBUE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING IEER(F)
STANDARDS (Continued)

FEEVBREENESI€MIRI(E)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’'s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities aftributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify
for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
enfity’s risk management activities have also

been infroduced.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The impairment requirements relating fo the
accounting for an entity’s expected credit
losses on its financial assets and commitments
to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses.
Under the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 it is
no longer necessary for a credit event fo have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, an entity always accounts for expected
credit losses, and changes in those expected
credit losses. The amount of expected credit
losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit
losses.

HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 July 2018 with earlier application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. It is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 specifies how and when the Group will
recognise revenue as well as requiring the Group
fo provide users of financial statements with more
informative and relevant disclosures. The standard
provides a single, principles based five-step model
fo be applied to all contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised in accordance with
the core principle by identifying the contract(s) with
a customer, identifying the performance obligation
in the contract, determining the fransaction price,
allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contfract and recognising revenue
when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.
HKFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements that would result in providing users of
financial statements with comprehensive information
about the nature, amount, fiming and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from the contracts

with customers.

HKFRS 15 will
consolidated financial statements for the annual

be adopted in the Group’s
period beginning on 1 July 2017 and the Group is in
the process of assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 to
the results and financial positions of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities”

Amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable rights to set off”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to seftlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The Group and the Company have
provided cash collateral to a bank which has the
right fo invoke the collateral if certain requirements
imposed by the bank could not be met. The
cash collateral and the borrowings currently do
not have a legally enforceable right to set off in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Amendments to HKAS 32 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
earlier application permitted. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2014. The
application of the amendments is unlikely to have
any material impact on the results and financial
positions of the Group.

The directors anticipate that the application
of the other new standards, amendments and
inferpretation will have no material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which is a collective
term referred to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (*HKASs") and Interpretations
("Ints”) issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with fransitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), "Accounts
and Audits”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 of that Ordinance.

These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investments at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale investment which have
been measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
parficipants would fake those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is defermined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment fransactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
fransactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities fo fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs fo the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level T inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other that quoted
prices included with Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.1

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements
incorporafte the financial statements of the
Company and entities contfrolled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has the power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use the power to affect its

returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are aftributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. Prior to 1 July 2009, losses applicable
tfo the non-controlling interests in excess of
the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the inferests of
the Group except to the extent that the non-
controlling interests had a binding obligation
and were able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries fo bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group'’s
accounting policies.

All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo
fransactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity fransactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-confrolling interests.
The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a jointly controlled entity.

3.

B HR M

FEETBR(E)

3.1

FEEER)

FEERREMBASRTEEZED

FEERHBEARERRNEEILE
EYAREEHME DR KR EERE -
EFERRARZS AR - AEBENES
R IRz R aR Y R (B A A B LU BR
RERMBLRDNWABERZE - 3F
ERESZNSAZESEESARER
RENAFEBEMEREERER
TREALFBERAIANEEA -

fitf AR EE Bl 2% K HY B B 2 R AR B4
HERELENFEHIEEUT I
ENEZBFAE: (DEBRENAT
EEEAREEZNATFENRN
R (i)~ R RAEMFERESD
EE (BEBEB)REENBERE
B REFIBREE ARAINE QR
RENEMREQNTE SREEE
SETEREIONIEMT A BRAR
AEIRERNESTEEPRESL
SHRARBE QTR AR EHERD
RENQTVE R (MEH) EADL
AR A AN o



CIL Holdings Limited ZZ#ZKRBRDA ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 #& 3 &R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale. The results
of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

Intangible asset acquired separately is
measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful life of an intangible
asset is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible asset with finite life is subsequently
amortised over useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least af
each financial year end. Intangible asset with
indefinite useful life that is acquired separately
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses.

3. EEEHHRE)

3.1

3.2

FEEER)

RRABPBARREKRS - RBARZ
REDRBEAHBEMRTRERE
AR ERDBERFEHEREER
SEABFEHEZHEAE ZRER
e MBLR B ZEETIAANTEE
BREREKRRE 2 EENER -

EBRAE

BY Wz B EEEDREREFER
B E - REBSHHIRBE BT
BEZEAZRRBBRBZAFE-
BRNEE2ERFHDAERBRY
EIEEHR - EAFHERNERLE
ERRRUTAKESHEE YEE
ENSERELEETRHRERER
ETREG - ERFHARNEL
BEECHENRNBHERTEZINE
MBI RFEERERE - BB
ERFHAREENRNERLEER
AR TR EEBRSIR -

69



70 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly aftributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow fo the Group and the cost of
the itfem can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged fo profit
or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method tfo
write off their cost over their estimated useful
lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20% - 30%
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.3

3.4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the asset is derecognised.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and infangible assefs (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below) to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Where it is not possible fo estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual assef,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to the individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating unit for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.4

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific fo the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assef (or
a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.5 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related tax.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

- the Group has fransferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the fransaction can be
measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.5

3.6

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
loss as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current fax
is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.5

3.6
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.6 TAXATION (Continued) 3.6 BIEE)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
fax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all faxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that faxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assetfs and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arise
from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
tfaxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FEETBR(E)

3.6 TAXATION (Continued) 3.6 BIE ()

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset
fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is seftled
or the asset is realised. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or seftle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7

3.8

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all
costs of purchase and, where applicable, costs
of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
complefion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories fo net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and deposits held at call with banks.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of

cash flows.

3. EEEHHRE)

3.7

3.8
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

(a) Retirement benefit scheme

®)

Payment to Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) which is
defined conftribution scheme is charged
as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Share-based payments

For grants of share options that are
conditional upon satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the fair value of services
received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the
grant date and is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reverse).

For share options that vest immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately
fo profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred
tfo share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be fransferred
fo accumulated losses.

B HR M

3. EEEFBRE)
39 EEETH
(@) EEFE

®)

BEEABESTE ((RESF
g AREHRKTE  REE
REEREMEEZHERE
HIfE—IAXH o

MRt BEEZ M

REBREZGHBENERE
ERBRAE BRERBELQF
BEN2EMBRHBRENRY
BHAFEMEE  YEREB
HEREESE s (AR
DHRER 2 RE) BIAREE
hn e

EERERREBABNES
B RHBREZATEIDE
RERXH -

fisl B AR AT - SEATBAMR D
REBRZARMEERI ZEHE
HEREROEE - HBRE
REBHZERRINERA
HERITE FAARORE
BeNRBERD 2R K
ERERGEE-



CIL Holdings Limited #:Z#2REMRAE ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4§ 79

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 #& 3 &R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (Continued) 3.9 EEEHN(E)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued)

The grant by the Company of option over
ifs equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital confribution.
The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over

(b) URGBEEZ(H (F)

KRR @AEENEBQEZE
ERHURATARINER
BIER-HEE - TRE
ZEERBHNLTEDZRER
HEHAFERE IREE
HARIASBENBELR ZRE
BEMm MALREREKER

the vesting period as an increase to ZRDEHEEER -
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company entity accounts.
3.10 FOREIGN CURRENCIES 3.0 ShEsmE

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, fransactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign
currency are noft retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FEETBR(E)

3.10 FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued) 3.10 ShEIRE (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, assets and liabilities of the
Group'’s foreign operatfions are franslated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which cases, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBR(E)
(Continued)

3.11 BORROWING COSTS 311 EBERE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, consfruction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily fake a substantial period of fime
to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assefs are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the femporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are charged to profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.12 OPERATING LEASES

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payment made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss over
the accountfing periods covered by the lease
term except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.13 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised when: (i) the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of past events; (ii) it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
and (iii) the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in seftlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect fo any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provision are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
fo settle the obligation using a pre-tax inferest
rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due fo passage of time is recognised as inferest
expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remofte.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEBRE)

(Continued)

3.14 RELATED PARTIES 3.14 FABE S

BB L SRERMBEHRR 2ER (]

is related to the entity that is preparing its HER ) EEHNEASEE -
financial statements (“reporting entity”).

A related party is a person or entity that

(a) A person or a close member of that (@) MBUTAL: EUEZ}\:tESZEZ

person’s family is related to a reporting AT ABEZBREERERE

entity if that person: B

() has control or joint control over the () ERRHEEHZREE
reporting entity; B

(i has significant influence over the (iy HEZEHREEREEARY
reporting entity; or .5

(iiiy is a member of the key management (i) BEREERRZREE
personnel of the reporting entity or of BB RARINETEERERE
a parent of the reporting entity. RE e

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if (b) & TIMEMMGRME  BIEER
any of the following conditions applies: HZBREEREEY

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are @ %E%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%%‘ﬁ%%ﬁ
members of the same group (which —EBZHELR (A&
means that each parent, subsidiary BoE - -WBEAQ T&H%
and fellow subsidiary is related to the MEBARRKILEERE) ;
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint (iy —HERARE BB
venture of the other entity (or an ERRRagEhE (RS
associate or joint venture of a —EBERAFBEE QT
member of a group of which the other REZBENRREGED
entity is a member); %)

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the (iii) WF?E?@%E—%EH
same third party; g%,

iaf
e
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEBRE)

(Continued)
3.14 RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 3.14 BB ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a (iv) —EERRE=788EMN
third entity and the other entity is an EELE MR —EBEA
associate of the third entity; REZFEBRMNBEE LD
Gl
(v) the entity is a post-employment (v) BERAZBREERIHEZ
benefit plan for the benefit of REESBEEECSHEN
employees of either the reporting EEGEANRIINWBEREZE
entity or an entity related to the FEHE - fZ|mEERLR
reporting entity. If the reporting entity BERZTE REERY

5

is itself such a plan, the sponsoring NEEZTHEZREERS

employers are also related to the BEEE
reporting entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly (i) BEZ (MBI ALE
controlled by a person identified in s Z HEES ;
(a); or

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has i) R@)()FTEBIATHE
significant influence over the entity or REEAZEIUEZE
is a member of the key management B (IZERNELAR) :
personnel of the entity (or of a parent EZEEBEEKE °

of the entity).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.15 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ISSUED 3.5 BHZEMER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
ferms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
fransaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within frade
and other creditors. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FEETBR(E)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 316 2 TR

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the confractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than the
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assetfs or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on inifial recognition. Transaction costs directly
atftributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into three categories, including available-for-
sale investment, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the fime of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
frade day basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the fime frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBR(E)
(Continued)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.6 &R TR (&)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at
fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near ferm;

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages fogether and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets of financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 7.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.16 &R TR (&)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assefs with fixed or defterminable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loans receivable,
tfrade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables,
pledged fixed deposit, and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below). Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate
and tfransaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolong decline in the fair value
that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBRE)
(Continued)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.6 &R TR (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

= it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Financial assefs that are assessed notf to
be impaired individually, such as loans
receivable, and frade and bills receivables,
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 316 &R TR (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of loans and
frade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a loan or trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset
is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

EMEEZRE )

MEBEAIRZERMEEMS @ BE
BEBENEERAERZFEEASH
BEERTHSEMERIEH 2 5HRE
RERBREZEZRMTE - Z5HE
BEFTERERDBED -

EAEMEERRCRESESE
BEREREE 2 REES /SR
HERREWE SRR - HARE
EEEBRERELIR - BER2
IREEZBNEEAER - EEXH
FEWE S RAWR DT WE R -
REEIRAMEE - RER WS AT
ZEEEWIT ABEP -

ENHEESHEERARER &
AR E 2 U R 2 REt s
BELDRZBRUBRAERIBER

%o

REEENAEZERMEENS -
HREERMERESE ZBERD
i Lk SRR A °T B R 3t B R R R (E S 18
BeR-—BHRERE  BIFRLER
ZBEBEMEET T URE - ER
BORES R 2EEREETSER
REDBER 2 BHHA -



92 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %3 R Miat

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBRE)
(Continued)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.16 2R T A ()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by the group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered info and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable tfransaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective inferest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within
*finance costs” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

An equity instfrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the relevant group entities
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHHRE)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.6 &R IR (&)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the confractual rights fo receive cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the
risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset
fo another entfity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and contfinues to conftrol the
fransferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBRE)
(Continued)

3.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.16 &R T A ()

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains
an opfion to repurchase part of a transferred
asset or retains a residual interest that does
not result in the refention of substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group retains control), the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise
under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the
tfransfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulated gain or loss allocated
fo it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair value
of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3,
management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assefs and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on past
experience and other factors that are considered
fo be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Classification of financial assets

The Group needs to make judgements on the
classification of financial assets as different
classification will affect the accounting freatment
for the financial assets, and financial position and
operatfing results of the Group. The judgments on
these classifications depend on the nature and
purposes of acquiring those financial assets at their
initial recognitions. Subsequent reclassifications may
be made if the intention of holding a particular
financial asset changed and that reclassification is
permiftted by HKFRSs.

Income taxes

Significant judgements on the future fax treatment
of certain fransactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are made accordingly. The tax freatment of such
fransactions is reconsidered periodically fo take into

account all changes in tax legislation.
Estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment loss of tangible and infangible
assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all tangible and intangible assets
at the end of each reporting period. Such assets
are fested for impairment annually, and/or when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amounts, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to
sell is based on available data from binding sales
fransactions in an arm’s length fransaction of similar
assets or observable market price less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order fo calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management reviews the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in
determining their depreciation charges at the end
of each reporting period. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are
different to those previously estimated.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. HFAFTHPERRZEERE

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment loss on trade receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability
and ageing of the frade receivables. Allowance
for doubtful debts is made on trade receivables
based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the trade debts and on directors’
judgment and estimate. When there is objective
evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
inferest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June

2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables is

approximately HK$69,256,000 (2013: HK$46,440,000).

No allowance for doubtful debts is made in both

years.

(%)
st 2 FHE Y (R
B 5 RRR 2 1 A 18

EEETHERRKEZ RN 2RERE
KRl - BWE SRR ZRRBEE - IR
BHWEE S E® 2R BT R RE D
o URESZHERMGAMmEL - BF
HEBENEBRRER AEEEZEEX
REEREWMEF - BESESHERZIA
EERAEHERZEMEENRERAIER
(ARSI ENEBRFIR) BRE
A ARRERENRE(TERLRE
EHRARREEBE NEZHAE - HER
RERBEREBMENTEY  AITRELEEXR
HESE R-ZE-—NESA=+H " [
B 5 iRz REE 569,256,000/ T
(ZZ— =% :46,440,000% 5T) ° M1ESE
A1 30 A R AR -
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment loss on loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the loans receivable. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the amount is not recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and
doubtful debfts is required, the Group takes info
consideration the aged status and likelihood of
collection. Specific allowance is only made for the
loans receivable that are unlikely to be collected
and is recognised on the difference between the
carrying amount of loans receivable and the present
value of estimated future cash flow discounted using
the original effective interest rate. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2014, the
carrying amount of loans receivable amounted to
approximately HK$40,709,000 (2013: nil).

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management
will reassess the estimations at the end of each

reporting period.

st THAERZ EERIE
(%)

st 2 FEEE M ()
BEWREFZ 11 mEER

EEEETHRNERERZATRE M - B
EBRRBESSETIRER - BATF
AW EEEEL ZEERERBRER

EEERERETHFLHEER  A5E
EEZERRMRR R KE Z TR o fif B
ERTARAERE A SELSERE
VTHEIABBWERREIERRAREE
BARBERMEFTARBESREREZH
ZEB - HBERRRAEEREENES
AMEELEERREBE R-2F—@O
FREB=ZTH BURERZKREENS
40,709,000 T (=2 — =5 : &)

FEZ G5 A5 FE

FEZASRFEDABERBRED 2
SEERETFEREAREERS - bE
A RERETRAREUMEHEE
mZBELRMFEL  YERARFEY

HEERTEBHAETBMAREZL -
EEEERSREMREMTEIEMEE -
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company and the Group recognise provision
for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Company and the Group have a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligations and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as contingent liability under the title heading of
“Litigations” as set out in note 45 fo the consolidated
financial statements. As at 30 June 2014, the
Company and the Group have recognised a
provision amounting fo approximately HK$43,892,000
(2013: HK$43,892,000) in respect of the disputed
claims against the Company. Details are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Measurement of fair values of financial assets

The Group’s held-for-frading investments listed
outside Hong Kong of approximately HK$989,000
(2013: nil) and available-for-sale investment of
approximately HK$2,384,000 (2013: nil) are measured
at fair values as at 30 June 2014 and are classified
as Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements
under HKFRS 13, respectively. The Group engaged
independent competent valuers tfo perform the
valuation of those financial instruments. Details of

the fair value measurement are set out in note 7.

A FHAPARRZEERR
(%)

st 2 A EE M (4)
BRERAAERE

EXARRARAEERBESAMEAER
FHEEET MABTEETERTEEH
AR 58 2 7 30 R A AT SE A AT
BIARRRAEEREERSETEE 2
SERIEBE EVRBASRKENR
Zm o EET A SR AR
BEDRGE M B BRRM T4 & 57
—HPRBEFEIREE  RSE-NER
A=1H A2 RFEERA DT EE
2 T R R R4 543,892,000/ T
(ZZ— =4 :43,892,0008 ) B#E - &
B BERRN GRS W RRMEES2 -

EHEEZ L FETE

REBZEEBUII LT ZBEEERE
#989,0008 T (= E— =4 : &) R A #
HEREH2,384,0008 T (ZB—=4F:
B)R-E-NFEAA=THZAY¥HE
PR WRIEEBUKRELAEIRS
AABEAAFEFERNE_RME=
& AEEMERBYSERMGEMEZRE
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 5. BEMNESZEMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of AEERARRZEECREEREER
the Group and the Company’s financial assets and WEMRZIREEBENT :
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
The Group The Company
A&E PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-QmE —E-=F —Z-mfF —E-=F
HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TER TERT TR TAT
Financial assefs: PHEE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 2,384 o = =
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss: SREE:
Held-fortrading investments FEEERE 40,308 - - -
Loans and receivables: EXRERRE:
Financial assets included in FABMRE  £8
prepayments, deposits and REMENREZ
other receivables tREE 8,971 5 8,031 -
Loans receivable EBER 40,709 - 23,587 =
Trade and bills receivables BHEZERRER 69,256 46,997 S =
Due from subsidiaries KB ARRE - - 72,616 23,393
Pledged fixed deposit BEATHER 20,591 20,359 20,591 20,359
Bank balances and cash BOEERES 21,444 28,969 14,286 27,546
160,971 96,330 139,111 71,298
‘.ﬁw‘j
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 5. REMNIINZEMIA(E)
CATEGORY (Continued)
The Group The Company
r5E NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013

—g-mF -¥-=F -T-NF -¥-=%
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000

FER T TR TEx
Financial liabilities: tHEE:
Financial liobilities measured REHERATE
at amortised cost: ZEeRas:
Trade payables ERESERR 16,574 13,932 - -
Financial liobilities included in FAEGER 2l
accruals, deposits received ReERHEMENTRE
and other payables ZEMBE 18,904 13,128 17,736 12,075
Interest-bearing borrowings FERE 65,160 44,993 17,688 18,068
Due to a subsidiary N —RBHELRRE - - 8 10

100,638 72,063 35,432 30,153
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial insfruments include
available-for-sale investment, investments at fair
value through profit or loss, loans receivable, trade
and bills receivables, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables, pledged fixed
deposit, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
interest-bearing borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk,
equity price risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The policies for managing these risks

are summarised below.

(a) Market Risk

Currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions
are principally denominated in HKD, Renminbi
("RMB") and United States Dollars ("USD").

The management considers that the Group’s
exposure to USD does not give rise to significant
currency risk on the ground that HKD is pegged
to USD.

The Group exposes to currency risk that are
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does
not have hedging policy against RMB. However,
management monitors the Group’s currency risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
currency risk exposure should the need arise.

MEEREE

AEEZETEECMIBEEGREIHEER
B BEAFPESFABZZRE RBRE
FORUEZRARRE FFARERH
tEKRE EREE BEAEHF
HoRITEEFERAS  BAESERIN &
ARMENRAZEMEE UK EE
B hEERTAZFBRERMERE -

LESRTAZEBERREED SRR
(E%mEk - ARER RAERERRE
HitERRER) - FERBRRABESR
e AEBzERERREENETINE
HERTH S 2 T AR E R R ORBE
FEEMBEREEEZTAFNELE - TXH
P B I I 5 L B T AR 2 B e

(a) WHERE
B

FEECEREERRZERUE
T ARBTARBD RET (%
1) EHE °

EHERS > ARBTEETHE
KREBYERAEZTMEHERER
[ B

AEEEHUAREAENEER
o AEBBAYETEARE Y
MK - AT EEEERAEEZ
EREAR YERFESEEHHE
ROEEREMS -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. UBREMGER(E)
(Continued)
(a) Market Risk (Continued) (o) TWiGEE (&)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets which are denominated in RMB at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS
Loans receivable EWE &

The following ftable demonstrates the
sensifivity at the end of the reporting period
tfo a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s net loss and equity
(due to change in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

B (E)

RBERRUARBITEZAEEE

MEEZHREENT
2014 2013
—E-mE = o

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FHET

1,356 28,199

23,587 -

24,943 28,199

TRIERBERRAEEE R FHE
RESHRARBEZCEREHERN
ARERZ2EBNHRE (EREY
EEREBENLAFELREE) B
TERERMEAMEBESTE -

Decrease/(increase)

Increase/ in loss after tax and
(decrease) in increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in equity
Ex BREEEERD, /(2 M)
R/ (TH) REZREN/ (RD)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=%
% HK$" 000 HK$" 000
TEL TET
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB EBTEARERE 5 1,245 1,404
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BETEAREAE (5) (1,245) (1,404)
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

6. MBEMREE (&)

(a) Market Risk (Continued) (o) WiIBEE (&)

Currency risk (Contfinued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in RMB exchange
rate had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the Group’s
exposure fo currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2013.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly attributable to bank deposits and
variable-rate borrowings. The Group’s fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
loans receivable, borrowings and pledged fixed
deposit.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. The management monitors
the Group's exposure on ongoing basis and will
consider hedging interest rate risk should the
need arise.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2013:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post
tax loss for the year ended 30 June 2014 would
have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$355,000 (2013: decreased/increased by
approximately HK$63,000) and the equity would
have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$355,000 (2013: increased/decreased by
approximately HK$63,000).

B ()

BERBRESTEDRRAREE
ZRPHRREHRCKBE  WARE
ARAEERZEZERTIANE
MR MAE At (R
R)DEFAE - —EB-—=FT&ME
EIEEEHDN

FIEm

FEBHYzREREFNERABEE
RERTERRFEEE - AKEZ
DFENZEBTERBENESER
EXR-BERCEREHRER -

AEEE B AT I BT AR RENBOR
EEEREEEAREMEHZA
Y KREERZEHPRERE

a8 o
TR

ENREH " THIOOHF (ZF
—=F 1008 F)MATEEMmEH
T AAEEBRE-Z-—NEAX
A=tRLEEsHRBEEEBEL
in/ WA #355,0008 T (ZE—=
FORA 463,000 T) AE
FHHE A1 hn49355,000% T (=
T—=F EmE D #K63,000%
7T)
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEGER (&)
(Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued) (o) WiIGEE (&)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure fo interest rate risk for financial
insfruments in existence at that datfe. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the end of the next reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group
is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as held-
for-trading equity investments (note 28) as at
30 June 2014. The Group had no investments
at fair value through profit or loss as at 30 June
2013 and did not expose fo equity price risk.
The Group's listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and Alternative Investment
Market ("AIM") of London Stock Exchange
Plc ("LSE") and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.
The management managed this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
fo every 15% change in equity prices of the
listed equity investments, with all other variables
held constant, based on their carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period.

FIEm g ()

BEEIBBESMETLDRRARE
BRmERAREERE  YARAR
AEERZEZEMTANAER
B o 100 FH ERAF THARRER
BHREZTERSHARSLHWHRE
A FEREESEANTRHR S
BHEE c —E-=FTREREE
EH DA

BRAEE AR

RSB E b R I8 RA SR BUOK T R @
HRSEEZEMERNRAES L
FETRNER R-ZZ-EFARA
=tH  AEEFREHHNRAERR
BMEEDBABEEERARE (I
F28) WERIRARE - REBRZ
E-=FRA=+RUEZAFER
ABHBZRE  HAEEHRAER
B o AEEE EHIRE R BT R
RBEESXZFARBRAE (R
REXGM 2 BREDS (5
BREMS ) £ - RI|EHMREPR
HHEE - EEEFATERREZ
REAGUNEEABERR -

TRRETREFMBEZERETZZE
N RBETRARERBERR 2
IREE  BERAERSHRI15%%
B2 HRBE -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued)

6. MBEMREE (&)

(o) WIHEK (&)

Equity price risk (Continued) BB R ()
Decrease/
(increase) in
Carrying loss after tax
Increase/ amount and increase/
(decrease) in of equity (decrease)
equity prices investments in equity
BRHEEER
B/ (8m)
REEHR kxkE REREN/
R/ (FH) REE (R %)
% HK$' 000 HK$"000
30 June 2014 “E-MERA=TH TR Fax
Investments listed in: RTHEEHZ2RE:
- Hong Kong -5 15 39,319 4,925
(15) 39,319 (4,925)
- United Kingdom - % 15 989 148
(15) 989 (148)

The sensitivity analysis above had been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks as at 30 June 2014. For sensitivity
analysis purpose, 15% was used as the
sensitivity rate for the year ended 30 June 2014
as a result of the volatile financial markets.
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity was
unrepresentative of the inherent equity price
risk as it only reflects the impact of equity price
changes to equity securities held as at the end
of the reporting period.

EIBBRESTDRER-F—NF
NA=+ HEEZRAERE R E
EoBBREINME  ARERT
BRE WBE-Z-—NFA AZT
BIUEFEEDRA15%ZBURELLE -
EEERS  BREIREARKE
BRAERRE  HEERRRBKESH
RKIFFBEZRABSRAEREE 2

1=
2

minf
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. UBREMGER(E)
(Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued) (o) WiGEE (&)

Other price risk

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has held
promissory notes classified as available-for-sale
investment. Details are set out in note 23 below.
Changes in fair values of the promissory notes
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The fair value adjustment of the promissory
notes would be affected positively or negatively,
amongst other things, by the changes in the
credit spread of the counterparty.

The Group’s exposure to other price risk on
the promissory notes as a result of change in
the risk free rate is insignificant and thus no
sensifivity analysis is prepared.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
for 5% higher/lower in credit spread of the
counterparty and all other variables were held

Bt E% AR

REZ-NOFARA=TAH AEEF
E“* BARHEREZENR -
FIEENT XME23 - AR 2D
FEZBNAMDERR PR - &
NEZAFEFAEAEAR (EFE
BIREHUFFESZ2HMIZEIE
HHEEZE -

7% 52 (B PR A R B ) 2R 2 B T T 9 K
NRZEMERRRBHRTRZE B
Lt 3 48 4 I BURE D 4T e

TERTERAREBRRE TR
BR XRBBEFEEEEEM B
5% 2 BB °

constant.
Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
Higher/(lower) in carrying (decrease)
in credit spread amount in equity
FEEE REfE B
2/ (H) /() i/ (WD)
% HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
30 June 2014 ZE-MERAZTH TER TER
Fair value of promissory notes AREZATE 5 ) )
Fair value of promissory nofes ARRZATE ©) 78 78
The management of the Group considers that AEEEBEIAR  LIBBESN

the sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative WAREBERFRAEEBERER  FE AN

RETHEZEEREAT R MR
in the valuation of the promissory notes involves RS o

of the inherent price risk as the pricing model

other assumptions and variables.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

6. MBEMREE (&)

(b) Credit Risk (b) EEREE

The Group’s maximum exposure fo credit
risk which will cause a financial loss of the
Group due to the failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties as at 30
June 2014 and 2013 is the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position without taking account of
any credit enhancements that do not qualify
for derecognition in the consolidated financial
statements. The Company is also exposed to
credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantee, further details of which are disclosed
in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The credit enhancements of the Group include
factoring and collateralised bank advances
for undiscounted bills. As at 30 June 2014,
frade receivables amounting to approximately
HK$49,225,000 (2013: HK$24,632,000) have
been tfransferred to a financial institution under
a non-recourse factoring agreement. As at 30
June 2014, the Group has no bills receivables
and therefore no bills receivables have been
fransferred fo a financial instfitution in exchange
of cash. As at 30 June 2013, bills receivables
amounting to approximately HK$557,000 had
been transferred fo a financial institution in

exchange for cash.

The Group has stringent policies in place to
manage its credit risk with trade and bills
receivables, which include but are not limited fo
the measures as set out below:

AEER-ZE-—NFR-ZF-—=F5~
B=+HRHFHREBTEEEM
SEREBERTBEBAMEEZRR
ERAEE - BEREHBRRRAG
ZECERIAVBEEZIREE > M
BHARTHEEREVBERRAEL
IHER 2 EENEMAERE - A2
ATERESBMERMAEEER
B BESRIERZE-SHBREG
EUBEHRERMTLTRIESE

FEBZERARABERBRREZ
FEREEMRITER -R=-Z—O
FRA=1H B8 #49,225,000
BT (ZF— =% :24,632,000%
T ZEWE SRR RE-HER
RECEEHEMERT —HERE
BeR-ZZE-OFAA=1H A&
B EEWRE  RUBRERED
EETSRBEBLUARRE - R=F
—=ZHXA=+H " #557,000% T
ZERZBECEET —HEREBL
BEBRE -

FEBFRBRERE  UNEERWE
SEIRREZFERR  ETEE
BERRRTXAEZEE
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HBEAMGERE (8)
(Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)
(i) Certain trade receivable balances are () BTEREZRRESRDUE
factored to external financial institutions BEEZFABETFHEEH
without recourse; and HE R
(i) The Group has put in place policies to (i) ZEETREREX BRAM
ensure that provision services to customers BECEEELBZEFRMH
with an appropriate credit history and R mMASEREHRHEEF
performs periodic credit evaluations of its EITEEMH -
customers.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a RBEHR AEERH —ENEERK
certain concentration of credit risk as 58% and 90% S BRAEWESRRELIEHN8% R
(2013: 40% and 94%) of the totfal trade receivables 90% (=ZZ—=F : 40%K94%) = 7 7l f&
were due from the Group's largest customer and the BWAREEZBAEFREEBRAEFNE
five largest customers respectively. SR -
The table below shows the credit limit and frade TRINEREEREHRNEERERE
receivable balances of which the collection right WESRAER(WRNEEEKRE ZEX
of such trade receivables has been transferred to a ZEANERE-—EEERE 2 EEHEM
financial institution under a non-recourse factoring HET-Homgs)

agreement as at the end of the respective reporting

period:
2014 2013
“EZ-NF —E-=%

Credit Limit Utilised =~ Credit Limit Utilised
EE EEA 8% 2EA
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$"000
TR TET TET TER
Customers P 92,100 49,225 57,000 24,632
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting BE_Z—NER-_ZF—=5<A=+H
period ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, and the LIREHHALBEHEERE MERE

management does not expect any losses from BHEATEELEHFAITENZER -

non-performance by these counterparties.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

6. MBEMREE (&)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are disclosed in nofe 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s loans receivable comprise those
arise from ordinary course of business of the
Group and other loans receivable of the Group
and the Company.

The Group's loans receivable arise from ordinary
course of business of the Group and are closely
monitored by the executive directors in charge
of the Group’s money lending operations on
an ongoing basis. Further quantitative data in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from loans receivable are disclosed
in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For other loans receivable of the Group and the
Company, the executive directors contfinuously
monitor the level of exposure to ensure follow-
up actions and/or corrective actions are
tfaken promptly to lower exposure or to recover
overdue balances. In addition, the directors
review the recoverable amount of each
individual borrower at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s and the Company’s
credit risk arising from other loans receivable is
significantly reduced.

FRASERERE S RRMEL 2
FERBRKNE-—SELEE - ITRER
B BRI 26K E -

rEBCRBEREBEELALEE
ZRABEBBREURAEERELD
B2 HiEWES -

FEEzRBERELEAAEBZH
BEKBRE  BEFKEREXRKZ
HOTESERERVERERER -
BRAEEAERWERELEZE
BERBNE-PELBERRENE
HRRMT25HIEE

RAEBERA QR 2 H LR E KT
T OHTESFAERERBKT - B
BREMERRUBRETH R RMUE
i A R E R PR I D B A R o It
S EEEMEEBERARREH
RO AWEEEE - UBRRERT AT
Bl £ 3 EH EHARERSE - Bitm
5 ALRAESBERS  ARERAEAR
AEEMERERMEE 2 FERR
2K o
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

©

The credit risks of deposits and other
receivables are low as the Group and the
Company have not had any significant
loss arising from non-performance by the
counterparties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.

Bank balances are placed with high-credit-
quality institutions and the management
considers that the credit risk for such is minimal.

Liquidity Risk

As at 30 June 2014, the Company and the
Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$59,799,000 and HK$80,284,000 (2013:
HK$4,383,000 and HK$11,985,000) respectively,
and net assets of approximately HK$88,790,000
and HK$114,205,000 (2013: HK$7,743,000 and
HK$15,835,000), respectively. The Company and
the Group are not exposed to liquidity risk as
they have sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Company and the Group monitor and maintain
a level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
operations of the Company and the Group and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and the liquidity requirements
from time fo time.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities intfo relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the end of the reporting period fo
the contractual maturity date.

B HR M

MERREE ()

(b) EEREE (&)

©

BERAEMEUREZEERRS
B BAEERAQARBELEHR
REUFIEAMEEEFAEKRE
K MEBREEMRRT TS HELR
B e

RITEFFRNEESNEEHE
HEEERRFERBAR -

i B & & L B

R-ZB-—NEXA=1+H A27
RAEE-RBEEFEI AN
£59,799,0005% 7t % 80,284,000
BT (ZZT— =4 :4,383,0008
7t H11,985000%8 7T) UK EE
FES B4 588,790,000 T &
114,205,0008 T (=& — =%
7.743,000% 7t }15,835,0005%
) c RATRRAEBERERAE
SUBFESZVBET BULLE
AHRBESER -

EEERBDESARE - ARRARAE
EERERREFRTEFRRENE
ERRAUENAQARAEEEE
ZERBEBRFPRABRERERB 2T
2 EEEERRTEEZHRABR
EABZRBEEER -

TREATRAEERAAINERE
& RREBENIHAR - BIEHR
SHMARZENEH E R R RBET
DA o
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

6. MBEMREE (&)

(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (c) HRBHBELEME(E)

The amounts disclosed in the table are the EXRARBENSEEBANRBENE

contractual undiscounted cash flows. ERE °
As at 30 June 2014 R-ZE-—WmEAXA=T1H
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted one year or
amount cash flow on demand
ERRERN
BREE BeRELE —-SARREXR
HK$' 000 HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
TER TR TER
The Group: rEE:
Trade payables e & 5 R 16,574 16,574 16,574
Financial liabilities included in &t ABiTER B
accruals, deposits received ReRkEtEMRE
and other payables ZEREE 18,904 18,904 18,904
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 65,160 65,160 65,160
100,638 100,638 100,638
The Company: AATF
Financial liabilities included in -~ st AEETE R » EW
accruals, deposits received ReRHEMEMRE
and other payables ZEMEE 17,736 17,736 17,736
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 17,688 17,688 17,688
Due to a subsidiary P — KB D RARE 8 8 8
35,432 35,432 35,432
Financial guarantee issued: BREZERIER:
Guarantee given fo a bank - EEL T
in connection with facilities ERREmE— R
granted fo a subsidiary BIER (H24])
(note 41) - 47,472 47,472

wf
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013

The Group:

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in
accruals, deposits received
and ofher payables

Interest-bearing borrowings

The Company:

Financial liabilities included in
accruals, deposits received
and other payables

Interest-bearing borrowings

Due to a subsidiary

Financial guarantee issued:
Guarantee given to a bank in
connection with facilities
granfed to a subsidiary
(note 41)

B HR M

MERREE ()

(c) RBHESEM ()

R-ZZE-—=ZFXA=+H

Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted one year or
amount cash flow on demand
SRR
BREE RERELE —FRARKRER
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000
TER THET TERT
AEE:
FEfS & 5 R 13,932 13,932 13,932
s AETER Bl
ReREMENRE
ZEmBE 13,128 13,128 13,128
STERE 44,993 44,993 44,993
72,053 72,053 72,053
Y YN
SFAEHER -BK
ReRHEMESRE
ZEREE 12,075 12,075 12,075
STEEE 18,068 18,068 18,068
FEfS— M 2D RIFIE 10 10 10
30,153 30,153 30,153
ERHzERIER:
B—EHEAR
ERmEmE—BRT
BEER (HE41)
- 26,925 26,925
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 7. EMEEAFEHEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Fair value of financial assets that are measured (0) MBRREERATHEARZEMEE
at fair value on a recurring basis ZAFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are AEEHNESMEEDREREHR
measured at fair value at the end of each BRATEE - TREIEBEZER
reporting period. The following table gives MEEATFEEEA EZZ2ER (XE
information about how the fair values of these RAEAZ B ERTR®E AR -

financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Group rEEH
2014 —E—mE
Fair value Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
Items of the Group Hierarchy key inputs
HE AFE(BEER) NFEER HERTREZ@0ARE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THERT THERT
Trading equity securities listed 39,319 Level 1 Quoted bid price in an
in the Stock Exchange F—& active market
RERMEHZRERAFS ERMBMBRERE
Trading equity securities listed 989 Level 2 Quoted price in an
in AIM BR inactive market
REEREMSB LT ZRERAES TEBMSMBZER
Promissory notes 2,384 Level 3 The fair value is determined
AN E E=R by Cox-Ross-Rubenstein

binomial option pricing
model (the "BOPM")
taking info account the
expected volatility, the
equity value of a
business entity and credit
spread of the counterparty
2 F{E T3 BLCox-Ross-Rubenstein
“EAHEEEEN ([ZBXH
REBHEN ) £t REHKIE Y
EHER2RABENR @ 3
- REUFIRRBEMER om
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 7. EREELAFERE (H)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Con’rinued)
(a) Fair value of financial assets that are measured (@) UBRREZERAFEHABZEMEE
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) ZAFHE(E)
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group BE-Z—NEAA=+THLEE
does not have other financial assets transferred AEEWEEMEMEENRE-—RK
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value hierarchy EFERATFEER2BER  F=4H
and no tfransfer into or out of Level 3 fair value AFEEFTIEEAREDL -
hierarchy.
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEFEZEHBEE
Group
KEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R a-4 =4 Foh
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
FAL TEL FHT THRL
At 30 June 2014 RZE-NEXA=1H
Available-for-sale investment AELERE - - 2,384 2,384

Investments at fair value through BAVEGABR
profit or loss ZRE 39,319 989 - 40,308

39,319 989 2,384 42,692
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 fair value

7. EMEEATFEIE(H)

(b) FRAR=ERAFEFERZEHR

measurements

Key

unobservable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Items inputs Value to fair value

FERT
BE BER@mASE EE FABRAABBELATEZBAR
Promissory notes Expected 39.62% The higher the expected volatility,
SRS volatility the lower the fair value

SR FEHRESS A FEBE

Estimated HK$4,415,000 The higher the revenue, the higher

revenue 4,415,0005% 7T the fair value
ERRLE WEMs AFEES
Discount for 21.61% The higher the discount for lack of

lack of
marketability

RERBUEZITE
Credit spread 26.87%
FEERE
Discount rate 45.01%
AEIR &=

i

marketability, the lower the fair value
RERBH2TESS A FESE

The higher the credit spread, the
lower the fair value

FEEENS A FESE

The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value
BERRHEE A FEBE
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 7. EMEEAFHEE(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (c) BEZRATFEFEHR
measurements
Promissory
Notes
ANE
HKS$" 000
FHERT
At beginning of year REA =
Additions 18 4% 2,400
Total unrealised loss recognised in REME2EREER Z
other comprehensive income REEEEARE 16)
At end of year RERL 2,384
The unrealised loss of promissory notes REAFEBRRAZEANTEZREREIR
recognised in the current year has been DR AREEZHRERZHEMEEHE
included in changes in fair value of available- BreaftHEREC N FEEE -

for-sale investment in other comprehensive
loss in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement and valuation process

The management of the Group is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset
or a financial liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.
When Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engaged independent qualified
external valuers to perform the valuation.
The management of the Group works closely
with qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation fechniques and inputs
fo the model. The management of the Group
reports to executive directors semi-annually
fo explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the financial assefts and financial
liabilities.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports that are used to make strategic
decisions reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker ("CODM"). The Group’s operating businesses
are structured and managed separately according
to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other operating segments.

7. EMEEATFEIE(H)

(d) AFEFERGERF

rEEEEEREEESENATE
STEMERTRE ABE -

REFEREERESHMEBEZILF
B AEEETSEREIRATS
AEEYE - HE-—RBABETT
B AEEEREELSERIEM.
BEETHE AEEEEERS?
KON MEMBEESE - UHTSE
ZEERMREREARE - A5E
EEESHFOHTESER R
LpReREEREmBEQ TER
BzRE -

. SR EH

AEERBIZLEEREE ([TELEER
FE ) BRI UERBORE 2 & REE

REDH -AEBREXBIRBELE
ZHERFREH‘RzZEGRRBME D KD
MEE AEBEZEEIBRAR—ERHE
EmRRBORBEREN - AEZR
RS EBIG BRI NEMRE DM -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HEREH ()
The Group is operating in distribution of server AEERAIRE D HARBRET  2HE
storage, multi-media and communication products. RBAEMZEL BE-ZT—HFKA

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has
diversified its business by operating three additional
reportable operating segments, being the money
lending segment, investments in securities segment
and distribution of rice cooker and household
electrical appliances. During the year ended 30
June 2013, the Group had only one reporting
segment. Accordingly, no segment information for
the year ended 30 June 2013 was presented.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment revenue represents
the revenue generated by each operating segment.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each
operating segment without allocation of central

=ZStHRLFE AEBEBEES T
HRE-ZEBINEARESELEDH 285
EEDH  REREDH > URDHER
BREEERIH -BE-F-=F1A
ZtHLEFE: 2&*.@%—1!,,\#&5‘:
DE e Ht  WENBE-Z-—=FA
E+EI¢¢FE§|’“’B§JH°

ARMEDMOE T RREM I 2 A E

BWETHEMAR - D BUBETLED
BMEEHNE - D MERIESEED A
BREXAVER - I A 2 e s RAT R 32 (R
DEEERX)  FEWA - ROERE
BARAEBZE - WAFREERIBER

administration expenses (unallocated corporate DEERRAEMOETELERRERRN
expenses), interest income, unallocated finance Tk e

costs, and income tax expenses. This is the measure

reported to CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance RERIHRRAURRIB2ELREIR

and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than available-for-sale investment and
unallocated corporate assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current and deferred tax
liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities.

mE

- BRTTHHERERRIBREXEE
o BEENDE R
P54

CEAR

- F?TEDHﬂ&?EEﬁIEEEL}{&*ﬁEE
XEEN HEEEHIRERR

DE e

HHFr
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. EEH (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BE-ZE—NEXA=1tHLEFE
Distribution of Distribution of
server storage, rice cooker
multi-media and and household
communication Money  Investment electrical
products lending in securities  appliances Consolidated
PHERRERT AHERER
SERRERER BE BERE FEER &4

HKS' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$'000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000
TET TET TERL TERT TERL

Segment revenue AHhE 462,548 251 - 1,258 464,057
Segment results PHER 2,380 248 (3.115) 67 (420)
Reconciliations: B
Interest income (note 10) MEWA (#i10) 320
Unallocated finance costs AABRMERAE (863)
Gains arising from writfen BEERRAMEMREEE
back of loan and other ZWE (M)
payables (nofe 11) 1,322
Loss arising from payment YHEREREECFR(MFI)
of debt assignment (nofe 13) (19.500)
Unallocated corporate ROBEERY
expenses
(35,086)
Loss before fax BHAER (54.227)
Other segment information: R A HEs:
Finance costs (nofe 12): BERA(MHLI2)
- llocated -B58 (1182) - - - (1182)
- unallocated -RAE (863)
(2.045)
Depreciation: nE:
- dllocated -E7K (525) - - - (525)
- unallocated -RAR (1,376)
(1.901)
Fair value losses on RATEFABEZREZ
investments af fair value DNYEBRFE ML)
through profit or loss, net
(nofe 13) - - (.976) - (2.976)
Gain on disposal of HENE BERREZ
property, plant and Wi (Hiz10)
equipment (nofe 10) 23 - - - 23
Capital expenditure: EREY:
- allocated -E2E 768 - - - 768
- unallocated AR 5,647
6,415
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2014 (Continued)

Segment assets and
liabilities

Segment assets

Available-for-sale
investment

Unallocated corporate

assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Tox payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

PTHEERAE

PHEE
EMHE
EEHELE
AIBEE

aEER

Distribution of
server storage,
multi-media and
communication
products
PHARERR
SRRRENER
HK$' 000

TERx

99.879

66,632

8.

B HR M

SEBER (&)

BE-Z-NFEAA=Z+BHLFE (&)

Money
lending

BE
HKS$'000
TER

19,269

24

Distribution of

rice cooker

and household

Investment electrical
in securities  appliances Consolidated

AHERER
2ERE FEER &a
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
TEn TEx TR

41,190 253

7 185,655

2,384

78,444

266,483

17 1,895 68,568
1,311

2415
79,984

162,278
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the following single external
customers for the year ended 30 June 2014 and
2013 accounted for more than 10% of the fotal
revenue of the Group are as follows:

8. FEBEH (&)

BEBEETEEFHEHN

BE-_Z—NER-Z—=F~A=1+H
LEEREBUTERE—NRAEFHEAE
BEAWZEZ10%H A ERBERMT :

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F

HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000

THET FHBT

Customer A BEFH 175,279 111,067

Customer B BFZ N/A! 43,093
TE A

Customer C BFR 150,579 103,447

U The transaction with customer B did not
account for more than 10% of the fotal sales of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Sales to customers A, B and C are included in the
segment of distribution of server storage, multi-media
and communication products.

! HEFINRZEAKEEBE=Z
—mOEANAZTHLEFENRHEET
HBIB10% °

BEFR - BEFZREFANHEEHRE
EoHARBRET ZHEERBAERD
BHERA ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong
and other parts of the PRC, and the Southeast Asia.
Other than the segment of distribution of rice cooker
and household electrical appliances which are
carried in the Southeast Asia, other segments are
carried in Hong Kong. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location of the
customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods
or service. The geographical location of the non-
current assets other than financial assets is based
on the physical location of the assetf, in the case
of property, plant and equipment and intangible

8.

SEREF (&)
EEH

AEENEENVREBRTEHMBE
RREE - BRTOHESHRENRESSHEN
AMERRERLEN HthoBERSE
BLE EFMNMENEREREFE
A E M RIS KRR o IERENE
E(ERMEERN) Wi BMBNYE - #
BRBEREFEE  REZEEENER
FiiEidls  MEfRES (BRoEASR
BEZEEN) REZEEEEIERZE
ENBES AEEREFMNHBENES
PHREURBREEN B ERENE
RBEENENRINNT :

asset, and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of deposit paid other
than those classified as financial assets. The Group’s
revenue by geographical location of the customers
and information about ifs non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are set out
below:

Revenue from external Non-current assets

customers (note)

REMREZFHWRE FRBEE (M)
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZBE-Nf ZB-=f CZB-WNF CZZ-Z=f
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TET TET TERr

Hong Kong and other parts of the PRC ~ FERHAE Lt E

(place of domicile) (Frfzit) 462,687 382,834 10,345 4,008
Elsewhere Hrih & 1,370 - 20,000 -
464,057 382,834 30,345 4,008

K FRBEETBREFTACHREZER
EERAUMHERE -

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial asset included in
deposit paid and available-for-sale investment.
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REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s furnover,
represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold during the year and interest income from
money lending operations.

9. Wik

BRTNAEEZEXE  EFAREE
HE M2 WK EWRE AR R B RER
BZREWA -

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WaRza T :
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=fF
HK$’ 000 HK$* 000
FHEx FHET
Sales of goods HEEm 463,806 382,834
Interest income from money REBEEK2FEWA
lending operations 251 -
464,057 382,834
OTHER INCOME 10. gt A
2014 2013
—E-NF =Z2-=
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHEx FHExT
Bank interest income RITR B WA 320 289
Gain on disposal of HEWE HBERERE
property, plant and Al E
equipment 23 -
Others Hin 1,887 922
2,230 1,211
a-n.‘“j
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B HR M

11. GAINS ARISING FROM WRITTEN BACK 1. BEERREEGMEMRIEEE
OF LOAN AND OTHER PAYABLES 2 Wit #5
2014 2013
—E-mEF —2-=f
HK$’ 000 HK$* 000
FHET FHExT
Gains arising from written back of: BELUTEHAEEEZ2KES
- other payables — Hith BT FRIE 1,122 =
- loan payable -ERERK 200 -
1,322 -

The directors of the Company are of the view that
the legal or constructive obligations arising as a
result of past events for the above liabilities had
expired. Accordingly, the loan and other payables
were written back during the year ended 30 June

2014.
12. FINANCE COSTS 12.

Interests on other bank loans, BARIFANTHEEZ
bills and overdrafts wholly HRITER
repayable within five years ZERELZZAE

Discounting charge on factoring BAREFANTBHEEZ
loans, wholly repayable REEERZHELH
within five years

Other borrowing costs H & B A A

Fair value adjustment on REAREREZ

interest-free refundable deposit
(note 27(b)(ii))

ARNBRESRE LHREBEZBESHAM
BEEZRRREEEFECERER - Bt
EXRRHEMENRECRBE-Z—DF
ANRAZtTBHLEFERHMB -

DNRERBEME27(0) (i)

RER A
2014 2013
—E-QmE —E-=fF
HKS$" 000 HK$’ 000
FET FEx
333 174
849 568
394 140
469 S
2,045 882
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13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting) the following:

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

13. BRBLAIE R

BRBAEECHER (G A) THI&HE :

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —ZE-=
HK$’ 000 HKS$” 000
FHEx FHET
Directors’ emoluments (nofe 18) EEME (HFET8) 7,083 16,279
Other staff costs (including the Chief ~ H & T a4
Executive Officer's emoluments): (BRETHASN) :
Salaries, commission, bonus and Fe e AR
other benefits H 18 F 9.582 5,459
Retirement benefits scheme RREFIGT MR
contributions 156 102
Share-based payment expenses DERHAER ZNREAX - 2,266
Total staff costs including BEIREK(BEEEM2)
directors’ emoluments 16,821 24,106
Cost of inventories recognised EREERETPZHZ
as expenses in cost of sales FEAK 447,646 365,116
Fair value losses on investments BRAFEFABRZRE
at fair value through profit or ZAFEEBBEEE:
loss, net:
- unrealised losses from -RFEEEREZ
held-for-trading investments REREE 2,976 =
Depreciation e 1,901 787
Operating lease rentals in respect ERLtREFZ
of land and buildings KEANES 1,979 706
Auditor’s remuneration REMM e
- Current year’s provision - AEERE 785 750
- Under provision in respect of -~ LFEZBRETR
prior year 21 -
Legal, professional and AR SERERBEX
consultancy expenses 11,296 4,586
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) EREE (%) T8 505 (607)
Loss arising from payment of THEBEEEE
debt assignment (note) &8 () 19,500 - _
Y
v = )
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13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BRBLHIES 18 (48)

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company

and an independent third party (the "Current
Assignee”) entered into a settlement agreement
(the “Settlement Agreement”) to settle the debt of
approximately HK$40,000,000 (the “Disputed Loan®).
The Disputed Loan had been advanced by an original
lender (the "Original Lender”) and had been assigned
(the "Disputed Assignment”) to a former assignee in
previous years. The former assignee had assigned
the Disputed Loan to another former assignee in
previous years who was then further assigned the
Disputed Loan fo the Current Assignee in the current
year. The Original Lender does not admit the Disputed
Assignment and had initiated a lawsuit against the
Company which details are set out in note 45(a) to
the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant fo the
Setftlement Agreement, the Current Assignee agreed to
waive the outstanding balance of the Disputed Loan
(including the principal amount and the accrued
interests) by receiving an aggregate amount of
HK$24,000,000 by instalments, of which HK$4,500,000
will be paid upon the judgement issued by the Court
of Appeal on the said lawsuit initiated by the Original
Lender is favourable to the Company. The Company
could discharge its liability if and only if the Company
could repay the amount in accordance with the
terms set out in the Seftlement Agreement which has
been supplemented by a supplemental settlement
agreement dated 25 September 2014. During the
year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has recognised
HK$19,500,000 as loss arising from payment of
debt assignment in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

waz -

BE-Z-—NEFXA=TALEE K
AER-EBIE=FTBAZEAD
A —AEGE (REBED > X%
45 #40,000,000% T 2 &K ([F &
BEXD  FEEXHRERA(REX
ANBLZWERUETFEEESET — BA
TEA(FEER]D - ZBAZEAR
UEIFERERENERTS BT
EA BEHENAEERFRENE
BTEAEBEA RERALTERSE
BERIHADQAREFRD #FBARN
RE I IR M EA5(0) - RIBE MR B
BB BAREEZ S HREHRG
24,000,000 T2 REMBEFRER
WANESR (BREASENEFFR)
H 14,500,000 JTAE A L5 5EBE R il
HERERARE R H AR A TR
AT o it B WA D B REA IR IB A AR 1
Z(CREBBHA-—ZT—NFEAA=TE
BzRaAM@mBEmE ) i 2 k%
MEBEEERER  NATAERRE
BEEE -BE-Z-EOEXA=+AHL
FE AEECHAGRE2EKRERER
19,500,000 THEA XN EBEEELE
ZEE -
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. A8 B Z i
2014 2013
—E-NEF e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FET
Current tax: BIEARL 1A ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 395 916
Deferred tax (note 34): EIERLIE (H7E34)
Current year charge REEXZH 2,257 502
2,652 1,418
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEEFNESHRENEFE 2Lt ERB =
estimated assessable profit for both years. FHRBER16.5%T 5
The charge for the year can be reconciled fo the loss FRFIES A EAR S 2 U & T HIBR
before taxation per the consolidated statement of BRBEERNT !
comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
—E-—mEF =E—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FET
Loss before taxation R Bl A5 18 (54,227) (21,040)
Calculated at a taxation BREI65% (=T —=
rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 16.5%) st & (8.948) (3.471)
Expenses not deductible for IR
taxation purposes 8,330 2,166
Income not subject to taxation BAMBBA (255) (180)
Tax effect on tax loss not recognised AERHEBEEBREZHBSE 3,525 2,913
Tax reduction in respect of current tax ENEAFEE ~ F IE R & - 10)
Income tax charge BB H 2,652 1.418
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15.

16.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately HK$50,506,000
(2013: HK$26,852,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2014.

Reconciliation of the above amount of the
Company’s loss for the year:

15.

B HR M

FAEHAAEIEEGE

KPR BEEAEBLEEBERFHECES
£ #50,506,0008 Tt (=& — =

26,852,000/ T) ' ERELDRBE_-Z
—MERAETHLEFEZHBRRER -

bt FREAS N B AN 2 B 1R Y AR 0
T

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHET FET

Amount of loss attributable to RAQAB M BERREE 2

equity shareholders dealt with RERREGEBBESE

in the Company’s financial

statements (50,506) (26,852)
Allowance for impairment loss on PEUR BT 1B A B FRIE

amount due from subsidiaries ZHEBRREG (23,712) (4.624)
Company'’s loss for the year (note 36) ARQATREE ZEE (B7236) (74.218) (31,476)

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the Group’s loss aftributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$57,078,000 (2013:
HK$23,182,000) and on the weighted average
number of 1,702,275,000 (2013: 1,078,481,000)
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 30
June 2014 and 2013 were not presented as the
outstanding share options of the Company were
anti-dilutive.

16.

BiREE

BREXBEDEALNTDEBEABGEARE
B &5 4957,078,0008 T (=2 —=5:
23,182,000/8 7T) R F R BITR M 20
REF9801,702,275,000 (= &FE—=
1,078,481,0008%) 5t & -

HRAQRBZERITEEREEREE
FE BABIINBE_EZ-DOFR=-F
—ZERAZTHLEEZSREBEEE -
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17. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year
ended 30 June 2014 (2013: nil), nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2013: ten) directors are as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2014

MrKe  Mslo  Ms.lo

Jun Yuen Yuen  Mrfu  MrRao
Xiang loi Chung Daoding ~ Guimin

17.

18.

Mr.Ng
Simon

Iz B
MERBE_Z-—NFEAA=THLFE
RN RERKBRE (Z2—=F : &) - A

SMARRTEREIARE

EERITHAEMNE

Esie

ENHIENTAB(ZZE-—=ZF :+8)E
EEAZHEWNT :

Mr.Li
Mr.Chow  Chung Mr. Kwok
Yeung Kai, Mr.Chan Yam  Mr.Choi
Tuen  Philp  Siukay Sheung  ChinYu Tofal

AedAst EnBRt ERRT RETAE BERGY MHR%E §R9GE Z0E%: REERE JEMf: ERTAL it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Thr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEm  TEm  TEm TR
(noteiv)  (note i) (nofe i) (notei)
() (i) &) )
Fees e 2520 - 420 480 298 26 26 256 256 256 4,938
Other emoluments: Afhle:
Bosic solcries ond ERgEREy
ollowance 649 - 480 300 - - - 149
Refrement beneffs BIRERE s
schemes confributions 15 - B - 15 5
Discretionary bonus hiEta 30 - 10 55 36 36 1Y) 1Y) £ 663
Tofal emoluments a5é 352 - 993 535 2% 22 577 29 29 2 708
secilinef
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18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

18. EERTHARNE (&)

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2013

EEie (&)

BE-—E—=FAA=1THLFE

Mr Li
Mke  Mslo  Mslo Mr.Chow  Chung Mr. Kwok
i Yeen  Yeen  McFu MiRoo  MiNg o Yeung Kai,  Mr.Chan Yam  Mr.Choi
Xiang loi Chung Dooding ~ Guimin  Simon Tuen  Philp  Sukoy Sheung  ChinYu Tofal
AEREE EnBRT EnBat fETE: EERRE RHREE FRILE TAGRE REERE PEMRL ERRt o
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn Thr TEn  THRn  TEr  TEr  TRn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  THR
(noteiv) ~ (note i) (nofe i) (nofe )
W) (i) Wi ()
Fees e 1920 1772 390 127 360 00 20 25 25 192 5631
Other emoluments; Eftie
Bosic salaries and EREEREY
allowance 651 - - 134 - 785
Retirement benefits REA A
schemes confributions 9 15 15 - 10 1 - 5%
Discrefionary bonus RERL 00 3360 60 = 360 16 13 16 16 T 4148
Shareosed payments — WRBBEEZHE 984 93 689 - 689 9 49 689 689 -5
Tofol emoluments g4 360 608 1B 1 9 M w6 %0 %0 1% 1629
Note: et -
() Mr.Simon Ng was retired as director of the Company at (H MHEREEER=B-—F+=A=+—
the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on BRITZBRRBEAELERHGETEDQT
31 December 2012. #Eo
(i) Mr. Rao Guimin was appointed as director of the (i) HBEREER-_Z-—NF—A=EEZHE
Company on 3 January 2014 and was resigned as AXRREERR_-_Z—NFEA—HE
director of the Company on 1 June 2014. ERDFES o
(i) Ms. Lo Yuen Lai resigned as executive director and (i) EXBRIR-Z-=ZF-ALB#ME

deputy chairman of the Company on 5 June 2013.
Upon her resignation, the Company paid HK$3,060,000
as gratuity in respect of her past services, which is
included in discretionary bonus paid for the year
ended 30 June 2013. During the year ended 30 June
2014, the Group has not contributed any retirement
benefit schemes and/or paid any compensation to Ms.
Lo Yuen Lai.

ADBHTESRE IR - REHER &
DB B E B 1 IR % 32 143,060,000 T F
BAORME  DHABEZZE-=F7A8
=tRALFEENRBEREARN -BE-F
—OESNA=THLEFE  FEEWES
[E 7T BB & & T {E AT 3R 4R 38 A 5 8 4K
R/ SEETE Lt X AAEMHE -
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18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1. EERITHARMNE (B)

OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(iv) Basic salaries and allowances include benefits in
kind in respect of a director's quarter rented by the
Group with effect from 10 December 2012 with rental
expenses borne by the Group totaling approximately
HK$649,000 (2013: HK$651,000).

EEme (&)

BiaE - (4&)

(v) BEeHSREHOHALAEERA =S
—CEtC At EREANESEANE
WAl - BEE %A 4649,0008 5 (=
T = : 651,000/ %) A EEASE o

Chief Executive Officer's emoluments THERHME
The emolument paid to the Chief Executive Officer is ENFTREARZ2MESNT :
as follows:
Mr. Lee Tin Yau, Eugene
EREEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’ 000 HK$* 000
FHET FET
Basic salaries and allowances HAFE KB 780 125
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 75 -
Retirement benefit schemes RREFIET B
contributions 17 1
872 126

Note: Mr. Lee Tin Yau, Eugene joined the Company on
16 April 2013 as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and has ceased to take up the position as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective
from 12 August 2014.

d

M FRERERZZ-Z=ZFEA+EM
ARDBHEARATRAR LA =
E-MENATZHEFTBHEARDLT
THREE 8-

33
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19. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 19

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2013: three) were directors
of the Company and one (2013: nil) was the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 18 above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) were
as follows:

Bassic salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Discretionary bonus

Contributions to retirement benefit

BB TEAL

R ORTE FIE B AR
scheme

Share-based payments

The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two)
were within the following bands:

LUR D B ERE 2K

B HR M

A ESEME

AEBAUGSHFALTER WME(ZF
—ZHF ZR)RFLAEBER-B (=R
—ZF E)ARQATHRAR  HE
SRR EXHEI8 - HBEEME (ZE—=
FMEB)ATZHERIWT

BEXFHS ZHREYFHR

2014 2013
—ZE-F —E—=

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FTH&T

1,492 1,400

360 270

30 30

- 1,181

1,882 2,881

HBEMEB(CE-—=F 1 W8) ALt 2HE
BRUTHE :

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E-=F

Number Number

AE AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007% 7t - 1

During the year ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors and the
Chief Executive Officer, as an inducement fo join
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the year ended 30 June 2014 and
2013, no directors waived any emoluments.

BE-_Z-NFR-ZE—=FXA=+
BLEEE AEEBYENRAEREHAL
(BRESRTHRAR) IS RS &
EMAXREBRELBBEE - LI B
EE--NMER-Z-=FXA=1+AHL
FERALTEBEEHENS -
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

20. W% - HBRRE

The Group AEE
Furniture  Machinery
Leasehold and and Motor
improvements fixture equipment vehicles Total
HEVMELE HGRARRE BHERRE RE G
HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000
TER TER TER TER TET

Cost A

At 1 July 2012 RZZE-Z&#+tH-H 602 818 713 1,462 3,595

Additions hE 479 101 60 3,258 3,898

At 30 June 2013 and RZZ-=5XA=+H

1 July 2013 RZE-=F+tH—H 1,081 919 773 4,720 7,493

Additions NE - 64 41 6,310 6,415

Disposals HE - - - (623) (623)

At 30 June 2014 RZE-MERA=TAH 1,081 983 814 10,407 13,285
Accumulated depreciation REHE

At 1 July 2012 RZE-Zf#+tH—-H 602 738 688 670 2,698

Charge for the year AEEXH 16 36 8 727 787

At 30 June 2013 and R-E-=FXA=1H

1 July 2013 RZE-=%tA-H 618 774 696 1,397 3,485

Charge for the year REEXH 96 54 22 1,729 1,901

Eliminated upon disposal ~ HERKHE - - - (440) (446)

At 30 June 2014 RZZE-MERA=TH 714 828 718 2,680 4,940
Net book value REFE

At 30 June 2014 R-E-NFEAA=1H 367 155 96 7,727 8,345

At 30 June 2013 RZE-=%xA=+AH 463 145 77 3,323 4,008

s .
i,

1335



‘| 36 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 B Z—ZE—ENF=1+HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

(Continued)

The Company

Cost
At 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013
and 1 July 2013
Additions

At 30 June 2014

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013
and 1 July 2013
Charge for the year

At 30 June 2014

Net book value
At 30 June 2014

At 30 June 2013

oS
AZE-—ZHF+tA—-H -ZZT-=55XA
E=—ZTE—-=HtH—8H
RE

R-E-mEXA=+H

SEHE

AZE-—FtA-0 —B-ZFXA
R-Z—=%+tHA—A

AR

R=ZZE-WFESA=+H

AR FE
AZE-NFEARA=1H

B HR M

20. % -« B2 RERE (B)

Machinery
and
equipment
MR RE
HK$" 000
THET

26

26
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSET 21. BILEE
The Group FEHE
Money lender
licence
HMEA MR
HK$" 000
FHET
At 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013 and R=ZF—Z=-FtA—H-
1 July 2013 —E-=5XA=1H
E=—Z-=%5+tHA—H =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(a)) Wb — M B A R (F237(a)) 2,000
At 30 June 2014 R-ZE—WFERA=TH 2,000
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company HE-Z—NFAA=1tHLFE &2
acquired a subsidiary which only held a money Tl LL#92,000,00058 Jt 2 1% 18 Uk B8 — 5 B
lender licence (the “Licence”) at the date of BAEMZATN SR BEHEZFTEREA
completion with a consideration of approximately R ([ZER]) ZEBRRIRAEEE
HK$2,000,000. The Licence is freated as having an EEHRZEARAFEH  BAXRATNEER
indefinite useful life as, in the opinion of the directors HOAKEEZRERBEC LR BERE
of the Company, the Group has involved in money ER WA KREER T UEIEEHRE AR
lending business immediately after the acquisition EEERFELSTHA - At ZEBET
and expected that the money lending business S TEEEREEETSETRET
could contribute net cash inflows to the Group BE BB ETRERE
indefinitely. Accordingly, the Licence would not be
amortised and would be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment festing, the Licence FORENRERMS  ZERESBEEURLAD
has been allocated to a cash generating unit FA—RBNENEXER 2B ARKE 218

("CGU") operating as a subsidiary of the Company SEASBEN(HREELEEN]) -
which is engaged in money lending business.

s



‘| 38 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %3 R Miat

For the year ended 30 June 2014 B ZE=—F—ENA=+HILEE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued) 21. BEEE (&)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budget approved by management
covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of
15.84%.
using capital asset pricing model ("CAPM") taking

Management estimates discount rate by

infto account risk-free rate and equity risk premium,
and adjusted by startup premium and size premium.
Cash flows beyond that 5-year period have been
exfrapolated using a steady 2.08% per annum
growth rate which is/does not exceed the projected
long-term average growth rate for the money lending
market. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation include discount for lack of marketability,
estimated number and amount of loans advanced
during the budget period and interest rate charged
to the expected borrowers. Management believed
that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

ReELBENZIKRESERREFRE
BEEEE ZAEEREREEEHE
ZHFHNMETRE UK 15.84%HBER =
ETRER2TEN EEEBHEHRELRE
EEERE (EXEEEERE]) mdst
BIRE  EHEZEERBAEMBRAR
BRE TERERARDSEREELEE
ERZE BBAFHNESREFAEE
H2.08%FIBREHE  MILW FHBM
ETEZEARBESERE -HEFEA
EEWE@EE@E@%&E%L&Z%
ZFAEABEARREZEHERTRE
HETEREE u&ﬂﬁ%%ﬁAwmzﬂ
Z . BEERE  ANZERIZHEMEME
B2 rTeERReELEENNS
TREERRRESECEN AT TRE
-l
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMBATZ’E
The Company
b NN
2014 2013
—®-mE —z-=
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THET FiExT
Unlisted shares, at cost LM A 2,020 20
Contribution to subsidiaries HHEBLAREE (K ()
(note (a)) 3,340 3,340
5,360 3,360
Due from subsidiaries (note (b)) FE W Bt B A B 2 FRIE (MY aE (b)) 153,686 80,751
Less: Impairment loss (nofe (¢)) W ORERE (B (c)) (81,070) (57.358)
72,616 23,393
Due to a subsidiary (note (b)) FEAS — FEI B R 2 B 2 FRIR
(MaEb)) (8) (10)
Note: Hiat -
(a) During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company (o) BEZFZ-—MNEAA=+HLEE AR

has not recognised any additional contribution to
subsidiaries as the Company has not granted any
share options to employees of its subsidiaries. The
aggregate fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 30 June 2013 amounting
to HK$1,378,000 was recognised as contribution to
subsidiaries. Details are set out in note 43(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.

(b) The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non- (b)

interest bearing and have no fixed term of repayment.

minf

ARABUEOHEWEQREERLEM
BRE  AREAUEEIEME AR 2E
AENHE -BE-FT-—=F-A=1
ALEFE CREBREZAQRIFESR
1,378,000/ T » NHERBEUMBLE 2
HE o FIFRN GRS M B HRKRMEEI3(D)

HENELRZEBREEN  2ERER
EEFA o

139
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

L)

22. RMIB AT 2R & (&8)

(c) Due fo the dismal performance of certain subsidiaries,

impairment testing for amounts due therefrom was
performed. An impairment was recognised for certain
amounts due from subsidiaries with carrying amount
of approximately HK$82,097,000 (2013: HK$57,385,000)
(before deducting the impairment loss) because these
subsidiaries have deficiency in assets and, accordingly,
a portion of the receivables is impaired. An impairment
loss amounting to approximately HK$23,712,000 (2013:
HK$4,624,000) was recognised for the year ended 30
June 2014.

Movement in the allowance for impairment loss for the
year ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FAEER
Impairment loss recognised on FE W B I A B SR IE
amounts due from subsidiaries ZERIABERSE

Balance at end of the year FRER

(c) HRETHEBLAARRABEAZR CHE
WERMB AR 2 REETRERNR
ERREE#82,097,0008 T (ZF—=
% 1 57,385,000/ T) (BB ERBEA)
ZETRWHE AT FAE®RZBREE R
EREEMBARSRKEEESA  Bit
HOERREHRBE BE-F O
FRA=+TRLFECERIBEBEN
23,712,000/ T (=& — =% : 4,624,000
BT °

BE-®-NER-FB-=FAA=+A
LEETREFRRFERDOT :

2014 2013
—2-nmF —z-=
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
F#x T
57,358 52,734
23,712 4,624
81,070 57,358
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. R BAT 2R E ()
(Continued)
(d) Particulars of subsidiaries @ MBARZHE
The Company has direct or indirect interests in the RZZB-—MFRA=+H XARHEFU
following subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014, all of which THEARzEESHEER  Z50H
are private companies. Details of these companies are HEMBARRE  HFBWOT :
as follows:
Issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity
Place of share/ interest
incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
Name operation capital to the Group Activities
EmEL BRTRAR AEBELNG
DRAER S RA B A RAESEE DL TEXEH

Directly held Hi##4H

CIL (Singapore) Investments Singapore Singapore Dollar 100% Distribution of
Holdings Pte. Ltd. sk (SGD) 1 rice cookers and
137 3% T household electrical

appliances

Flaconwood Ltd. British Virgin Islands uss$1 100% Investment holding
KBRLERE (ESH REZR

Golden Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
ERNHBERAA =58 BR REER
Idea Wisdom Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
Limited e 10,0007 7t REER
Inout Jewellery Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
EiE & REER

Pilot Apex Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Dormant
Limited 5B 10,0007 7T TEEX
Silver Gain Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
REBXERDNHE 58 18T REZR
United Eagle Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Money lending
EREERERAR e 18T BE

v _ ‘
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(d) Particulars of subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
Name operation
EMARL,
DRER EES 1
Indirectly held &5
AVTE Company Limited Hong Kong

All subsidiaries undertakings are included in the
consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent
company do noft differ from the proportion of ordinary
shares held.

(e) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group

that have material non-controlling interests:

22. RMIB AT 2R & (&8)

L)

() MEBRTZFE

Issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity
share/ interest
registered attributable Principal
capital to the Group Activities
BRITRMR AEMERL
RA /R8RS RAERE 2 TEEH
HK$4,500,100 90% Distribution of
4,500,100 7T server storage,

multi-media and
communication

products
DERARBRRET
ZEBRBAER

FEMBRREEE AR - F0ARKHE
NEEESENRRELFIEAREER
B £t 451 36 4 (& Bl

(e) FAEE-BFEEMBAREAERNFE
BERES  ZQBNFBEOT

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interests and voting

and principal rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary business interests interests interests

0 R L i B R FERBEEREZRE PEFHER
MEDREH TELEME BREZRRRE 2L - Rt RRER

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

—®-mE —¥-=F —B-NF -F-=F —B-NF —F-=F

AVTE Company Hong Kong 10%
Limited (CAVIE") &

HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TiEx TiER TR FTiER

10% 199 724 3,386 3,187

Summarised financial information in respect of AVTE
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

BEBRAVIEN M B EMMERSINT » T5I
BBERBRRRAREEERIBEHAH
B
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. R BAT 2R E (&)

(Continued)

(e) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the (e FEBE-HF2EMBARNEBEANE
Group that have material non-controlling interests: ERER  ZORMNFENT - (8)
(Continued)

Summarised statement of financial position of AVTE AVTERI BT FE AR K 2 HEZE
2014 2013
—T-mF SIS
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FTET
Current assets REEE 97.796 73,102
Current liabilities FBEE (90.000) (67,263)
Net current assets REBEEFE 7,796 5,839
Non-current assets FREBEE 2,083 2,016
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 9.879 7.855
Non-current liabilities *RBEE (194) 157)
Net assets EEFE 9.685 7.698
Reconciliations: #EE -
Share of net assets by FERERELEEFE
non-controlling interests 969 770
Adjustments for: BMUTEBEEHAE
Net liabilities fully attributable to R-ZEZAFLA—A8H
owners of the Company TERBRADTEBA
prior to 1 July 2009 ZEERE 1,027 1,027
Cumulated net profits for the AU IE R IR R 2 FEAE
period on or after 1 July 2009 —EENFLBE—HH
attributable to former ZEEB AR AT
non-controllinginterests which were (BRARMBBE
related to a transaction prior to R E27%% (B1ERT)
the adoption of HKAS 27 (revised) Az —EXS) 1.390 1,390
Carrying amount of non-controlling SRR 2 REE
interests 3,386 3,187
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= E? =
22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. M BAT 2/ E (&)

(Continued)

(e) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the (e FEBE-HIF2EMBLARNABEANE
Group that have material non-controlling interests: ERER  ZORMNFENT 0 (8])
(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income of AVIER in & 2B W i K
AVTE
2014 2013
—E-ImF =5
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FER FTER
Revenue W= 462,548 382,834
Gross profits E & 16,017 17,718
Other incomes Hepr A 1,883 924
Expenses B (15,520) (11,363)
Profit before tax R 5% B E A 2,380 7,279
Income tax expenses FRiEH < (393) (1,418)
Profit for the year 7N R F 1.987 5,861
Total comprehensive income AEEZHRRER
for the year 1,987 5,861
Add: share option expenses fully m:Z2HRERAERATEEA
attributable to owners ZBRAER X
of the Company - 1,378
Profit for the year before share RetBERER I 2 RFEEF
option expenses 1,987 7,239
Profit and fotal comprehensive BT ALTEEERR
income attributable to: THEb AR
- non-confrolling inferests —FFERER 199 724
- owners of the Company —RATREBA 1,788 5,137
1,987 5,861
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENTFHERESEZRE

interests - -
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(®

®

(9@

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:
(Continued)

22. RMB AT 2R & (8)

(e) FAEE-—BFEEMBATNEFERN-E
BEREDS  ZRFWFEOT ¢ (5)

Summarised statement of cash flows of AVTE AVIERI B % i B H T ZE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —B-Z=F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTHERT FTHET
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEFH2RE RE)
operating activities PPN (13,342) 6,097
Net cash outflow from investing RETBH 2RSSR B FE
activities (569) (1,757)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMETH2EHERA
financing activities CR ) E8 18,095 (4,849)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRkALEEEHZ
and cash equivalents B GRd) 58 4,184 (509)
Cash and cash equivalent FUzREeRBESLEEER
at beginning of year 1,354 1,863
Cash and cash equivalent FHzRekReEHEER
at end of year 5,538 1,354
Significant restrictions @  EERH

As at 30 June 2014, a subsidiary of the Company
maintains its cash and short-term deposits of
approximately HK$229,000 (2013: HK$651,000) in
banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is subject
fo relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

Financial support

As at 30 June 2014, the Company has issued a
financial guarantee to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company.
Details of which are set out in nofe 41 below.

REZE-NERA=1H  ARAZKE
RAEFEAZRTEAEREREHRER
#229,000/8 T (=& — =4 : 651,000/8
7T)  BERRZERE B BB B M
#E B M B AR B R ARG TR A o

(9) HMBERF
RZZE-MEXA=1+H > RAAFEFK

REMELRNERRITBRERRITRES
BIEMR - ARG IEEMN T XML -

minf
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 23. T &R E
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Available-for-sale investment: AHERE
Promissory notes, designated as AAE RERBIAREE
such at initial recognition, RIEATEFE
at fair value 2,384 -
On 6 May 2014, the Group and a borrower (the "PN R-ZE-—NERAAHE AEEHE—-FZE
Borrower”) entered into a loan agreement pursuant FATENEBRADITLER WS ' B
to which the Group agreed to subscribe three series o REBRERE=ARINLAEELS
of promissory notes with aggregate face values of 2,730,000 T AN ZE « RN EEFKA
approximately HK$2,730,000. The PN Borrower has RENEFMARL—BAT ([EKEE])
incorporated a company in Indonesia (the "Business HEAREERBEAEBRR - —NERA
Entity") which is a customer of the Group distributing ABFTYZERDHHE (EXRDHH
rice cooker and electronic appliances under a EMOBERERFIEERE2—BE
country distribution agreement (the "Country B o
Distribution Agreement”) entfered into with the Group
on 6 May 2014.
Details of the promissory notes are as follows: ANEHBUOT :
Promissory Note A - advances of approximately AN ER - AREERERSERRERA
HK$1,248,000 before the commencement of business B A ZERABTKL1,248,00058 7T ;
of the Business Entity by the Group to the PN
Borrower;
Promissory Note B - an amount of approximately ENEZ—#780,0008 T RIBER RS
HK$780,000 to be deposited as the performance HRENGEREEBORES

bond under the terms of the Country Distribution
Agreement; and
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

(Continued)

Promissory Note C - A series of monthly advances
with aggregate amounts of approximately
HK$702,000 to be paid to the Business Entity as
monthly operating expenses of the Business Entity.

The promissory notes are secured by the issued
shares of the Business Entity to the Group held by
the PN Borrower and are repayable on or before 31
December 2016 by way of selling and transferring all
the issued shares of the Business Entity to the Group
or its assignee basing on the face value of each
of the promissory notes or basing on the net assets
value of the Business Entity, whichever is higher, as
determined by its most current financial statement
as at the end of the calendar month.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has advanced
approximately HK$2,400,000 to the PN Borrower,
of which approximately HK$780,000 is deemed
as seftlement of the deposit received under the
terms of the Country Distribution Agreement. The
remaining balance of approximately HK$330,000 is
included in other commitments in note 38(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

23.

wf

o £ & (8)

ANER-BROEREEITZ-—RIE
B8x%  #ENR702,00008 T @ FEH%E
BEEBNESALEEMX -

FHANERAANEERAKELES
ZEBBERBCBRTROBER T AEEE
EH AERBREAR-Z-—<"E+=A
=t—HZzA  BRERENEANEZE
ERRERER2EEFE(RBEERE
RAERKZRFIVBHRRMEE) (URS
ERBE)HENERXRER N RT
BROFAEBRHEZBAZTAMERE -

R-ZZ-—WEANA=1TH AEECHK
TE/RABF 2,400,000 7T » &P
#780,0008 TR BEBFRIBERD HT
BHNERC R ZESE o 825E4330,0005%
Tt ABRE I MRMEEIS(C)MEZH
b7 o
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
(Continued)

The fair values of the promissory notes at 30 June
2014 are calculated using the BOPM. The inputs to
the model were as follows:

Estimated value of the Business
Entity per share (note (i)

Expected volatility (nofe (ii))

Risk free rate (nofte (iii))

Credit spread assumed for the

PN Borrower (nofte (iv)) (FEE(Iv))
Discount rate (nofe (v)) BRIR R (MfaF(v))
Dividend yield BRE=
Nofe:

(i) Expected value of the Business Entity per share is
determined by a 5-year budget suggested by the
Business Entity with growth rates ranging from 6-8% for
an initial three years period and stabilised afterwards.

(i)  Expected volatility is the annualised standard deviation
of the confinuously compounded rates of return on the
daily average adjusted share prices of comparable
companies.

(iii)  Risk-free rate is determined by reference to the yields to

maturity of US Government securities.

(iv) Credit spread assumed by the PN Borrower is

determined by reference to counterparties with similar

credit rating as suggested by a credit rating agent.

(v) Discount rate is determined in accordance with

CAPM by reference to the average equity beta of

comparable companies, market premium and country

risk premium.

23.

TR R (HEE (D))
32 [ ba R =R (B (i)
RENRERAR

=R1Y

BeEERE

B HR M

o EiE ()

ANER-Z-MENA=Z+THZAFME
DA REEENTE - RAZER
ZHRAHBENT

BiEE -

@

(i)

@il

)

Z

At 30 June 2014
R-ZZE-WFNA=1H

EBBER2BRMETTEE MED))

HK$4,1987% T
39.620%
0.678%

26.870%
45.01%
0%

EBERCERMAFTEESREBERE
B2OFHRIMEE  BE=F2BRE
NFOo-8hMERZEBRERBEE °

FEHRERTLERA AN FIEAKHAR
REZZFEEFNEHENFE(EEE -

BERBARDSEXEARAEZ 2EHA
Wy g5 i B E o

ANBRERABRZEERENZ2ZE—F
B AMBERCAUEEFANRSY
FREE -

MREERBEFLGECEEIEE &
HBETLRA RN PIERETRE
mEaENEREREEMEE -
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
(Continued)

23. T B E (&)

BE-ZT—NEFXA=1THLEAREAR » &
from change in fair value of the promissory notes REAFEEBHEELE2EEN16,0008 T
of approximately HK$16,000 (2013: nil) has been (ZZ2—=F B )ERGFEEHEWERZ

During the year ended 30 June 2014, loss arising

recognised in other comprehensive loss in the Hth2HEEERER -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
24. INVENTORIES 24. 58
The Group
NEE
2014 2013
—E-ImF =
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
Trading inventories B85 7FH 23,633 24,199
25. LOANS RECEIVABLE 25. B E =R
The Group The Company
r&E NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mFE —E-=Z§ ZZE-mF —E-Z=F%
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TER THERT TERr
Loans receivable EWER 40,709 - 23,587 -
) h i
Y - +
i §
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25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Note:

(@

®)

As a

collateral or other credit enhancements

Pursuant to a cooperation agreement (the
"Cooperation Agreement”) executed between the
Company and shareholders of BEMmkiZth A
AREBMRAT ("ShuiLiFang”) in June 2014, among
other things, the Company agreed fto acquire 70%
of equity interest in ShuiliFang with a consideration
of RMB 2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$
2,609,000, the “ShuiLiFang Deposit”) and agreed to
make an advance of RMB18,900,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,587,000, the “Loan to ShuilLiFang”)
fo ShuiliFang. The Loan to ShuiliFang is classified as
loans receivable, which is interest-free, unsecured and
has no fixed terms of repayment as at 30 June 2014.
Further details of the Cooperation Agreement are set
out in note 27(b)(i).

On 26 September 2014, the Company and the
shareholders of ShuiLiFang entered into a fermination
agreement (“ShuiliFang Termination Agreement”)
pursuant to which, both parties have agreed to
terminate the Cooperation Agreement. Details are
set out in note 46(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s loans receivable balances of
approximately HK$17,122,000 as at 30 June 2014
represents receivables arising from the money lending
business of the Group and carry fixed rate interests at
contractual rates ranging from 12% to 24% per annum.
The granting of these loans has been approved and
monitored by the Company’s executive directors in
charge of the Group’s money lending operations.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management.

t 30 June 2014, the Group does not hold any
over the

loans receivable.

B HR M

25. FEML &k (48)

waz -

(@

®)

H=

BIEAATEEMH KL ALAEER
AR ([KRZHF DN BRRAR-E—NFRAZE
YA ERE (AERED Bl (HF
BIE) AN A T E = W K AL 55 970%8% A
% REAARY2,100,0005T (HE R
#92,609,000/ ) ([kzFkE]) » AE
B @KL BT AR%18,900,0005T (18
&M #23,587,0005% 5t) ([ 7k 3z 15 1= 44
ZER] c MAKAGIRMZER D ERE
WEH  DTR=ZZ-NEXA=+HAE%
E EEAREETEERY &FHE2
E—-SHBHNGRE T HEERERMT27(D)
()

REZZB-—MFEAAZ+RH  AQFEK
S35 BRR AT MK 5 48 Ak g (kL35 4
LD BRITHAEFEEBLKLESE
ek o FEIEBMN GRS BB RKRMEE46(E) °

AEER-Z-NFXA=ZTHAZEBRE
FEEERK17,122,0008 TR RAEBE M E
EBEECRWRE  REENFI2EE
UBZEHNRNEFEERTEFE - LEERK
ZERHEREEAEEREXRB ZAQE
BTESHETAZIREZER - @1
HHESHREEBTHRE -

E-NEARA=ZTH AEELERR

FRERSAEEMERRIEBEERHA

B H

o
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25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 25. FEW B3k (48)
The aged analysis of the loans receivable that are WRAWEBEZERER 2R D
not considered to be impaired is as follows: T
The Group The Company
AEE U
2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-mE —E-=Z§ ZZ-mE —EZ-=%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TAR TERT TERT TET
Neither past due nor impaired SRBER IS EORE 40,709 - 23,587 -
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired SKBH R E 2 FEWERIE S & 2 BT H
relate to a number of borrowers for whom there was WEERNCEZERARELETLE R
no recent history of default, or the default has been FRMUE - BELR  XQAFAHTESR
rectified during the year. Based on past experience, B HRZSEFREBZEEEZNREERE
the executive directors of the Company were of the KEH BN\ ARBREUWE - HBEE
opinions that no allowance for impairment loss was HAR AR EEERE
necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.
26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. FEWE 5 IRAR R R
The Group
rEEH
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
Trade receivables EWE SRR 69,256 46,440
Bills receivables EWEE - 557
69,256 46,997
i
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26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. EWBE SRR RERE ()

(Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on open account terms, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. Certain trade receivables were fransferred
to a financial institution under a non-recourse
factoring agreement. The credit period is generally
for a period of up to 105 days (2013: 105 days).
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outfstanding receivables to minimise its credit risk.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing and their carrying amounts approximate fo
their fair values.

The following is an ageing analysis of frade
receivables, based on invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0230XK
31 - 60 days 31ZE60XK
Over 60 days 60K £

Most of the frade receivables are neither past due
nor impaired and have good repayment history in
prior years. Included in the Group'’s frade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$21,601,000 (2013: HK$5,496,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

FEEEEEFNEZRRERUHKRTY
HET EFEF-—REBEARR-ET
ERESERRTDBE - RBEEREREH
BEET BB - FEH-REBS
BI0BKR (ZE—=F:1105K) - REEY
HARWE e IR S R - 3R
BEEAR SRAEEESEHERAY
HEHR -RBREZSRRARES  BHRKREE
BEHEAFEAS -

RIBEBRAY  BREZRIVBSHR
ZERE DA

2014 2013
—g-mE = —E-=%
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHE FHx
35,131 27,148
18,362 12,501
15,763 6,791
69,256 46,440

Ao EWE 5 R A I BB RIS &R
EMRUEFEZERTHRRY - A5
ZERWESRNEHRETARKREAES
21,601,000/ T (=& — =% : 5,496,000
BR)2BREZRERRBESHRED
HmAEEL RS IFTIRBAERE - K&
BYERZEERTEETMERR -
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26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

An aged analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired, based on past due date,

is as follows:

Less than 1 month past due BHETZEIEA
1 to 3 months past due BA1Z3@EA
More than 3 months past due BHRBE3EA

The tfrade receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that have good frack
records with the Group. Management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. A substantial amount
of which has been received after the end of the
reporting period.

At 30 June 2014, the Group does not have any
bills receivables. At 30 June 2013, the Group’s bills
receivable balances amounting to HK$557,000 were
tfransferred to a financial institution in exchange for
cash. The fransaction had been accounted for as
collateralised bank advances.

At 30 June 2014, tfrade receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$49,225,000 (2013:
HK$24,632,000) have been charged fo secure the
general banking facilities of the Company (nofe 42).

26. BB SRR R FR (8)

ERHELRRNEERE S RAREE
HMAZKREIHAOT :

2014 2013
—E-—nmEF ===

HK$" 000 HK$’ 000

TR FET

19,393 3.428

2,208 2,067

= 1

21,601 5,496

CRRETENEZRRERRINEEH
BEFHEAREBAATHERY - EEEM
o EREEEZRAES KZEHME /D
ABTUERHBEZS AR BLBERR
ZEREBTRBERES NBREDBE
BREWEZEEHHKRED -

R-ZZE-—WEANA=1TH  AEELEF
AEKERE - R=—B—=F A=1+8"
RNEEA H£557,0008 T 2 BN E B 4 6
CHEET-BSRAEEURERS - 28
RBEANRIEFEBRITRR -

R-ZZE-OFANA=ZTH -BKHE
/49,225,000t (ZE— =5
24,632,000/ 7T) 2 EWE 5 R E B
REE-RBTMEWIKP @ (HE42) -

) ~ 45

A
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Rental deposit Here

Deposit paid to secure an BRAEHREzZEIRE
agency agreement (W)
(nofe (a))

Purchase deposits BEES

Deposits paid for acquisition of WEMBARZENES
subsidiaries (note (b)) (HiZ b))

Others 2ty

Less: amount classified as

Amou

Note:

(@

BoBEARBRO SR
current portion

nt classified as non-current AEAERBBH2EE

On 18 November 2013, the Company and BER&4E
EEBMRAT ("Guangdong Hotor”) entered into an
agency agreement, pursuant to which, among other
things, the Company or its subsidiaries were appointed
by Guangdong Hotor as the exclusive sales agent of
Guangdong Hofor in the regions including Southeast
Asia, the Middle East, Africa and South America, for an
initial ferm of 3 years commencing from the date of
signing of the agency agreement. The Company has
paid HK$20,000,000 to Guangdong Hotor under the
terms of the agency agreement which will be refunded
to the Company after the termination of the agency
agreement. Guangdong Hotfor agrees fo provide
corporate guarantee for the amount of the deposit in
full.

B HR M

27 ARRIE - &R H B

I8
The Group The Company
x50 x4
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mFE  —E-=§ ZE-mF —ZT-Z=F%
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TR TERT TERT TERT
582 985 - 67
20,000 - 20,000 -
3,300 695 - -
10,640 7,000 10,640 7,000
3,291 1,299 1,646 713
37,813 9,979 32,286 7,780
(14,206) (9.979) (8.679) (7.780)
23,607 - 23,607 -
Mt

(o) R=ZZB-—Z=5+—-A+N\B £ARQEHEE

RERERERLABD(ERESDITX
RIEHE - B (P EE) R HAEK
BARERERREREARERERNZME
WE(BFEREE - PR FMNREEN
ZBREERE  AFTREGZE A HE
SAOSRH=F - AR FACREREHZH
Z R B B SR E 4% 2 4920,000,000/8 7T -
BERESNRERZRULBRRETARQ
A BEREBRERZREZ2HEHR
HATFER -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries

®

@

On 26 June 2014, the Company and the
shareholders of ShuiliFang entered into the
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which,
among other things, the Company agreed to
acquire and the shareholders of ShuilLiFang
agreed fo sell 70% equity interest in ShuiliFang to
the Company at a consideration of RMB2,100,000
(equivalent fo approximately HK$2,609,000). The
acquisition is conditional upon the completion
of changes of shareholders of ShuiliFang and
ShuiliFang could be changed fo sino-foreign
equity joint ventures in the PRC, within 6 months
commencing from the date of signing the
Cooperation Agreement.

On 26 September 2014, the Company and the
shareholders of ShuiliFang have entered into
ShuiliFang Termination Agreement. Details are set
out in nofe 46(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Included in the balance as at 30 June 2013 was
an amount of HK$7,000,000 (the “2012 Earnest
Money”) in relation fo an earnest money paid fo
AREBMBEESGRAE (XiZang QiMing”) pursuant
fo a memorandum of understanding (the "2012
MOU") entered into between the Company,
XiZang QiMing and BMEERRANEERAF
("HeDao HuanBao”) dated on 17 December
2012. Pursuant to the 2012 MOU, among other
things, the Company, XiZang QiMing and HeDao
HuanBao set forth the understanding and certain
inifial ferms with regard to the purchase by the
Company or its subsidiary of the entire or part of
the equity inferest in the farget company, which
is principally engaged in the copper mining
business in the province of Tibet, the PRC.

27 AARIE « &R H b B

wf

I5 (88)

®)

®

@i

WHEHBAR ZENES

RZZB-MEARAZ+RBE &RA
RIEEK 2 RRA] LA FHE -
Bt (K ag) A2 8 E =W iEm
KA RREE HE KL NT70%
BRAEZTART  KEHBARYE
2,100,0007¢ (& R £2,609,000
ET) - WEEEARSRET S FH
& AHEET 268 B MFE R KT
PR 3R 8 88 LA J% K 37 4 A #E ) 35 R Bl
MPMEESEREER  HAFE -

R-ZE-—WMFARAZ+H  E2Q
R BRI R RAT LKL 4 1k
W HEENGREVERERME
26(e)

R-ZZE-—=FXA=t+Hz&&
o B RIEA A R T A IR R
¥ERAT (AREBD REM
AEEBRRBNEERARN(EER
RDFATLABRA=-ZT——F+=
AttHzHmREsE(=2—=
FRMBESE ) ME XS FRRM
18 2 3 = € 19 € %87,000,0005% 7T
=Z—=—F#HE2)) - RE=F
—EFFRESH(EREE) KA
A -AREBRAERRAIEMH
AATRREMBLARBERZAT
2HRBIREAEE ZFBRET
PDEHR BEBEARDEERPEA
WA BREBERELS -

1555



‘| 56 CIL Holdings Limited ZEZiZRAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 BRE—ZE—ENA=1HILFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
(Continued)

@i

(Continued)

On 27 September 2013, the Company, XiZang
QiMing and HeDao HuanBao entered into
a termination agreement (“XiZang QiMing
Termination Agreement”) to terminate the 2012
MOU. XiZang QiMing agrees to refund the 2012
Earnest Money in full to the Company within
3 months from the date of XiZang QiMing
Termination Agreement.

On 31 July 2013, the Company entered into
a memorandum of understanding (the "2013
MOU") with Mr. Wu Huafeng ("Mr. Wu") and
Luna Star International Limited (“Luna Star”)
in relation to, among other things, setfting forth
the understanding and certain initial terms
with regard to purchase by the Company or its
subsidiaries of the entire issued share capital in
Luna Star, which, upon completion of the relevant
restructuring, would indirectly hold the properties
in Guangzhou, the PRC. The Company had paid
HK$2,000,000 as an earnest money (the "2013
Earnest Money”) to Mr. Wu after the execution
of the 2013 MOU. The amount was recorded
as deposit in the Company’s and the Group’s
financial statements as at 30 June 2014.

On 27 September 2013, the Company, Mr. Wu and
Luna Star entered into a termination agreement
("Luna Star Termination Agreement”) to terminate
the 2013 MOU. Mr. Wu agrees fo refund the 2013
Earnest Money in full to the Company within 3
months from the date of Luna Star Termination
Agreement.

On 26 June 2014, HeDao HuanBao agreed to
undertake the repayment of remaining un-
refunded deposits of approximately HK$8,500,000
under XiZang QiMing Termination Agreement and
Luna Star Termination Agreement pursuant to
two undertaking and extension agreements (the
“Undertaking and Extension Agreements”).

B HR M

27 AARIE - & R H B

I5 (88)

(b)) WEMBRARZESNES (F)

)

(7&)

R-ZE-—=5AA=t++tR &2
A ARBEBRAEERRIII -7
RIEH R (TR A LD -
MEIE=E-——FR@ETHE A
FES R ENARBIS K LR A
MBS =EARBADEBEERE
—E-CFHEE-

R-ZZE-—=FtA=+—-H0 %
AEERFEREE (REEDR
Luna Star International Limited
([Luna Star]) fFT L FR B E = #
=Z2-—=Fn#BEs%]) AR
BER(EPER) #HIBEEARAAH
HfBATEELuna Starz 2 2
TRAZFEBRE TNLHER B
It > Luna StarRERBEBEAE K
BEBETFEEMNETYE - &2D
FERBI-_Z-—=FERBESE
%\ R 54 X 142,000,000 T 2 3
Ee((Z2—=FEHZE2]) -5H
SEDIRADAREEBBE=Z
—mOEARA=Z+BZHBEHRRBA
REIMERE -

R=ZZE—=FAA=++tRH &2
A~ RE4ERLuna StarsT M — 174
b5 ([Luna Starf& b1 ) -
LRIE-E-=FHHAESE R
SR ERLuna Stari k1753 B 5
BF=EAARAQRBERES
E-=ZFHEL-

RZZE-—WMFEXRAZ+XB &8
RIRRERBEM DAL RERG R
(MFAEREEHE] RFEEEARE
EHIE LR FI K Luna StarfR IE 175
TR s ARIRIBIR £ 498,500,000/
5o
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
(Continued)

()

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Undertaking and Extension
Agreements, the outstanding balance is non-
interest bearing, unsecured and a portion of
which would be repayable by monthly equal
instalment with the final instalment expected to
be in November 2016, and as a result, a fair value
adjustment of approximately HK$469,000 (2013:
nil) was made with reference to the benchmark
interest rate of loans for a term of three years
as announced by the People’s Bank of China
of 6.15% at the date when the Undertaking and
Extension Agreements have been entfered info,
which has been recognised as finance cost in
the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 30 June 2014 (note 12).

28. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

27 AARIE « &R H b B

I5 (88)

(b)) WEMEBARZESNES (F)

(i

()

RIBAB R G - REBED
TFE BERAREF-—RBIEE
RO HESHER MEK KA
BAMBR-ZZB-—R"E+-AXHN "
Hit E2ZHEARBITRES
REMHHBITLE R A2 =F
MEREEFNRL6IEMFEH D
T EFARENL69,0008 T (=ZF—
FIE) FRERECRBE=Z
—OEXRA=ZTRLEFEZHRENR
HREXDBERAE (HaE12) -

S

]

28. MAFEFAEBEZRE

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHEx FET
Current assets RENEE
Held-for-trading listed equity BEEELTRARSE
investments, at fair value, BRATE (M) -
listed in (nofte):
- Hong Kong —-&% 39,319 -
- Elsewhere —Hibhith & 989 -
40,308 -
i
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28. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  28.
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

As at 30 June 2014, the listed equity investments were held
for trading and were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The fair values of the listed equity
investments listed in Hong Kong and in elsewhere were
determined by quoted bid prices in an active market and
an inactive market, respectively. Details are set out in note 7.

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of the following
listed equity investment exceeded 10% of the Group'’s total

assets.

Name of Place of Principal

investee incorporation activities

BEERE

PEEE: ! o B 3 3ts BE EX-+ 31

Finsoft Cayman Development, sale and provision
Corporation Islands of financial trading software

BG4 AT HERS solutions, provision of referral

services, money lending business
and securifies investments

M HERRHEERZZEMN
BRI R REBNRE
HEXEBRESFRE

B HR M

BRAFHEFANRRZRE (8)

BiEE -

RZZB—MFXA=+TH  LTREARESE
BBV EARATFEFTABEZEREE -
REBLTRREMBE LT EHREARE
ZAFEDD BERERT SR TERT S TR
ZEREMEE - FEHNMET -

REZZ-—OFXA=Z+H TIHLETREARE
ZERABEBBAEEAEEZ10%

Proportion of
Particulars of nominal value of
issued share issued capital held

capital by the Group
AEEREERT

ERITREFE FR 7= T B Lt i
Ordinary shares 1.00%

of HK$0.01 each
SREE0.0EB T
ZEBR
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PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSIT 29. EMHEHHER
The Group and
the Company
AEERAAT
2014 2013
—E-NEF —ZE-=
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHEx FHExT
Pledged fixed deposit 2R EHFR 20,591 20,359
As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the pledged fixed R-EBE-—MER-F-—=FXA=+H"
deposit is placed with a bank to secure general SR EMFRERRT  EATEE
banking facilities of the Group and is denominated —RIBITAENIERD  UWBTREM -
in HKD.
The fixed deposits earned interest at floating rate EHEFERRRBEEHFRFEFE].20E
based on time deposit rate of 1.20% per annum (ZB—=F : £80.658) 2 ZEF E5t+
(2013: 0.65% per annum) and had maturity of three B EFRIBBEA=ZEA(ZZE—=ZF:
months (2013: three month). =@A) -
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 0. RITHERBE
As at 30 June 2014, the Group and the Company RZE-—MWUERNA=1+H AEEBREK
place approximately HK$1,333,000 and HK$1,104,000 ARRAPE K RIT 2 BIF 41,333,000
(2013: HK$28,196,000 and HK$27,544,000), BT K1,104,0008 T (Z &2 — =% :
respectively in banks in the PRC, the remittance of 28,196,000/ jt & 27,544,000 t) * &
which is subject to relevant rules and regulations of PE X3 AP B U AE AR A SMNE AR B AR Bl R 4R
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC B BRI ©
government.
s
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31. TRADE PAYABLES

All of the frade payables are expected to be settled
within one year. An ageing analysis is as follows:

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
Over 60 days

31. ERE SRR

FERNESRAEHRR-—FAEE -H

BREDMMT ¢
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-ImEF ===
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FE T
0230X 7,137 6,337
31E60K 8,063 7,336
60K L £ 1,374 259
16,574 13,932
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32. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
OTHER PAYABLES

32.fEsTER - EWRERHEbE
TR IE

The Group The Company
L3 A28
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-mE Z2-Zf CZEZ-@mf ZE2-=%
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000

TET TET T THx
Balance in relation to disputed BEHAFERRZER:
claims:
Interest payable of borrowings FEZEARE 10,196 10,196 10,196 10,196
Provision for litigation HABE 43,892 43,892 43,892 43,892
Others Htty 12,730 4,770 8,176 2,529
66,818 58,858 62,264 56,617

During the year ended 30 June 2014 and 2013,
there was no movement in the provision for litigation.
Included in the provision for litigation is an amount
of HK$41,429,000, which represents a provision
made for a dispufed claim against the Company.
Details are set out in note 45(a) to the consolidated
financial statement. The creditors claimed
repayments of the outstanding debts together with
the inferest and legal costs. Provision was made
for estimate of the potential liability relating to the

dispute.

BE_Z-—NER-Z-—=5XA=1H
LLFE - SFABELESE - FRBED
BREE-—EHEALRFAZAFEREN
41,429,000/ LHEE - FERNEEHH
HRMTA5(0) - BRAZREERER
BEBENERERER CHREFEEEN
REtEEEEFHEE -

minf
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Bank overdraft

Bank borrowings, secured:

Factoring loan
Other bank borrowings
Other loans

Secured
Unsecured

RITEX

BEARTEE

REEH
HiRTEE
Hi &%

AR
EER

Nofte
iz

Rt

(@
(®)

33.:;1 e

B HR M

The Group The Company
558 ARTF

2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE CZE-Zf CZE-NF ZZ-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
TER THER TR TiER
- 180 - 180
34,154 18,346 - -
13,318 8,579 - -
17,688 17,888 17,688 17,888
65,160 44,993 17,688 18,068
47,472 26,925 - -
17,688 18,068 17,688 18,068
65,160 44,993 17,688 18,068
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 33. 5 BMEE (&)

(Continued)

(a) Bank borrowings, secured (o) FEFRITEE
Factoring loan is variable-rate borrowings which BEEREZEEE  RBITHAR
carry interest at 1% below standard bill rates ZEEZEMNEHIBEZREGTLE
quoted by bank and the effective interest rate NR-ZBE-NERNA=ZTHZEERF
was 2.9% (2013: 3.0%) per annum as at 30 June FEH29E (ZB—=%:3.0E) °
2014. Other bank borrowings represent trust HaR1TEEREK%13,318,000/8
receipt loans of approximately HK$13,318,000 TZEFREER(ZE—=F: 4
(2013: bank advance for discounted bills of 557,000 8B T 2 BEIRRIE 2 RIT B
approximately HK$557,000 and trust receipt MK #18,022,000%8 T 2 EFEWIBE &
loans of approximately HK$8,022,000) which H) O BEEEE R-E—HNEA
are variable-rate borrowings and their effective B=1THREBFRNR29E (=&
interest rate was 2.9% (2013: 3.0%) per annum —=F :30E)5E -

as at 30 June 2014.

(b) Other loans (b) HtERX
Included in other loans of the Company AARRAEEZHMWERBER
and the Group are borrowings amounting to BEe W EBREMFTASQFMAF
HK$17,688,000 (2013: HK$17,688,000) in relation EHRERZIEE7,688,0008 T (=&
to the disputed claims as set out in note 45(a) — =% :17,688,000&T) - HE=
fo the consolidated financial statements. No E-NEFR-_F—=FB=+HIL
interest is provided for in respect of such loan as FETEAEHRERZFEBE -

at 30 June 2014 and 2013.

As at 30 June 2013, the other loan payable R=ZZB—=EXA=1+1H  HibpE({
of approximately HK$200,000 was fixed-rate BM#200,0008BtAEERE » 17
borrowings which carried a contfractual interest 120EZ2EHNFIRFTELEERERE
rate of 12.0% per annum and was repayable on BoBE-E—NEAA=ZTHLE
demand. During the year ended 30 June 2014, B HESHEBEMBREAEGRE
this amount was written back and a gain has 2HERERER - FBERGEHHK
been recognised in the consolidated statement MRMEELD

of comprehensive income. Details are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statement.
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year ended 30 June
2014 and 2013 is as follows:

34.

B HR M

EEBIA

RESHERREBRZELRBEEN
HARBAURBE_T—NFER_E—=
FERA=ZTALFEZESHUT :

The Group
r5E
(Accelerated Fair value
capital adjustments
allowance)/ arising
depreciation from changes in
allowances in fair values of
excess of related held-fortrading
depreciation Tax losses investments Total
(RAERELAZ BERERE
%) TELH NTESBEL
HRARBNE hEBER ZDTERAR EHY
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000
TEr TER TER TER
At 1 July 2012 RZZ-—£+A—-8 (29) (315) - (344)
Charged to the consolidated EARGE2E
statement of comprehensive e ]S
income for the year 187 315 - 502
At 30 June 2013 and RZZE-=ZXA=1H 158 - - 158
1July 2013 R-E-ZF+A-H
Charged/(credited) fo the FRARGE2ENER
consolidated statement ne/ (Gt A)
of comprehensive income
for the year 36 (1) 2,242 2,257
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-MEXA=ZTH 194 (1 2,242 2,415
No deferred tax assets and liabilities have been AR ARAYERELENREEEREA

offset in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

(g
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 34 RERHIA (8F)
As at 30 June 2014, the Group has unused tax R-ZE-—TNERA=Z+H &~&
losses of approximately HK$49,327,000 (2013: B #49,327,0008B T (== — =5 :
HK$27,831,000) available for offset against future 27,831,000/ 7T) 2 A B B EHE B 7
profits. Deferred tax asset of approximately HK$21,000 AU ARREF - B R &129,000%
(2013: nil) has been recognised in respect of tax T(ZE—Z=ZF  B)ZBBEBEBEERY
losses of approximately HK$129,000 (2013: nil). No 21,0008 T (= —=F : ) ZIELEFHIE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect EE o FEETERARIGFIRR - I &
of the remaining tax losses of approximately E 8:%949,198,000/8 T (=& —=
HK$49,198,000 (2013: HK$27.831,000) due fo the 27,831,0005 7T ) 2 B 7 5 18 7 3 4 I B
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses for BEE MEFEZHEBEUERDLE
both years may be carried forward indefinitely. B o
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. k&
AUTHORISED AND ISSUED SHARE EEREETRSG
The Company
EAF
No. of shares
BRGEE
('000) HK$' 000
(FR) BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SEREECOIBTZLEER
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2012, 30 June R-E—-F+A—8-
2013 and 2014 “E-ZERZ-ZT-NE
AA=1+H 60,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR:
At 1 July 2012 RZE--ZF+tA—H 1,049,166 10,492
Issue of new shares for cash (note (i) BTHRMDURER S (H:20)) 50,000 500
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 R-ZE-=HxA=+H
r-_ZE-=FtH—H 1,099,166 10,992
Issue of new shares BATH R
- for acquisition of held-for-trading - DWEBHEEERE (F15 ()
investments (note (ii)) 210,000 2,100
- for cash (nofe (iii)) - SUREUR S (W32 (i) 1,201,480 12,014
At 30 June 2014 R-ZE-—MEXA=TH 2,510,646 25,106

wf
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

0]

(i)

(iii)

On 19 November 2012, the Company and a placing
agent entfered info a placing agreement to place
50,000,000 placing shares at placing price of HK$0.4
per placing share. The placing was completed on 29
November 2012.

On 19 June 2013, ISF Asset Manager Limited ("ISF Asset
Manager”), Flaconwood Limited (“Flaconwood”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the Company entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Company through
Flaconwood acquired 25,000,000 ordinary shares of
GBP0.01 each in the share capital of MNC Strategic
Investments Plc (formerly known as LZYE Group PIc)
("MNCS"), a public limited company incorporated and
registered in England and Wales whose shares are
quoted on the AIM operated by LSE, by allotment and
issuance of 210,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company issued at HK$0.0836 per new ordinary share
tfo ISF Asset Manager or its nominee. The tfransaction
was completed on 3 July 2013.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company
has the following placements of shares:

(a) On 5 November 2013, the Company and a
placing agent entered into a placing agreement
to place 260,000,000 placing shares of HK$0.01
each for cash at a price of HK$0.149 per
placing share. The placing was completed on 13
November 2013.

On 13 January 2014, the Company and a
placing agent entered into a placing agreement
under general mandate (the "GM Placing”) to
place 313,820,000 placing shares of HK$0.11
per placing share and a placing agreement
under special mandate (the “SM Placing”) to
place 627,660,000 placing shares of HK$0.11 per
placing share.The GM Placing was completed on
28 January 2014. The SM Placing was approved
by a special general meeting of the Company
held on 11 April 2014 and was completed on 5
May 2014.

®)

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respect.

B HR M

35. IR& (&)

(i)

(i)

R—ZZB——F+—-A+hB AAFH
—HAREREBTIBEERE BERE
£ R 170.47% T 2 Bl & & AL £50,000,000
REERD -BECSRKR=-ZE—=-F1+—A8
—t+hBEZEMK-

RZE-—=Z=FxXA+NB TE
EEEBEERAA(ITEEE
EH®]) Flaconwood Limited
([ Flaconwood | » " AT ZEM B A
A)RADETLEERRE Bt xDQ
A& BFlaconwood i EMNC Strategic
Investments Plc (1 #LZYE Group Plc)
(TMNCS ] » A S8 B8 R 85 R A7 5 i AR 2
REMzARBRART  EROMEBF
SRGMEBZSBERETHHE) REK
#125,000,000f ZREEO.01 HF 2 E &
B REAZRSKRITZBER0.0836E T2
RTEOTEEEEERHERBAERER
£ 17210,000,0008 $TZ B - HIBR 5
ER=ZZ—=FtB=H%MK-°

BE_Z-—HNFAA=Z+THLFE  &D
RAIBETUTROES :

R-ZZE—=F+—AFH &7
H-ZREARBTIREHE &
BREERN0.149B T2 ERILE
260,000,000k % 2 I {E0.017%& T
ZEERMUBIES BEER
—E-=F+-A+=HZEMK-

(C))

R-ZE-—WE—-A+=80> 427
H-FREREBTL-REET 2
BEHZE((—REREESRE] N
EEREERM01TE T ZERE
313,820,000 e &R 17 > I B
AUBERET2RERZE (HE
REMESRE]) URSREERH
0117 Tt Z fE 1§ B 627,660,000
BREERD —HBERGRESED
R-ZZE-—NE-A=+N\HERX -
BEREREEBEEN-E—NF
A+ —BETZARATARRISH
AELEHEFER=-_ZT-NFER
BHEHEZHK °

(®)

HERHES AT EHREERNZER

EHfy o
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debfts
(which include interest-bearing borrowings disclosed
in note 33 fo the consolidated financial statements),
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
aftributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves (including non-
controlling interests).

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company review annual budgets
taking into account of the provision of funding.
Based on the operating budgets, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital and balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues as well as

the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

35. R& (&)

BEXERER

FEBEEAEARUBRASEETER
BEALFESETAKE  YEKBEARE
HEBERA 2 B RENFEHF S8
EFMERSER - NREBMEERMBR L
FERBFRE -

FEBZEAEBRER (BEGEUE
BRMFSAWE 2T EMEE) - HIRE
ERBREEERERADAEE ARLRE
wm(BREREBITRARRER) (BEFER
R ) AR e

ARNBESEHRITEARERS - RS
NIfEz—®Mo  ARAAEZERNFER
HE OUERETHER RELEHRE
ESEZREAHAREERER 2 HER
B WEBBATHRD - RITHEBRE
BREER  UTFTHHEBEREE -
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 36.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and fthe
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 49 of the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the change in the
Company’s share premium and reserves between
the beginning and the end of years are set ouf
below:

The Company

B HR M

R 1 i 18 I 1 e
FEEREBEZSERNAFEREFEY
B8 BREAUBRRBOEZGEE

BEBR - ARARDEERBERELD
RERENEZBFFEEHIMOT -

AATH

Share-based

Share payment  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
URGHER
R EE PAE S ZEER Bt
HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TER TER TEn TEn
A1 July 2012 RZZ-Z%+tA-H 119,339 5,759 (123,995) 1,103
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRABERZHAFELE
loss for the year - - (31.476) (31,476)
Issue of new shares HRET 19,500 - - 19,500
Share issue expenses BROBITRX (301 - - (301
Share-based payment expenses  URABER 2 A HEX - 7.925 - 7.925
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - (1,730) 1,730 -
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 R=ZE-=FxA=1+H
R-ZE-=f+A-H 138,538 11,954 (153,741) (3.249)
Loss and total comprehensive  ERABERZAFELE
loss for the year - - (74,218) (74,218)
Issue of new shares HREIT 145,744 - - 145,744
Share issue expenses RO BTHX (4,593) - - (4.593)
Forfeiture of share options RUBRE - (1,486) 1,486 -
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MEXA=TH 279,689 10,468 (226,473) 63,684
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)

37.

(@

®)

The share premium account represents the
excess of proceeds received over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued,
less share issue expenses. Pursuant to the
Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s
share premium account may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The share-based payment reserve comprises
the fair value of the unexercised share options
granted to directors of the Company and
several employees of the Group and the
Company recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 2. Details are set out in note 43(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, there is no reserve
available for distribution by the Company to the
shareholders.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

C))

Acquisition of assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary

On 12 May 2014, the Company and an
independent third party enfered into a sales
and purchase agreement pursuant to which
the Company agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of United Eagle Finance
Limited ("United Eagle”) for a consideration of
HK$2,000,000. The acquisition was completed
on the same day. At the completion date,
United Eagle had not commenced its business
and had only held the Licence, details of which
are seft out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statement. Accordingly, this acquisition
was accounted for as acquisition of assets and
liabilities as acquisition of the share capital of
United Eagle did not constitute a business.

36. Bz fn it B & i s (&)

(@)

®

PR AD 1B RR S 3R P W BN 2 P 1§ FROE R
BFTETZAR R RO NEERER
NBITHAX - REAREQTZE A
RNEAZBDEERTUBRARAR
Dk °

RO BER ZARFEBEARAE
BURAEERAARZHERERE
BMRTEZERENAFERA
o MARBEREEBIHBRELE
BISE2SRTERT - FFBEHNGF S BB ]|
RMIEEA3(b) °

RIE-—NER-Z—=FxB=1+A1"
ARABAEEADRFTRERZGEE o

37. GEBERERMEE

(o) WE—RMBASZEERAR

R-IZ-NOFRA+TZRH - ARFH
—EBUE=FIIL—NEEHS
Bt ARAEBWBEREEAR
AE((EEDHNEHERITRE
L8 #2,000,000/8 T ° LLIEWEBE
RE R - RERBH - BEHE R
FIIRE T - WERNEZER - #15
BHRGEMBEMRMTE2] o RS
FERE YRR AN B AR U BB SR 7S -
HWBIMFWBEEREE -
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(a) Acquisition of assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary (Continued)

Net assets acquired at the date of completion
of the acquisition were as follows:

Net assets of United Eagle Bz EEFE
Intangible asset (note 21) BWEE (WZ21)

B HR M

FERERERMEE ()

(o) WE—-RMBATZEERAR(K)

RBEBESEETKARFARBEEFE
wmE
HK$" 000

TR

2,000

Net assets acquired and cash B EEFERRENRE

consideration

(b) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
entered into the following non-cash investing
and financing activities which are not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(i) On 19 June 2013, ISF Asset Manager,
Flaconwood and the Company entered
into a sales and purchase agreement
pursuant fo which the Company through
Flaconwood acquired 25,000,000 ordinary
shares of GBP0.01 each in fthe share
capital of MNCS by allotment and issuance
of 210,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company issued at HK$0.0836 per new
ordinary share to ISF Asset Manager or ifs
nominee. Details are set out in note 35(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements.

2,000

(b) EEHFREXRS

BE-Z—NEAA=ZTHLEE
AEBMETUTEELESEBSRE
RPARMZFERSRERBETE :

() R=E—-=%xA+hBE =
EEEETHE - FloconwoodRk
ARBFTLEEGZ B
KA 735 BFlaconwoodly B
MNCSA 7 #125,000,0008% &
BREECOTHFEZ2ZER
BAERAQAGDERFZER
0.0836B L2 BTERZE
EEEERHEHRAARBRE
#7210,000,0008% 7 & & B °
HFBEHN G B RRWE
35(ii) °
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to a loan agreement dated on
6 May 2014 entered between the Group
and the PN Borrower, the Group agreed to
subscribe three series of promissory notes,
one of which represents an amount of
approximately HK$780,000 to be deposited
as the performance bond under the terms
of the Country Distribution Agreement
and consider as seftlement of a deposit
received. Details are set out in note 23 fo
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group
had not entered into any non-cash investing
and financing activities.

3. GEBRERERMEE (B)

(b) EEFRLXS(R)

(i) REAEEEENRERAR
“E-NMERARNARIYZE
MR AEEREZRE=E
RIMEANER  Hh—ER5I
AN RARRIBERD #iH
BLGREFAEEARRBS
2 #3780,00058 T I R A 478
BlEE FBEARGSUH
RaRMIEE23 °

BE-ZE—=ZFXA=Z1+BLEE "
AEEGEETEMAHRBRSRER M
=r

minf
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. & ik
(a) Operating lease commitments (o) EREMEEE
Minimum lease payments paid under operating AEERBIHREFZLEEROM
leases in respect of land and buildings BN ZHREEENRNR1,979,000
during the year amounting to approximately BT (ZE— =% :706,000%7T) °

HK$1,979,000 (2013: HK$706,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group REBEHR  AEERBE L REF
had commitments for future minimum lease Z R A R E RN BT 2 RRRRE
under non-cancellable operating leases in HAREMT :

respect of land and buildings which fall due as

follows:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —B-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHBT
Not later than one year BB —F 2,116 2,648
Later than one year and not —F#ETBBEE
later than five years 600 1.756
2,716 4,404
Operating lease payment represents rentals REHANBIREREBRR AN E T
payable by the Group and the Company for MANEYEDEESFESEMN2BSES 56
certain of its office premises and director’s MEBTHEN F6E24EA (ZE—=
quarter with remaining lease terms of between F:1224@AB)  HERHBHABEE -
6 to 24 months (2013: 1 to 24 months) and AREFBUVHENBHEREBEAEREEY
rentals are fixed throughout the lease periods. BIERE

The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased assetfs at the expiry of the
lease periods.
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38. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 38. &I (&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) EXEIE
2014 2013
—E-ImF ===
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Commitment for the acquisition FWEBZERSITHE
of ordinary shares contracted RRGEMKEIREKF
but not provided for in the BB 2R IE (K7E)
consolidated financial
statements (note) - 17,556
Note: Mat -
On 19 June 2013, ISF Asset Manager, Flaconwood R-ZE—=FX"A+IB TEEEE
and the Company entered into a sales and purchase # - Flaconwood R A~ A B 7] 3 B & %
agreement to acquire 25,000,000 ordinary shares of LU BB MNCS R 45 #125,000,0008% & IR THI
GBP0.01 each in the share capital of MNCS. Details EOOTRE L EBR - HBERRNGEU
are set out in note 35(ii) to the consolidated financial EELIERNOK
statements.

F
b
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38. COMMITMENTS (Confinued)

(c) Other commitments

®

(ii

On 3 June 2014, the Company and Finsoft
Corporation ("Finsoft”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Finsoft Group”), a
company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the issued shares of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, entered into
a cooperation framework agreement (the
"Cooperation Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company and the
Finsoft Group propose to cooperate and
explore opportunities in Southeast Asia
Region for several proposed businesses
(the "Proposed Businesses”), and each of
the Group and the Finsoft Group intends
to invest not more than HKS$S10 million
fo develop the Proposed Businesses.
Details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 June 2014. The
Cooperation Framework Agreement has
been terminated on 1 September 2014.
Details are set out in note 46(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has entered into a loan
agreement with the PN Borrower as referred
fo in note 23 fo the consolidated financial
statements to advance loans to the PN
Borrower. As at 30 June 2014, the Group
committed to advance approximately
HK$330,000 to the PN Borrower.

B HR M

38. #%iE (&)

(c) Rtk
() R-B-MEAB=B XA

(il

AREMBRHEAT (EHK
Hl ERENEADSRBES
(EMSAEE] 5RMaa
BHMAYZERAR  HE
517 AR BT XX P AR 1 75)
ST AEER TS (A EER
) - iU - A R E B
BHEEEERBERE LS
(RBEB)RRETHES
FRBEEK HAZEEE
MEAEESERRETEA
10,000,000% 7 % /& 12 3% %
BoHERRAATAMEE=
E-MEAAZAZAME
EEEBEENR-B-—mEN
B—B&L- SERNGAH
B H &M 46(C) ©

WNAR A B RS R R MY RE23 7
o AR EEANRERAR]
YERBEUBENRERA
BXER -R-F-—NFEXA
=+ 8 AEECAFEBEAN
FERAEZH330,000/8 T
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39. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(C)

(®)

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has no bills
receivables. As at 30 June 2013, the Group
discounted bills receivables to a bank for cash
proceeds on a full recourse basis. If the bills
receivables were not paid at maturity, the bank
had the rights fo request the Group to pay
the unseftled balance. As the Group had not
fransferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivables and had recognised the cash
received on the transfer from discounting the
bill receivables as secured bank borrowings as
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. These financial assets were carried
at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

As part of the Group’s normal business, the
Group entfered into a trade receivable factoring
arrangement (the "Arrangement”) and
transferred certain frade receivables to a bank.
Under the Arrangement, credit risk cover may
be taken out by the bank with a correspondent
factor or a credit insurer in the bank’s name
subject to the terms of credit risk cover
stipulated by the correspondent factor or the
credit insurer to reimburse the bank for loss of
interest if any trade debtors have late payment.
The Group is not exposed to default risks of the
frade debtors affer the transfer. Subsequent to
the transfer, the Group did not retain any rights
on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, fransfer or pledge of the trade
receivables to any other third parties. However,
given that the bank is authorised to realise and
sell the Company’s pledged fixed deposit in
case of default and the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee to the bank, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these receivables. The Group
continues to recognise the full carrying amount
of the transfer receivables and has recognised
the cash received on the transfer of trade
receivables as secured bank borrowings as set
out in note 33 fo the consolidated financial
statements. These financial assets are carried
at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

0. BELMEE

(@)

(b)

NZEBE—NEASA=1+H » AEFL
BREWEZE NRZZE-—=FxA=+
B AEEUMEEEHERRECEE
SRR Z IS @ RITR IR LUREBUR & -
ME RN ERERI SR RESRT R
TERERAREB A REEHEE -
ARAEEY EEEEEERFEZ
FERBMER HEEEIERE
EHNEIEEE TEERERERE
CEZRNCUWRESERBSRAUHR
RMFEIFMAZBIKIFRITEE © Ut
LoMEEEAEENGE MR
51  6E RR AFI BR o

EAEFEBEREBN -2 » A&
B EREZRRBERH (&
ZHDABETRRE S RREE
FRAT - REBEZZH RITHEER
B R (IRT R %) TR AR B Y=
EFHEERBBEZ S (AFEM
BEEMITINEERREBEEREZ
%) FAEERRE D BEEMEY
EZRFAHNRERRTHEDIE
ROFE - REBNERR L EE L
FREEWE SRR ZENRR - RE
BEE AEEUABEERES RN Z
fE IR EEMRER - BEREMD
HE=5HE EEEHEHE
WE SR - A - BRZRTEE
EEAREAQNTNSEFEHER
ERHEMARRCMZRTHED
ARR  ARARESAL  AEEY
BEEERERNREZEERBRAE
B} AEEEEEIEHRERE SR
R HREE  LEERERES
RUCEENCUREBARGEESH
RN EISME 2 BT RATE
B -hEEREETLAEANGSH
AR R PR AN DU BR o
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39. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 0. BELMEE(E)
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying RIERR CEBERKLBRZEK
amount of trade and bills receivables that have ESRAREENRAENEEEENH
been transferred but have not been derecognised FHAOTE :

and the amount of the associated liabilities are as

follows:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —B-=F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHExT
Bills receivables discounted to a UMEzHERE 2 EE
bank with full recourse (note 26) mIRITREIR 2 BN R
(Ktat26) - 557
Trade receivables transferred under REEEERZEENREZR
a non-recourse factoring Z W E 5 R
agreement (nofe 26) (BtzE26) 49,225 24,632
49,225 25,189
Associated secured bank borrowings fEEEKIFRTEE
(note 33): (Bt7E33) :
- factoring loan —-REEX 34,154 18,346
- other bank borrowings —HtRTEE - 557

34,154 18,903
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40. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. R SRS EE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following table presents the recognised financial TRIMR=_Z—NFR=_ZF—=5XA
instruments that are subject to netting arrangements STHEERAFEAELHELRIKEZ
but not offset as at 30 June 2014 and 2013, and ERILMIA  WIRETEDIIKE
shows the net impact would be on the consolidated ERHGEVBRRRENFELE

statement of financial position if all offsetting rights

were exercised:

Amounts
Financial liabilities Amounts offset not offset Net
Rig: 3
SRAE EHEH ZEH RE
Cash
Gross Net  collateral
Gross assets amounts pledged
liabilities offset  presented (note 29)
BEARE
ikl @

BeR REE Z2JI2FE (Hiat29)
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TEr TERr TER TER Ti&x

At 30 June 2014 R-Z-WEXA=1A
Inferest-bearing bank st 2RITEE (#:233)

borrowings
(nofe 33) 47,472 - 47,472 20,591 26,881

At 30 June 2013 R-ZZE-=%xA=*1H

Inferest-bearing bank st ERITEE (H£33)

borrowings

(note 33) 26,925 - 26,925 20,359 6,566
As at 30 June 2014, the Group and the Company RZZ—MNFEFRA=Z+H FEARK
have provided cash collateral to a bank of AT E MRITIR A 420,591,000 T (=
approximately HK$20,591,000 (2013: HK$20,359,000). F— =4 20,359,000/ t) 2 ] &K
The bank has the right to invoke the collateral if Mo BREEINZBVITZETRE  ZRB
certain requirements imposed by the bank could not TEREREBIERS -
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41.

42.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
issued a financial guarantee fo a bank in respect
of banking facilities granted to a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Such banking facilities
drawn down by the subsidiary as at 30 June 2014
amounted to approximately HK$47,472,000 (2013:
HK$26,925,000). As at 30 June 2014, the directors of
the Company do not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Company under any
of the aforesaid guarantee.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2014, the banking facilities of
the Group were secured by the fixed deposit
of the Company amounting to approximately
HK$20,591,000 (2013: HK$20,359,000), fixed charge
over trade receivables of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$49,225,000 (2013:
HK$24,632,000). As at 30 June 2013, the banking
facilities of the Group were also secured by a
personal guarantee executed by a former director of
the Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group does not have
any bills receivables. At 30 June 2013, the Group
tfransferred bills receivable balances amounting to
HK$557,000 to a financial institution in exchange for
cash. The transaction had been accounted for as
collateralised bank advances.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Company
executed a corporate guarantee to secure banking
facilities of the Group. Details are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

41.

42.

B HR M

EREERSRE

RB|EPR  ARFAERAQXE —B3*
2EMBLAAERTRIBERD — &
RITHHERMER - R=ZZF-DEFXN
B=1+R HWERARIMNHEBRTH
EHNRA7,472,0008 T (ZF—=F:
26,925,000/ ) - R=-—F—-—MHFE XA
=tH  ARRAESBRB > A2FFKA
BEFR UL E AR 4R 3R th 3R MH o

BEERF

RZZBE-MEARA=Z+H  AEEZRT
R ERE T LU 5 #4920,591,0008 T (=&
— =4 120,359,000 5t) 2 &1 5 EH
TR URAEEAIRE(E 549,225,000
BT (ZF—=% 124,632,000 7T) 2K
BEZRRZEERCEAER - R=F
—ZEXRAZTH AEEZRTHBHE
TH—-EADBMESHEL 2B AERE
BER -

RZZBE-—WFERA=Z+H AEELEE
AERKRE - R=ZF—Z=ZFX<A=+H"
REBEE #557,00058 T 2 FE W F 15 4 &k
EET -HERBEBEUREIRSE - AR
SEARIMERRMRITERN

R-ZBE—NFEFR-ZF-=F5XA=+H"
AARBEL—HBLARAERUERELER
ZIRITHE - FEERFE M ERRM T
41 o
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43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Retirement benefit scheme

The Group participates in the *“MPF Scheme”
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the
confrol of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of the employees’ monthly relevant income
capped at HK$30,000 with effect from 1 June
2014, previously capped at HK$25,000, to the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The contributions paid/payable to the MPF
Scheme by the Group amounted to HK$209,000
(2013: HK$158,000), which has been recognised
as expenses and included in staff costs as
disclosed in note 13 fo the consolidated
financial statements. At the end of the reporting
period, there were no forfeited contributions in
respect of employees leaving the retirement
benefits scheme before they were fully vested in
the confributions and which were available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in the future years.

43. g EEF

-

(a) BAIEFIEE

FEECRMARERZERBES
RAERRSTE - BRI ZEE
FHREEAESZES BAE
BrEENMEE HA-ZF-HFER
A—Ri  AEEZRESESABEER
A (5A30,0008 T RIR - AELERS
25,000 jv) 25%@ 38 7 & =t &8 1F
R MESTELHESEE M

=
Ko

FEEEHN BNz BRESEMH
M 209,000 T (ZF—=F:
158,000/8 T) - EHRAB/FHXILE
FAGEHMBRERMFISHKE 2
BIRA - REBEHR  LEFES
ZHBUES KA R R AR R BT
AREREBERRFERMERZ

R
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43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 43. EEEH (&)

(b) Share-based payments (b) UE#rBEiZ R

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a special
general meeting of the Company held on
27 June 2011 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to selected participants
for their contribution to the Group, and will
expire on 26 June 2021. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company (the
"Board”) may grant options to directors of the
Company (including non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors)
and full-time employees of the Group, and
any parficipants from fime fo time determined
by the Board as having contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granfed under the Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the
approval of the Scheme. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise
all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from fime to fime.
The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

BERAXEAR=_ZB——F A=+t
AETZRRFEFIRE AR AREMN
BRESTE (&8 ZFTEz
TEENNHREESEERRERM
fEzEMARSRMERE  LERZ
E-FXRAZTRBER  RIEZ
e RXRAREEE (EEENA
AAABES (BEFHUITESRSE
VHHTER)RAEEZHES
LR ESETRRED S LR TS
FEEZBERMERFEERZEMT
SREXTERE  UARBRIAR
% o

RIEZFTERE ZBREATRE 2R
NBY  TEBEARD AN ZTEE
BHAEERCBRITRGZ10% ° R
ZET IR MM RITE 2 I EBRE
BITERAURT2ROBEH - ~5
BAEFCTBITRM2Z30% - EREL
DNERRBEAE - PMEFI12EAH
BRTFEABEAZBRETIEZR
BHE - FEEAARETRHERT
BRAD21% °
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43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 43. EEEH (&)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued) (b) UEEHBEREZFR (&)

Options granted must be taken up within 28
days from the date of grant, upon payment of
HK$1.00 per each grant of option(s). Options
may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant to the 10th anniversary of the date of
grant. In each grant of options, the Board may
at its discretion determine the specific exercise
period and exercise price. The exercise price
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

ERTFZEREXNANR L B #EGT
28BN EARFAXNESHE
IRHE1.008 T o BBIRAE AR H A
ERH BB+ FERZBHEREM
BETE - REAKHBRER &
EEUMBERETEARITEE 1T
EERBERTI=EzHESE
(ORORERER L B BEBA
ZWHE (RO NEZBRER
HEMAAERS B EBRXTZTY
T E  R>i)ROEE
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43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 43. EEEF (4])
(b) Share-based payments (Continued) (b) K BERZ AR (E)
Details of the share options granted under the FRARBZTERE ZBRENARR
Scheme during the year and outstanding as af TE-NEAAZTHERTEZE
30 June 2014 are as follows: BRENFEFOT
Granted Forfeiture

Oufstanding during the during the Outstanding
Category of Exercise balance at year ended year ended balance at
participants Date of grant Exercise period price 1 July 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014

R=2-f BE-E-RF E2E-QF R=Z-R%
tA-B2 AB=TH ~AZTH AAZTRZ

SRERAARN  RHEW 8 b3 ATEER  LEEARE  LEEARY AfTEER
Mr.Ke Jun Xiang 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
AgALE Z2--FtAZtRR ZE--FLACTREA 052%7
EZZC-FRACTRA
21 December 2012 21 December 201210 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“E-ZEZACt-A SR-HEfZACt-A 0.25% 7
EIEC-ERACTAR
Ms. Lo Yuen Lai 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - (2.000,000) -
(note 1) ZE--FtAZRE ZE--EtAS1RE 05257
ERELt (1) EIRC-ERACTAA
21 December 2012 21 December 2012 fo 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 9,500,000 - (9.500,000) -
ZR-ZEZACt-B ZB-CEtZASt-H 0.25%7%
EZEC-ERACTRE
Ms.LoYuen Chung 21 December 2012 21 December 2012 to 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 7,000,000 g o 7,000,000
Enkat ®-CHZAST-R CR-CETCACT-R 0.25%7
EIEC-ERACTAA
Mr. Li Chung Kai, 21 December 2012 21 December 201210 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 5,000,000 o S 5,000,000
Philip ZR-EtZRC-B ZBR-ZEtZASt-H 0.25%7
FERE EIRZ-E£RAC1RE
Mr. Chow Yeung 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Tuen, Richard ZE--FEACRE ZE--ELACTREA 052871
PERkE ik Jnbet: Y-l Y
21 December 2012 21 December 2012 o 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
ZR-ZEtZRC-B ZB-ZEtZACt-H 0.25% 7
ECEC-ERACTRE
Mr. Kwok Yam 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Sheung ZE--FLAZtRE ZB--FtACtAR 052% 7
EHLE ESRT-ERACTAA
21 December 2012 21 December 201210 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000
“E-ZEZACt-B ZER-IEZACt-H 0.55%7

ik Jnbel: Y- bl O
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued)

43. BE®EF (&)

(b) URBERZ X (E)

Granted Forfeiture
Outstanding during the during the Oufstanding
Category of Exercise balance at year ended year ended balance at
participants Date of grant Exercise period price 1 July 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
RZZ-ZF HE-E-DF  HECE-ME ROE-OF
tA-Hz ~AZtHA ABZTA ~AEZTHEZ
SRERZSER RERH s i€ ATEER LEEREY LEERRN LSk
Mr. Chan Siu Kay 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
BAE%E ZE--FLBITRE ZZ--FtACtRE 05247
EIRZ-FRACTAH
21 December 2012 21 December 2012 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 7,000,000 - 7,000,000
“E--F+-fct-B -E--E+-fA=t-R 02587
EIRC-FRATRA
Employees of 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
the Company ZE--ELBZRE ZB3--EtACtRE 05247
rRRES EZEC-ERACAR
21 December 2012 21 December 2012 0 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
ZE-ZE{ZACt-B ZEZ-ETZACT-R 0.25%7
EZBRZ-ERACTAR
Employees of a 26 July 2011 26 July 2011 10 26 June 2021 HK$0.52 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
subsidliory of ZE--FtBZtRE ZB--FtACtAR 05247
the Company ECEC-ERACTAR
(note 2)
AAF-EHE 21 December 2012 21 December 201210 26 June 2021 HK$0.25 14,000,000 - - 14,000,000
PEPAE] ZE-IEtZACIT-B ZB-IFTACT-B 0.25%7
(Hi2) EIEC-ERACTAR
91,500,000 - (11,500,000) 80,000,000
i :

-
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43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 43. EEEH (&)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued) (b) K BERZ AR (E)

Note 1: Ms. Lo Yuen Lai resigned as executive director
and deputy chairman of the Company on
5 June 2013. Under the Scheme, she was
entitled to exercise her share options within
3 months after the date of her resignation.
During the year ended 30 June 2014, there
was no share option exercised by Ms. Lo Yuen
Lai and, accordingly, her share options were
lapsed.

Note 2: One of the employees of a subsidiary of the
Company, who was entitled 2,000,000 share
options, has resigned during the year ended
30 June 2014. Under the Scheme, he is entitled
fo exercise his share options within 3 months
after the date of his resignation which has not
yet expired as at 30 June 2014.

Share options granted on 21 December 2012

The estimated fair value of the share options
granted on 21 December 2012 fo directors and
staff was HK$0.0984 per share option. The fair
value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The inputs info the model

were as follows:

Share price at grant date HK$0.25
Exercise price HKS$0.25
Expected voldatility (nofe) 33.90%
Expected life 8.5 years
Risk-free rate 0.55%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Note:  Expected voldatility is determined based on the
historical volatility of the share prices of the
Company.

Ml ExEZTR-ZE-—=ZF7XA
AHBEARAHITESZRE
I REBZE ExtAE
REHMEBHRIEA ATHRAE
R -BE-ZE-—NFAA=T
ALEFE  ExBRTHETHE
HiBRE EHEBRESKX
R o

W2 . AAR-ENBARZEST—F
& & =%52.000,00017 i I 7
ZREECREBE-Z-DNF <A
=+ BIEFEREBHE - REZFT
B RERNBEEHEIEAR
RITREBREMZBRN=-F
—mERA=ZTHERER -

R=-F-——F+ZA=-1—HARLHZ
BRE

REZB-ZHF+ZA-+-HREES
RETRHBREZGHOFESS
1 BB IR #E0.0984%8 T - A FERA
HhR-SFHENMEEEETE -
HZEXBAZERNT

REBHzRE 0.25%8 7T
TEE 0.258 7T
ARG (A EE) 33.90%
SEEREYE 8.5%
£ [ B ) =2 0.55%
BHREXR 0%

B FREIRERREAR QR UER
ERIEMEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted on 26 July 2011

The estimated fair value of the share options
granted on 26 July 2011 fo directors and staff
was HK$0.2755 and HK$0.2454 per share option
respectively. The fair value was calculated using
the Binominal pricing model. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HK$0.52
Exercise price HK$0.52
Expected volatility (note 1) 47.88%
Expected life (nofe 2) 9.92 years
Risk-free rate 2.27%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Note 1. Expected volatility is determined based on
the historical volatility of the share prices of
publicly listed companies that are considered

fo be comparable to the Company.

Notfe 2: The share options are expected to be
exercised by directors and staff when the
share price of the Company rises to 280% and
220% of the exercise price of the share option,

respectively.

No vesting conditions are set for the share
options granted on 26 July 2011 and 21

December 2012.

Because the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and Binomial pricing model require
the input of highly substantive assumptions,
including the volatility of share price, changes
in subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate.

43. BE®EF (&)

wf

(b) URBERZ X (E)

R-B——F+t A1 ARLZHE
KRE

REZB-——FtAZ+AHBESR
ETIRHZBRENMGE D FED 5
R ERE0.2755% jt R0.2454
BT BAEAFERU-BAEEE
K& - HZEXBMAZERNT :

REBHZRE 0.528 7T
TEE 0.52% T
ARG (AaET) 47.88%
REr BN (FE2) 9.92%F
#2 B ) == 2.27%
AR E = 0%

B RHREERERSTEAQF
kB AR ETATNUERE
B g T E o

M2 RHMESRETISRNALARE
EAZSRABRESTEEZ
280% K% 220% 51T 2 55 IR #E ©

WERNR-_Z——FLtA=+<AK
—E-_F+-B-t+-—HAREZE
BT L BBIRMGE -

HRAL R -SRI EEERAR
—EHAEBERAFTERARERR
(BERERE) Bt THERAAR
ROBLEAUH QA FEGFTELEE

2/
S
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43. BEEF (&)

(b) UEHBERZFR (&)

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share-based payments (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2014, there is no
share-based payment expenses recognised
as the Company has not granted any share
options during the year. The fair value of share
options granted during the year ended 30 June
2013 was recognised in profit or loss as staff cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity. Share-based
payment expenses amounting to HK$7,925,000
had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30 June 2013, of which
HK$1,378,000 was relating to share options
granted to staff of a subsidiary of the Company
and had been recognised as investment in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2013.

BE-_Z-—NEAA=1THILEEYL
BEIURNDAEREZARELX R
AAEAARARFRALERETMAE
RiE-BE-FE—=F~A=+H1L
FERBEZEREZAFEINIE
HHRBRRABEIRAE  MERAAL
R5HER 2 AREESEELM -
7.925,0007% Tt ARG 10 B B 2 3K
HXERBE-_ZT—=F~A=+H
LHEEZHRE2HEHRARER  BF
1,378,000 TR EEB A LD T —HE
MBARZEIRBBERE  XER
AADBEZZE—=F~A=+H2Z
P MRRRABRBRHB AT 2K
& o

44. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH 44 R B REABEALTZEXRR
RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED 5
PERSONS

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (o) EEESHN

FEEEEEEFRAZHHOT ¢

The remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group during the year was as

follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF e

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHEx FHExT
Short ferm employee benefits EHEERF 9,859 12,490
Post-employment benefits B2 TR 130 92
Share-based payment expenses RS HER 2B X - 7.138

9,989 19,720
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #HZE=—ZF—[FENA=+HIFE

44. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED
PERSONS (Continued)

(b) During the year, the Group entered into the

following material transactions with related

and connected persons:

M

Transactions with AVT International Limited

AVT International Limited is a connected
person of the Company as defined
in the predecessor Chapter 14A (the
"Predecessor Chapter 14A") of the Listing
Rules (which has been superseded by a
new Chapter 14A, effective for connected
fransactions entered into after 1 July 2014)
during the year ended 30 June 2014 and
2013. AVT International Limited was also
related to the Group as the conftrolling
shareholder of AVT International Limited
is a spouse of a former executive director
of the Company who has resigned during
the year ended 30 June 2013. Transactions
with AVT International Limited prior to the
resignation of the former executive director
of the Company during the year ended
30 June 2013 were also related party
fransactions.

44 R A REABA L ZEXR
o (48)

(b) A AKE G REEAN LT
ALTEXEXS :

() BZAVT International Limited
ZX5

AVT International Limited
BE-Z-—NER=-Z—Z=ZF
RAZTHLEFEREKQATN
BEAL (ERRLEMRAZA
F14AE ([FIE14AE D) (HE
A _—_Z-NEtA—B#&F
Y2BEXFERNHEILA
FHK) o AVT International
Limited 75 B2 78 & @ & B B -
B R BAVT International
LimitedWEZRRREZ AR 7
—EREBE-ZE-=Z57XA
S+THLEFEBEZAHIT
EECRB-BE-ZT—Z=F
RAZT+THRLEFEEZER
D B Al 1T E B BHE AT EAVT
International LimitedZ X %
TEREBBARXS
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44. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH

B HR M

44, BB RABANLTZEXR

RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED 5 (&)
PERSONS (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)

() Transactions with AVT International Limited
(Continued)

Details of the transactions with AVT

() BZAVT International Limited
ZX5 (&)

EAVT International Limited

International Limited are as follows: ZRXBHBWT ¢

2014 2013

—E-mE —E—=F

Transactions HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

x5 FHET FHBT
Purchases from AVT BAVT International
International Limited#R &8 (&77%)

Limited (note) 92,925 71,999
Sales to AVT International BAVT International

Limited (nofe) Limited$8 & (K47 2%) 34,961 20,062

Nofe: The above fransactions were carried

out at terms determined and agreed
with a master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) dated on 25 November
2010 which had been supplemented by a
supplemental master agreement (the “First
Supplemental Master Agreement”) dated
on 10 April 2012. The Master Agreement
and the First Supplemental Master
Agreement have expired on 30 June 2013.
Accordingly, on 26 April 2013, a second
supplemental master agreement (the
"Second Supplement Master Agreement”)
has been entered for a further period
of two financial years ending 30 June
2014 and 2015. The Master Agreement,
the First Supplemental Master Agreement
and the Second Supplemental Master
Agreement were approved by special
general meetings of the Company held on
12 January 2011, 10 May 2012 and 11 July
2013 respectively.

et ERRZ2HERDRABEE
—Z-ZF+—-A=+=EA
ZEWHECEHE] > OB
B A=—ZT——-FMA+H
ZHEEHE(E—0HxE
THFDFWHE) MEER
& THERE DX
IRBER-_B—=FXA
=t+HE® Bt A=F
—=FEWmMB=+XBEFHXT
BEoMWREEDRE (=0
WREDE]D BIHRFELE
—SPEREHZ-_Z—NF
R—Z-—HFASA=+HL
MEMBEE - £HE - 5
—OBEEHRBERE_HE
ZEEBHEERN T ——F—
A+=—H-=—Z——-%1HA
+ER=ZZE—=FtA+—
BRITZARDTARRER K
Lo RIESHE-
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44. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH 44 BB A REAEAN LT ZEXR

RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED 5 (4&)
PERSONS (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
(i) Transactions with Nicegoal Limited (i) EiNicegoal Limitedz X £

Nicegoal Limited is a connected person of
the Group under the Predecessor Chapter
14A during the year ended 30 June 2014
and 2013. Nicegoal Limited was also
related to the Group as the controlling
shareholder of Nicegoal Limited is a
spouse of a former executfive director of
the Company who has resigned during the
year ended 30 June 2013. Transactions with
Nicegoal Limited prior to the resignation
of the former executive director of the
Company during the year ended 30 June
2013 were also related party transactions.

Details of the transactions with Nicegoal
Limited are as follows:

Transactions

X5

Rent paid to Nicegoal
Limited (notfe)

Nofe: The rental expenses were based on a
tfenancy agreement signed between the
Group and Nicegoal Limited, which has
been terminated during the year ended 30
June 2014.

In June 2014, the Group and Nicegoal
Limited entered into a tenancy agreement
to rent an office premise with monthly
rental of HK$50,000 commencing from 1
July 2014 for a period of two years.

@ENicegoal Limited
B2 (HE)

R A E14AE » Nicegoal
Limited RBE=-Z—NFKR =
T-=FAA=tHLEFER
RATKIBIEA L  Nicegoal
Limited R R AR SR B B B E » R
A ABNicegoal Limited 12 i
RREXALA-—BRBE=Z
—ZHEXRAZtTHLEFERME
ZAMTEEZBRB -BE=
E-=ZEXA=1tHALEEHR
ZERDRARNTESHEAN
EdNicegoal LimitedzZz X 5 71
BREBARS -

EiNicegoal Limitedz X 5 ##
BT

2014 2013
—e-mE —g-=%
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
T Tt
46 288

Ma: HERXIXDBREBEAEEHE
Nicegoal Limited% 5] 2
HEHRBIMEE » MZiHH
ERBE-ZT-—NERA
ZETHLEFELL-

R-ZZE-—NEXA REHHE
Nicegoal Limiteds] i 8 & 1%
# > UL A 50,0008 THE —
BRLEYE A=ZF—MNF
tA-HHE%K AEWmE-
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44. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH 44, BARREE A REABA LT ZE XK
RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED 5 (48)
PERSONS (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
(i) Loan guaranteed by a director of the (i) AR B]EBFREHIEHRIER
Company
During the year ended 30 June 2014, BE-Z-NFEXA=+HL
the Company borrowed a loan with FE - AAAO—BBILE=
principal amount of HK$4,000,000 from BB AR £%E 44,000,000 T
an independent third party which was WER ZEERDHARRQF
secured by a personal guarantee executed —BHTEERIZBAER
by a director of the Company. The EEB-FRN AQAREEB
Company has fully repaid the loan during ZEEN -
the year.
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c) LthmHRRIBFHFEANLTRZSZEREE
connected person transactions
Except for the sales and purchases transactions B E XM () ()& EBAVT
with AVT International Limited as set out in note International Limited Z $§ & & 58
(b)(i) above, none of the above transactions fall RN BELATZHEREERS
under the definition of connected transactions RFEERERGZERMAETRE
or continuing connected transactions TAAEZFRFTHZ R - AMERBILR
which require reporting, announcement RENRTE -

and independent shareholders’ approval as
stipulated in the Predecessor Chapter 14A.
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45. LITIGATIONS

(a) China Gold Finance Limited ("China Gold")

claimed against the Company for an
outstanding loan plus an interest of the loan in
a total sum of HK$69,300,000 on 27 June 2001
(whereas HK$40,000,000 being the alleged
principal loan and HK$29,300,000 being alleged
outstanding interest up to 27 June 2001) and
legal costs concerning this claim, and further
revised the claims to an amount approximately
HK$227,000,000 in previous years. A legal
counsel of the Company opined that the
Company has a good prospect of success in
establishing and proving the defences against
this claim (the “Legal Opinion”). Nevertheless,
for prudence sake, the legal counsel has
made professional estimatfion on the possible
outcome on judgement amounts fo be
ranging from approximately HKS$11,450,000
fo HK$261,000,000 basing on several different
scenarios should the Company’s defences be

ruled unsuccessful.

The Group has made a provision of
approximately HK$41,429,000 in the
consolidated and the Company’s financial
statements in previous years and included
in the provision for litigation in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June
2074 and 2013.

A court hearing was held in June 2014. As at
30 June 2014 and up to the date of this report,
the litigation is still in progress and no final
judgement or setftlement has been reached.
Based on the Legal Opinion, the directors of the
Company believe that no additional amount
arising from the estimated claims should be
provided for in the financial statements.

= =
N

(a) R=ZZ—-F7A=++tH " China

Gold Finance Limited ([ China
Gold) BERXNERERER
F| B4 #£69,300,000% 5t (H &
40,000,000 THIEBARERE S
# » M29.300,000% T B KI5 T8 &
BE-_ZZ-—FAA=-t+tHLtzE
AEMNFE)  MEBERERRZ
EEER HAQARRBHRERE  WR
UAFEXBRRSBE—SEBITZE
#1227,000,0005 7T ° AN A B A EE
BRARRBAHRELRREILRE
PRBAFEETBZRIESE ([
#ZER]D - AWM RAEBEER 2%
FEREEREBEZEA DR ZNFRARES
EREZEERRER  HAREHE
ZAREREENEEMGFTRN TN
11,450,000 jt 261,000,000

JC °

FEECHRFARNBEFEZHRAY
BRERADAZHBERRELD
41,429,000 T 2B L EFT A
REIZB-NOFER-Z-Z=ZF/A=1
A2 E M |mRME32M B FF R
B

ERERACR-E-—MENAET -
R-ZE-—NEXA=+ARBELRR
SR - ZEREAMDEET M B AR

BRARBRTEBENNBG - RIFEE
BER AR BDESHEBEMMGEF
REEZENSERPBRRAF LR
e
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45. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b) Hom Fu Lee Company Limited (*Hom Fu”)

claimed against Pilot Apex Development
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company for
outstanding rent, rates and management fee.

On 31 July 2007, Interlocutory Judgment and
Order was granted in the Hom Fu’s favour. The
Group should pay Hom Fu the oufstanding
rent, rates, management fee and the interest
on the outstanding amount of rent at the rate
of 3% above the HSBC's best lending rate for
the period from 1 January 2007 to the date of
payment. The Group had settled part of the
judgment sum and the balance had been
provided for in the financial statements.

As a result of the Group’s breach of the
provision of the tenancy agreement, Hom Fu
would have suffered the loss and damages
upon recovery of possession of the premises
from the Group. Such loss and damages are still
liable to be paid by the Group to Hom Fu upon
the amount being assessed and/or quantified.
No provision has been made in this regard.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

B HR M

aFEs (48)

(b) MERERAT (AR 54 % %

H2He ENRERBUAATS
K} 8 2 "]Pilot Apex Development
Limitedi2 HER £

RE-BELFLAZT—HBBHZHE
EFFRRBESIHHBERF - K&
BEQEEXNEAXNzEAESE
B ZOREEE URBE-ZZR
tFE - -RERENRAHLE®Hz
ANHERESRITHREZFERNR
MIEZREFEZRE - AEEE
BRI FRBER - MARC R
WRELBRE -

HRAEEERBERHENIEI - 5B
ERBAEBREYEEGRE
REEZFERIBX - ELBLME
Rk/HEEE  ZEBERBRNEA
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45. LITIGATIONS (Continued) 45. aFEs (48)

(¢) The Company claimed against Kwok Han Qiao (c) AARAR=ZZF—FHKwok Han

(formerly known as Kwok Wai Tak Edward)
("Mr. Kwok”) in 2001 for an amount due from
Mr. Kwok in total sum of HK$98 million and
the profit deprived therefrom and payment
of such sums so found to the Company plus
interest and legal costs. In prior year, Mr.
Kwok has filed a striking out application (the
"Striking Out Application”) to the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) for want of
prosecution. The High Court accepted the
Striking Out Application on 13 September 2012.
On 21 September 2012, the Company filed an
appeal against the High Court’'s decision. The
Striking Out Applicafion was dismissed by the
High Court Judge on 20 November 2012 (the
"20 November Judgement”) and thereafter, Mr.
Kwok filed an appeal against the 20 November
Judgement. Hearing was heard on 13 June
2013.The Court of Appeal accepted the appeal
against 20 November Judgement on 20 March
2014. The Company decides to proceed with
the case by filing an appeal to the Court of
Final Appeal. As at 30 June 2014 and up to the
datfe of the report, the Company has not yet
obtained leave from the Court of Appeal.

Allowance for impairment had been fully
provided in the consolidated financial
statement in previous years.

In addition, Mr. Kwok filed several claims of
his legal costs incurred for this claim with
an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$2,856,000 (the “Legal Costs Claims”). Basing
on the legal advice by a legal counsel of the
Company, the directors of the Company believe
that the Legal Costs Claims are excessive and
provision of approximately HK$1,113,000 has
been made as at 30 June 2014.

Qico (I Kwok Wai Tak Edward)
(IBWEE]) RRERIDBEE 2B
£98,000,0008 TR AL AL X2
o AR EADTZF B85 nFl
EREEER - LEE  BELEAE
BeEEk (SFEKDREER
RABRFPEAELTEMIIREZR
Z2HRFE(HBRBERZBEF]D - 5%
ERER-ZZE—Z-—FNAT=H#
MABRBRZHFE - R_F——Fh
B=+—RB KXAARSEER 2R
ERELF - SIRARZEHBER=-F
——FE+-A=Zt+BHBRSEERE
EREB(T+—A=+THB¥AR) &
% BEERT BT HHRRES
LR -KRAEBRZE-—Z=ZFXA+=
HBMR - LREENR-—Z—NF=A
“t+HEEEHE T AT BHRF
REZ LS o RRABRERAR T LR
REELFMEBELAR -BE_ZT—I
FRA=ZTEREZERERH &2
T RE LRAES TR o

ERUEFEZREMBRRAEL
2EURERME -

ot MEERE R PRMEE
ZREBRHETHR APREY
#32,856,00008 T ([REBHZER]) -
BREADRREZEEB2EZEER
AABEZHENREREEBES
REZZE-—NFAA=ZTRHEHEHY
1,113,000 T 2 4 -
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@

(®)

©

(@

On 17 July 2014, the Company and Hong
Kong Stock Link Securities Limited ("Stock
Link”) entered info a bond placing agreement,
pursuant to which Stock Link agrees fo procure
placees to subscribe for eight-year 5% coupon
straight bonds to be issued by the Company
in an aggregate principal amount of up to a
maximum of HK$10,000,000 in one tranche to
be placed during a 90-day selling period.

On 29 August 2014, Flaconwood entered
info a sales and purchase agreement with a
vendor (the "Vendor”) to acquire 4% of the
issued share capital of a company (the “Target
Company”) incorporated in British Virgin Islands
and a loan in an amount of approximately
HK$5,000,000 owing by the Target Company to
the Vendor at an aggregate consideration of
HK$5,000,000. The Target Company is primarily
involved in investment holding and held 54.4%
equity inferest in a company established in the
PRC which is principally engaged into leasing
business in the PRC. The fransaction has been
complefed on the same date.

On 1 September 2014, the Company and
Finsoft agreed to terminate the Cooperation
Framework Agreement signed on 3 June 2014,

On 1 September 2014, the Company and
KGI Asia Limited ("KGI") entered intfo a bond
placing agreement, pursuant to which KGI
agrees to procure placees to subscribe for
seven-year 7% coupon straight bonds to be
issued by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of up to a maximum of
HK$10,000,000 in one franche to be placed
during a 90-day selling period. On 3 September
2014, such straight bonds with an aggregate
principal of HK$10,000,000 have been issued.

B HR M

46. REHIKREEIE
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BRELSARAE ([BRBILE )
AIMEFEREWHS Bt - BRBI
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(e) On 26 September 2014, the Company and the

®

shareholders of ShuiliFang have entfered into
ShuiliFang Termination Agreement to tferminate
the Cooperation Agreement. Details are set
out in nofe 25(a) and note 27(b)(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 26 September 2014, the Company
announced that the Company and ShuiliFang
entered info another loan agreement to
advance RMB21,000,000 (or equivalent fo
approximately HK$26,600,000) for a term of 5
years ending on 25 September 2019. Such loan
carried interests of 25% per annum, payable
every 6 months, and is unsecured. HeDao
HuanBao and shareholders of ShuiliFang have
agreed to guarantee the loan and undertaken
fo repay to the Company in the event that
ShuiliFang defaults in paying the interests
and/or the principal amount of loans at their
respective due dates.

46. REHIRESIAE (&)

—

O]

®
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RESULTS #£i5

Year Ended 30 June

HEAB=1THLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“g-mF -F-=F -F--F -F--F -T-%2%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TER TER TEr FEn TEr
Turnover EET 464,057 382,834 284,647 270,846 219,757
(Loss)/profit before BRBLAT (F8) R
taxation (54,227)  (21,040)  (12.319) (1,279) 1,177
Income tax (charge)/  FSH () #H&
credit (2.652) (1,418) (247) 591 S
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (FE) /&F (56.879) (22,458) (12,566) (688) 1177
Attributable to: THALHEAR:
Owners of the Company &2 EHA (57.078)  (23.182)  (12.691) (1,575) (274)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE 4% IR 199 724 125 887 1,451
(56,879)  (22,458)  (12,560) (688) 1,177
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHERE
At 30 June
RAA=Z+H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—B-mf =-E-=F =-E--fF =ZE-—-F CZZ-Zf
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$"000
FET TEr TER TER TER
Non-current assets FRBEE 36,336 4,008 1,241 1,806 316
Current assets RBEE 230,147 130,503 127,178 147,682 70,707
Current liabilities hEaE (149,863)  (118,518)  (117.750)  (132,563)  (180,154)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (2,415) (158) - - -
Net assets/(liabilities) ~ &&,/ (BfE) B# 114,205 15,835 10,669 16925  (109,131)
Attributable to: THALHEA :
Owners of the Company AQREE A 110,819 12,648 8,206 14,587 (110,582)
Non-controlling interests ~ JF#% i 25 3,386 3,187 2,463 2,338 1,451

114,205 15,835 10,669 16,925 (109,131)
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